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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ITRBEREEBNRR DN

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Group Results

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of
Oriental Watch Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”), | hereby present
you the audited consolidated results of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2023 (the “Year”).

Despite its existence of more than three years, the
COVID-19 pandemic continued to bring lingering
impact to the market. In the first half of the fiscal year,
Mainland China saw a notable surge in cases, which
was subsequently followed by sustained strict lockdown
measures. That has led to drastic changes to people’s
everyday lives, with offline sales and traffic almost
impossible. The uncertainties surrounding the global
economy, such as growing geopolitical tension, sharp
inflation, and surging interest rates, have also brought
serious questions to people’s purchasing power, which
was subsequently translated into pessimism among
consumers. The same case could also be applied to Hong
Kong, where outdoor activities were less preferred, and
sales of high-ticket items suffered as a result of consumer
conservatism.

However, as the second half of the financial year
unfolded, the world seemed to see light at the end of
the tunnel. Mainland China saw a change in its COVID
strategy from prevention to adaptation, by relaxing its
lockdown measures and announcing its border reopening
in January 2023; whereas in Hong Kong, there was
also the announcement of easing border control, the
introduction of consumption voucher, and the “Hello Hong
Kong” campaign that aims to attract tourists and local
consumption.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TREHEREEBN®R DM

Throughout the journey, the Group strived to maintain
stable business operations, and remained focused on
efficiency enhancement and cost control. Leveraging
its strong brand equity and well-managed distribution
network, the Group was able to safely navigate the
operating environment, delivering a revenue of HK$3,705
million (2022: HK$3,640 million), which represents a year-
on-year (“yoy”) increase of 1.8% to. Gross profit slightly
increased by 0.8% to HK$1,189 million (2022: HK$1,180
million), with gross profit margin remained stable at 32.1%
(2022: 32.4%). Compounded by the absence of one-
off net gain recognised last year and depreciation of
renminbi during the Year, profit attributable to owners of
the Company decreased by 18.7% yoy to HK$295 million
(2022: HK$363 million). If excluding one-off gain of HK$16
million in relation to the reversal of impairment losses
on other receivables, HK$13 million in relation to the
net gain on derivative financial instruments at fair value
through profit or loss for the year ended 31 March 2022
and HK$22 million in relation to the depreciation of RMB
calculated on a constant exchange rate basis, the Group’s
profit attributable to owner of the Company recorded a
decrease of 5.1% yoy.

To show our appreciation for shareholders’ continuous
support, the Board has resolved to recommend a final
dividend of 7.5 HK cents per share (2022: 10.0 HK cents)
and a special dividend of 22.0 HK cents per share (2022:
30.5 HK cents) for the year ended 31 March 2023.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ITRBEREEBNRR DN

Business Review

As at 31 March 2023, the Group operates 43 retail
points (including associate retail stores) in the Greater
China region, with 1 online store in Mainland China and
Hong Kong, respectively. Breakdown of retail points by
geographic region is as follows:

Hong Kong BB
Macau e
Mainland China ==RETNvNps
Taiwan oy
Total Bt

In terms of Mainland China’s economic performance,
according to the National Bureau of Statistics, the PRC’s
gross domestic product (GDP) only recorded a 3.0%
yoy growth rate in 2022, which was slower than the 5.5%
target set out at the beginning of 2022. The drop in GDP
is also applicable to consumption across categories, with
retail sales of gold, silver and jewelry during the same
period also reporting a decrease of 1.1% yoy. According
to the Federation of the Swiss Watch Industry FH, the
amount of Swiss watch exports to the PRC also recorded a
decrease of 13.6% yoy in 2022, decreasing to CHF 2,563.8
million in value. The downtrend did not stop until January
to March 2023, which reported a growth of 1.4% yoy,
highlighting the weak market sentiment and slow recovery
in the luxury watch market. Despite the challenges, the
Group made full use of its strong brand equity, attractive
brand portfolio, and extensive distribution network in
Mainland China, delivering an increase in revenue of 6.0%
yoy to HK$2,560 million (2022: HK$2,415 million).
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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In Hong Kong, the COVID-19 pandemic situation was
slightly less severe, and the government lifted several
COVID measures since the first quarter of 2022. However,
the travel restrictions were still in place until late
December 2022, leading to a low number of visitors to
Hong Kong, who were once major contributors to the local
retail industry. Compounded by the economic uncertainty
and weak local consumption, total sales value of the Hong
Kong retail industry reported a decrease of 0.9% yoy
with a decrease of 3.4% yoy in volume in 2022. GDP also
decreased by 3.5% yoy in real terms from 2021, further
indicating the weak market sentiment. In line with the
overall market condition, revenue from the Group’s Hong
Kong operation reported a modest decrease of 5.2% yoy
to HK$ 1,008 million (2022: HK$1,063 million).

To ensure an efficient operation, the Group has been
maintaining stringent cost control, particularly on rental
costs. To do so, the Group conducts regular internal
assessments on the performances of all retail stores,
and will close down high-rent yet non-performing stores.
Given the unstable operating environment, the Group
was also able to negotiate a lower rental rate for some of
its stores. However, as the Group continued to grow its
business in Mainland China, there was an increase in the
variable lease payments due to the improving business
performance. As a result, the Group’s aggregated
expenses related to leases increased by 23.0% yoy
to HK$214 million, accounting for 26.9% of the overall
operating expenses (2022: 22.9%). The Group will
continue to closely monitor store performance and rental
contracts regularly in order to maximize profitability.

During the Year, the Group also employed strict inventory
policies to ensure fast cash turnaround and a healthy
financial position. Specifically, the Group closely
monitors the inventory level of high-ticket products and
only replenishes when they reach safety stock levels.
Supported by the dedicated efforts from its staff, the
Group’s overall inventory level decreased from HK$484
million as at 31 March 2022, to HK$422 million as at 31
March 2023, indicating a drop of 12.8% yoy.
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Prospects

As the world now steps into the post-pandemic era,
consumer markets in Mainland China and Hong Kong
have gradually entered the path of recovery. However,
markets have expressed concerns regarding the slower
growth rate and the rising momentum may not last, which
poses additional challenges on the retail market. In April
2023, total retail sales of consumer goods in the PRC
saw an increase of 18.4% yoy, yet it was still lower than
the market expectations of 21.9% yoy. At the same time,
the country posted a lower-than-expected purchasing
managers’ index (PMI), falling below the 50-point mark.
That also highlights the prevailing weak consumer market,
which was subsequently translated into fewer orders and
less production activities. As for the Hong Kong market,
despite there having been growing retail sales since the
reopening of the border, it may also come at the expense
of increasing competition, that may eventually limit growth
and pressure margins.

In the face of the unpredictable market, the Group will
continue to maintain its prudent business approach, while
keeping a keen eye on the latest market developments.
The Group will look to capture opportunities from
economic recovery, by expanding its Hong Kong and
Mainland China network through boutique stores with
brands, which would provide the Group with growth
impetus at limited capital commitment. As one of the
largest watch retailers renowned for its reputation and
service quality, the Group will also seek collaborations
with more branded partners to further optimize its product
mix, catering to the changing market needs. The Group
will also continue to improve its marketing initiatives, cost
control effort, and inventory management strategies, so
as to drive better financial performance and create higher
value for its stakeholders.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and financial resources

At 31 March 2023, the Group’s total equity reached
HK$1,896 million, compared with HK$2,036 million as
at 31 March 2022. The Group had net current assets of
HK$1,390 million, including bank and cash balances
of HK$1,079 million as at 31 March 2023, as compared
with balances of HK$1,549 million and HK$1,282 million
respectively as at 31 March 2022. At 31 March 2023, the
Group had no bank loan (31 March 2022: HK$29 million)
and the gearing ratio (defined as total bank borrowing on
total equity) was nil (31 March 2022: 0.014).

Management considers that the financial position of the
Group is healthy with adequate funds and unused banking
facilities.

Foreign exchange exposure

The Group’s sales and purchase transactions are primarily
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. The
Group did not face any significant risk from exposure to
foreign exchange fluctuations.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2023, our Group employed approximately
580 employees in Hong Kong, Macau, Mainland China
and Taiwan, of which approximately 62% were located in
Mainland China.

Our employees’ compensation packages include basic
salary, commission, annual bonus, medical insurance and
other common benefits. They are structured by reference
to the nature of their posts, experiences and performance,
and are reviewed annually based on the Group’s objective
performance appraisal system.
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The Group has allocated significant resources to provide
training programmes to employees to improve their
services to customers. The management team has used
results of a “Mystery Shoppers Programme” conducted by
an independent consultancy firm to tailor-made training
programmes for specific shop and at individual level.

The Group has also developed a series of training
programmes for senior executives with diverse topics
ranging from leadership, personal development and
effectiveness, task and team management. These
programmes enable our senior executives to improve their
management skills and help to bring in innovative ideas to
the Group.

The Company has adopted (i) a share option scheme
relating to the grant of options to subscribe for shares of
the Company; and (ii) a share award scheme relating to
award of shares of the Company purchased by the trustee
or the administration committee of such scheme out of
fund paid by the Company to eligible persons including
directors and employees of the Group. These schemes
enable the Group to offer valuable incentive to attract
and retain quality personnel and other persons to work to
increase the value of the shares of the Company.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EENEREERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. YEUNG Him Kit, Dennis, aged 53, joined the Group in
1993. He became Managing Director and Chairman of the
Company in March 2003 and February 2021 respectively.
He holds a Bachelor Degree in Commerce from the
University of Toronto, Canada. Mr. Yeung is the brother of
Madam Yeung Man Yee, Shirley.

Madam YEUNG Man Yee, Shirley, aged 61, joined the
Group in 1991. She received a Higher Diploma in Business
Studies and Diploma in Watch and Jewellery Management
from North Herts College in the United Kingdom and CFH
Institute in Switzerland respectively. Madam Yeung is a
sister of Mr. Yeung Him Kit, Dennis.

Mr. LAM Hing Lun, Alain, aged 64, joined the Group in
1992. He is the Finance Director and Company Secretary
of the Company and became Director of the Company in
April 2003. He is responsible for the Group’s accounting,
financial control and secretarial matters. He has over
36 years’ experience in accounting and auditing. Mr.
Lam holds a Master Degree of Business Administration
from the University of Hull. He is a Fellow Member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and an
Associate Member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He is an independent non-executive
director of CN Logistics International Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 2130), which is listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

Dr. LI Sau Hung, Eddy, G.B.S., J.P., aged 68, has over 41
years’ experience in the manufacturing business. He is the
President of Hong Kong Economic & Trade Association.
Dr. Li holds a Master Degree of Business Administration
and a PhD Degree in Economics. He was the 1991
awardee of The Ten Outstanding Young Persons and the
1993 awardee of Young Industrialists of Hong Kong. Dr.
Li was appointed Justice of the Peace in 2012 and was
awarded with Gold Bauhinia Star in 2017 by the Hong
Kong Government. He has been an independent non-
executive director of the Company since September 1993.
He is currently an Independent Nonexecutive Director of
Man Yue Technology Holdings Limited (stock code: 0894)
and Chuang’s China Investments Limited (stock code:
0298), both of which are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EENEREERE

Mr. Choi Man Chau, Michael, aged 67, is a Fellow
Member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales and the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Choi has been practising
public accountancy in Hong Kong for over 31 years. He
has been an independent non-executive director of the
Company since September 2008.

Mr. Sun Dai Hoe, Harold, aged 60, was appointed as
an Independent Non-executive Director in March 2022.
He holds a Master of Administration degree from The
University of British Columbia, Canada. He was the
Chairman of the Federation of Hong Kong Watch Trades
and Industries Limited from 2017 to 2019 and has
been its Advisor since 2020. In addition, he has been
the Chairman of Qualifications Framework, Watch and
Clock Industry Training Advisory Committee since 2022,
a member of Hong Kong Productivity Council’'s Watch
and Clock Technology Centre Management Committee
since 2016, and was a member of Hong Kong Trade
Development Council’s Watches and Clocks Advisory
Committee from 2016 to 2020. In Singapore, Mr. Sun was
the Vice-President of Singapore Clock and Watch Trade
Association from 2010 to 2017 and an independent non-
executive director of Saizen REIT, which was listed on
the Singapore Exchange from 2007 to 2017. He has over
31 years of experience in the marketing and distribution
of watches. He has been an independent non-executive
director of Cheuk Nang (Holdings) Limited (stock code:
0131), which is listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, since March 2022.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. CHAN Sze Wing, Kenneth, aged 58, is a director of
our PRC subsidiaries. Since 1 April 2022, his responsibility
has expanded from overseeing the Group’s operation
in the PRC to cover those in Hong Kong and Macau.
He joined the Group in 2013 and has over 29 years’
experience in the watch business.

Mr. LAM Tung Hing, aged 65, is the General Manager
responsible for overseeing the retail operation in Hong
Kong. He joined the Group in 2003 and has over 43 years’
experience in the watch business.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company strives to attain and maintain high standard
of corporate governance as it believes that effective
corporate governance practices are fundamental to
enhancing shareholder value and safe guarding interests
of shareholders and other stakeholders. The Company
has accordingly adopted good corporate governance
principles that emphasize a quality board of Directors
(the “Board”), effective risk management and internal
control, stringent disclosure practices, transparency
and accountability to all stakeholders. It is, in addition,
committed to continuously improving these practices and
inculcating an ethical corporate culture.

Throughout the year ended 31 March, 2023, the Company
had complied with the code provisions prescribed in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules except for the deviations
explained below in the relevant paragraphs.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Mode set out
in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors.
Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors
have confirmed compliance with the required standard set
out in the Model Code during the year under review.
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THE BOARD

Corporate Strategy

The primary objective of the Company is to enhance
long-term total return for shareholders. To achieve this
objective, the Board set strategies and directions for the
Group’s activities with a view to achieving sustainable
recurring earning growth and maintaining the Group’s
strong financial profile. The section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis” contains discussion and analysis
of the Group’s performance for the year under review and
strategies for achieving its future plans.

Role of the Board

The Board, which is accountable to shareholders for
performance of the Company, is responsible for directing
the strategic objectives of the Company and overseeing
the management of the business. Directors are collectively
charged with the task of promoting the success of the
Company and making decision in the best interest of the
Company.

Board Composition

At 31 March, 2023, the Board comprised six Directors,
including the Chairman and Group Managing Director,
Group Finance Director, an Executive Director and three
Independent Non-executive Directors. Biographical
details of the Directors are set out in the section headed
“Directors and Senior Management” on pages 10 to 11.
The composition of the Board is well balanced with each
Director having sound knowledge, experience and/or
expertise relevant to the business of the Group.

For a Director to be considered independent, the Board
must determine that the Director does not have any
direct or indirect material relationship with the Group. In
determining the independence of Directors, the Board
follows the requirements set out in the Listing Rules.
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Chairman and Chief Executive

Mr. Yeung Him Kit, Dennis is both the Chairman and
Group Managing Director of the Company. He has been
the Group Managing Director of the Company since March
2003 and took up the role of Chairman on 10 February
2021 after Dr. Yeung Ming Biu, the former Chairman,
passed away on 5 February 2021. The Board considers
that he is the most suitable person with the necessary
experience to provide leadership to the Board as well
as to manage the day-to-day operations of the Group.
As the Chairman, he is responsible for the leadership of
the Board, ensuring its effectiveness in all aspects of its
role and for setting its agenda and taking into account
any matters proposed by other directors for inclusion
in the agenda. Through the Board, he is responsible for
ensuring that good corporate governance practices and
procedures are followed by the Group.

As the Chief Executive (Group Managing Director), Mr.
Yeung is responsible for the day-to-day management of
the Group’s business.

Independent Non-executive Directors

During the year under review, the Company had three
Independent Non-executive Directors, representing over
one-third of the Board. One Independent Non-executive
Director has the appropriate professional qualifications in
accounting or related financial management expertise as
required by Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

The Company has received from each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors written confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company, based on such confirmation, considers Dr.
Li Sau Hung, Eddy, Mr. Choi Man Chau, Michael and Mr.
Sun Dai Hoe, Harold to be independent.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited R AF X{T& B AR A A

EFRRTBRER

BHIREEGRARAEEREREER
KB - —_EE=—FE= AREEARRT
JEBEEERKE R-T-_—F-AA
ARIEEIFRIEE TR - SBITRLE
RZE-—F_A+HETEERE - E
EREBREENTRRINEEESS
NEBAEB AR EEIREG AE -
EREIR  HAEEEEET  UMKRE
EeRXMETEBRDESGIZENA
B WERBHMEEZMREZMEMEIAENU
MAZER - FREFT  TRETEBERER
AEBBTRITZEEERATHELERF -

ERITHAEN (REESAKE) KBt
BEAEEEXBZARER -

BYFHITES

REIBEFEAR - ARAE =BBILIFRT
EX HEFEREZ=D2Z2— - — %%
VIFATEFTAEELETRAE3.10(2) fF
FIREZBERTEXERIHBRUBE
BEER-

ARREZRESBIFATESRELD
MEAIE31IBIRBEREB L IE L EHER
£ REZBERE  ARRARRFTHER
T BXMNEERBZAZRERBIA
4o



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TREREHE

Board Meetings and Practices

The Board meets regularly, and at least four times a
year. It also meets on other occasions when a board-
level decision on a particular matter is required. Between
scheduled meetings, senior management of the Group
provides information to the Directors on a regular basis
on the activities and development in the business of the
Group. Throughout the year, Directors had participated in
the consideration and approval of routine and operational
matters of the Company by way of circulation of relevant
materials, supplemented by additional verbal/written
information or notification from the Company Secretary
and other executives as and when required. Details of
material or notable transactions of subsidiary companies
are provided to the Directors as appropriate. Whenever
warranted, additional Board meetings are held.

The Directors receive details of agenda items for decision
and draft minutes of meeting in advance of each Board
meeting. With respect to regular meetings of the Board,
the Directors receive written notice of the meetings at
least 14 days in advance and agenda with supporting
Board papers no less than 3 days prior to the meetings.
With respect to the other meetings, the Directors are given
as much as notice as is reasonable and practicable in the
circumstances.

Any Director wishing to do so in the furtherance of his
or her duty may take independent professional advice
at the Company’s expense. Directors are encouraged
to update their skills, knowledge and familiarity with the
Group through their initial induction, ongoing participation
at Board and Committee meetings, and through meetings
with key members of the management.
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During the year ended 31 March, 2023, the compositionof REBEE_ZE_=F=A=+—HILFE
the Board and the attendance of the Directors at meetings W' EXEHEEREEENARITER

held are set out below: HEEEEYI AT
2022
Annual
Board General
Meetings Meeting
—E-=
B=R
EExgel BEAE
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Yeung Him Kit, Dennis (Note) - BOTER T E (BeE) —
Chairman and Group Managing IEREEESHALE
Director 5/5 Vv
Madam Yeung Man Yee, Shirley (Note) 1&g+ (A1) 5/5 v
Mr. Lam Hing Lun, Alain - MEBEE —
Group Finance Director SENBES 5/5 Vv
Independent Non-Executive Directors B U EHTEFE
Dr. Li Sau Hung, Eddy £ E 5/5 X
Mr. Choi Man Chau, Michael Mk E 5/5 X
Mr. Sun Dai Hoe, Harold (appointed on ~ BAZHA(RZT =
23 March 2022) ZA=t+=REZMT) 5/5 v

Note: Mr. Yeung Him Kit, Dennis and Madam Yeung Man Yee, Wit : BT RERGREZ T BiHH °
Shirley are brother and sister.
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Training and Commitment

The Company provides continuous professional
development (“CPD”) training and relevant reading
materials to the Directors to help ensure that they are
apprised of the latest changes in the commercial, legal
and regulatory environment in which the Group conducts
its business and to refresh their knowledge and skills on
their roles and functions as directors of the Company.
The Directors have complied with the requirements under
the code provisions of the CG Code in respect of CPD.
In addition, Mr. Choi Man Chau, Michael has participated
in CPD programs required by The Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants while Mr. Sun Dai Hoe Harold
has participated in CPD programs provided by external
organizers.

The Directors have provided to the Company with details
of the CPD training undertaken by them during the year.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary, Mr. Lam Hing Lun, Alain, is
responsible to the Board for ensuring that the Board
procedures are followed and Board activities are efficiently
and effectively conducted. These objectives are achieved
through the adherence to proper Board processes and
the timely preparation and dissemination to the Directors
and Board Committees comprehensive Board agendas
and papers. Minutes of all Board meetings and Board
Committees are prepared by and maintained by the
Company Secretary to record in sufficient details the
matters considered and decisions reached by the Board
or Board Committees, including any concerns raised or
dissenting views voiced by any Director. All minutes are
sent to the Directors and are available for inspection by
any Director upon request.
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The Company Secretary is also responsible for ensuring
that the Board is fully apprised of all legislative, regulatory
and corporate governance developments relating to
the Group and that it takes these into consideration
when making decisions for the Group. Further he is
directly responsible for the Group’s compliance with all
obligations under the Listing Rules, including publication
and dissemination of annual reports and interim reports
within the periods laid down in the Listing Rules,
timely dissemination to shareholders and the market of
announcements and information relating to the Group
and assisting in the notification of Directors’ dealings in
securities of the Group.

The Company Secretary advises the Directors on their
obligations for disclosure of interests in securities,
connected transactions and price-sensitive information
and ensures that the standards and disclosures required
by the Listing Rules are observed and, where required,
reflected in the annual reports of the Company.

In relation to connected transactions, regular seminars
are conducted for executives from business units within
the Group to ensure that such transactions are handled
in compliance with the Listing Rules. Detail analyses are
performed on all potential connected transactions to
ensure full compliance and for Directors’ considerations.

The appointment and removal of the Company Secretary
are subject to Board approval in accordance with the
Bye-laws of the Company. Whilst the Company Secretary
reports to the Board through the Chairman and the Group
Managing Director, all members of the Board have access
to the advice and service of the Company Secretary. Mr.
Lam Hing Lun, Alain has been the Company Secretary of
the Company since 1992 and is also the Group’s Finance
Director.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors’ Responsibility for Financial Reporting

The annual and interim results of the Company are
published in a timely manner in accordance with the
Listing Rules.

The responsibilities of the external auditors about their
financial reporting are set out in the auditor’s report on
pages 81 to 86.

Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for
preparation of the financial statements of the Company to
ensure that the financial statements give a true and fair
presentation in accordance with Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and the applicable accounting standards.

Accounting Policies

The Directors consider that in preparing the financial
statements, the Group applies appropriate accounting
policies that are consistently applied and makes
judgements and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent in accordance with the applicable accounting
standards.

Accounting Records

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the Group
keeps accounting records which disclose the financial
position of the Group upon which financial statements
of the Group could be prepared in accordance with the
Group’s accounting policies.
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Safeguarding Assets

The Directors are responsible for taking all reasonable
and necessary steps to safeguard the assets of the Group
and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities
within the Group.

Going Concern

The Directors, having made appropriate enquires,
consider that the Group has adequate resources to
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future
and that it is appropriate to adopt the going concern basis
in preparation of the financial statements.

Auditor’s Remuneration

The Board, being satisfied with Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
(“Deloitte”) in respect of the audit fees they charged, the
process and effectiveness of their audit, has resolved
to recommend their reappointment as the Company’s
external auditors at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting.

During the financial year, the services provided by, and
the associated remuneration paid to, Deloitte were as
follows:

Audit
Taxation and non-audit services

Ear R
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BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprised of the following members
(all being Independent Non-executive Directors) during
the year:

Dr. Li Sau Hung, Eddy
Mr. Choi Man Chau, Michael
Mr. Sun Dai Hoe, Harold

Under the term of reference of the Audit Committee,
it is required to oversee the relationship between the
Company and its external auditors, review the Group’s
preliminary results, interim results and annual financial
statements, monitor compliance with statutory and
Listing Rules requirements, review the scope, extent and
effectiveness of the activities of the Group’s internal audit
functions, engage independent legal or other advisers as
it determines is necessary and perform investigations.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee adopted
by the Board follow the guidelines set out in the CG Code
and are published on the Company’s website.

The Audit Committee met four times during the year which
were attended by all members.

During the year, the Audit Committee performed the duties
and responsibilities under its terms of reference and the
code provisions of the CG Code.
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Financial Statements

The Audit Committee meets with the Group Finance
Director and other senior management of the Group
from time to time to review the interim and final results,
interim and annual reports and other financial, internal
control and risk management matters of the Group. It
considers and discusses the reports and presentations of
management, the Group’s internal and external auditors
with a view of ensuring that the Group’s consolidated
financial statements are prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. It
also meets with the Group’s external auditors, Deloitte, to
consider their reports on the scope and outcome of their
independent review of the interim financial report and on
their annual audit of the consolidated financial statements.

External Auditors

The Audit Committee reviews and monitors the
external auditors’ independence and objectivity and
the effectiveness of the audit process. It has received
representations from Deloitte of their independence and
objectivity and holds meetings with Deloitte to consider
the scope of their audit and their fees therefor, and the
scope and appropriateness of non-audit services, if
required, to be provided by them. The Audit Committee
also makes recommendations to the Board on the
appointment and retention of external auditors.
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The Group’s policies regarding the engagement of Deloitte
for various services are as follows:

e Audit services — Deloitte is engaged to provide
services in connection with the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the Company,
which are required to be provided by external
auditors.

e Audited related services — include services that
would normally be provided by external auditors but
not generally included in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements, for example, audit of the
Group’s pension plans, due diligence and accounting
advice relating to mergers and acquisitions, internal
control reviews of systems and/or process and
issuance of special audit reports for tax purposes (if
any). The external auditors are invited to undertake
these services that they must or are best placed to
undertake in their capacity as auditors.

e  Taxation related services — include all tax compliance
and tax planning services except those services
provided in connection with the audit. The Group
engages the services of the external auditors where
they are best suited. Other significant taxation related
work may be undertaken by other professional parties
as appropriate.

° Others services — include, for example, audit or
reviews of third parties to assess compliance
with contracts, risk management diagnostics and
assessments, and non-financial system consultations
(if any). The external auditors are also invited to assist
the management and the Group’s internal auditors
with internal investigations and fact-finding in respect
of alleged improprieties. These services are subject
to specific approval by the Audit Committee.
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o General consulting services — the external auditors
are not eligible to provide services involving general
consulting work including accountancy services.

Review of Risk Management and Internal Control

The Audit Committee assists the Board in meeting its
responsibilities for maintaining an effective system of
internal control. It reviews the process by which the Group
evaluates its control environment and risk assessment
process, and the way in which business and control risks
are managed. In addition, it reviews with the Group’s
internal auditors the work plan for their audit together with
their resources requirements, and consider their report
to the Audit Committee on the effectiveness of internal
controls in the Group’s business operations.

These reviews and reports are taken into consideration
by the Audit Committee when it makes recommendations
to the Board for approval of the consolidated financial
statements for the year.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprised of the following
members during the year:

Dr. Li Sau Hung, Eddy (an Independent Non-executive
Director)

Mr. Lam Hing Lun, Alain (an executive director)

Mr. Sun Dai Hoe, Harold (an Independent Non-executive
Director)

The Committee meets for the determination of the
remuneration packages of the Directors and senior
management of the Group. In addition, the Committee
meets as and when required to consider remuneration
related matters.
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The responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
are to assist the Board in achieving its objectives of
attracting, retaining and motivating people of the highest
calibre and experience needed to shape and execute
strategies across the Group’s substantial business
operations. It assists the Group in the administration of a
fair and transparent procedure for setting remuneration
policies including assessment of the performance of the
Directors and senior executives of the Group. The terms of
reference of the Remuneration Committee adopted by the
Board follow the guidelines set out in the CG Code and
are published on the Company’s website.

The remuneration of Directors and senior executives
is determined with reference to the performance and
profitability of the Group as well as remuneration
benchmarks from other local and/or international
companies and prevailing market conditions. Bonus are
rewarded to Directors and employees based on the results
of the Group and the individual’s performance.

The Remuneration Committee met once during the year
which was attended by all members.

The Remuneration Committee has reviewed background
information on market data, the Group’s business activities
and human resources issues, headcounts and staff costs.
The Remuneration Committee has also reviewed and
approved the proposed director fees, year-end bonus
and remuneration packages of Executive Directors
and senior management of the Company for the year
ended 31 March, 2023, and made recommendations to
the Board on the directors’ fees for Independent Non-
executive Directors (except they do not participate in the
determination of their own remunerations).

FWEZEeRAREMMESTSENER
3= ARS| - BB R & T R MER
ZAT - BRARBEETHRERAZEKH
RIEHITRES - N B e mB AN REIR
ERFREBERAEZIERF - M LASIRT 5 B
HR(BEILEAEEEFTEFRITHA
BeRB) EFEMRMIFHFHNZES
BESERECRE A TAIMESESIALE
BHNAR B R -

EXHESMRTBRABZHFHREAEE R
FZRBMBNGESN  WBREHAMARM R
SRBEBR AR EHENEERRRITTRNE
o BAERBEASEREREARRH
MTESFLEESR -

FR FHEESCET - REEH " =8

REHEHE -

FHEZEeCEATHREZESER
AEBEBABRANERER  URIE
BABESTHRA - HFHEZBESFEEL
BRREZTRE  URARANTESTES
RERBEHZE_T_=—F=H=1—H1
FREZERIEARFMNGFERZSE  YAE
ZEEBBUNTEFZCESHE (I
RELMBEBEEEARG ZFBH) o

Annual Report 2023 — & — = F £ 3§

25



26

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREARE

Nomination of Directors

The Nomination Committee has three members, namely
Mr. Yeung Him Kit, Dennis (Executive Director and
Chairman of the Committee), Dr. Li Sau Hung, Eddy and
Mr. Choi Man Chau, Michael (both Independent Non
Executive Directors).

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee follow
the guidelines set out in the CG Code and are published
on the Company’s website.

The Nomination Committee met once during the year
which was attended by all members.

Members of the Nomination Committee identify potential
new directors and recommend to the Board for decision.
A director appointed by the Board is subject to election by
shareholders at the first annual general meeting after his/
her appointment.

Potential new directors are selected on the basis of their
qualifications, skill and business experience which the
Directors consider will make a positive contribution to the
performance of the Board.

The Board has adopted a diversity policy to achieve
diversity of board members through consideration of
relevant factors, including but not limited to gender,
age, ethnicity, cultural and educational background,
skill, knowledge, or professional/business experience to
ensure the Board has an appropriate diversity of talents to
contribute to the business of the Group.

The Board aimed to appoint a new independent non-
executive director with experience in the watch industry to
further diversify its membership. This was achieved by the
appointment of Mr. Sun Dai Hoe, Harold in March 2022.

The Board is satisfied with the implementation and

effectiveness of the Company’s policy on Board diversity
on its annual review for the year ended 31 March 2023.
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The Company has established mechanisms to ensure
independent views and input are available to the Board,
including the following:

e the independence of his/her view is considered
before appointment of any proposed director;

e channels are established for directors to express
their independent views and input openly, and
confidentially if necessary; and

o each director has independent access to the senior
management of the Company to make informed and
independent decisions and to communicate with the
Chairman directly to express his/her views.

The Board is satisfied with the implementation and
effectiveness of such mechanisms on its annual review for
the year ended 31 March 2023.

Dividend Policy

Code provision F.1.1 of the CG Code relates to disclosure
of dividend policy. The Company does not have a dividend
policy and the Board will decide on the declaration/
recommendation of any future dividends after taking into
consideration a number of factors, including the prevailing
market conditions, the Group’s operating results, business
plans and prospects, financial position and working
capital requirements, and other factors that the Board
considers relevant.

Group Risk Management, Internal Control and
Corporate Governance

Role of the Board
The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s

systems of risk management, internal control and legal
and regulatory compliance.
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In meeting its responsibilities, the Board seeks to increase
risk awareness across the Group’s business operations
and has put in place policies and procedures, including
parameters of delegated authority, which provide a
framework for the identification and management of risks.
The Board also evaluates and determines the nature and
extent of the risks that the Company is willing to accept in
pursuit of the Group’s strategic and business objectives.
It also reviews and monitors the effectiveness of the
systems of risk management and internal control on an
ongoing basis. Reporting and reviewing activities include
review and approval by the Executive Directors and
the Board of detailed operational and financial reports,
budgets and plans of business operations provided by the
management, review by the Board of actual results against
budgets, review by the Audit Committee of the ongoing
work of internal audit and risk management functions, as
well as regular business review by the Executive Directors
and the executive management team of each core
business division.

On behalf of the Board, the Audit Committee reviews
regularly the corporate governance structure and
practices within the Group and monitors compliance
fulfillment on an ongoing basis.

Risk Management

The Group adopts an Enterprise Risk Management (ERM)
framework which is consistent with the COSO (Committee
of Sponsoring Organization of the Treadway Commission)
framework. The main features of the risk management and
internal control systems are to provide a clear governance
structure, policies and procedures, as well as reporting
mechanism to facilitate the Group to manage risks across
its business operations.

The Group’s risk management framework consists of the
Board, the Audit Committee and the Risk Management
Taskforce. The Board determines the nature and extent of
risks that shall be taken in achieving the Group’s strategic
objectives, and has the overall responsibility for monitoring
the design, implementation and the overall effectiveness
of risk management and internal control systems.
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The Group has formulated and adopted risk management
policy in providing direction in identifying, evaluating
and managing significant risks. At least on an annual
basis, the Risk Management Taskforce identifies risks
that would adversely affect the achievement of the
Group’s objectives, and assesses and prioritizes the
identified risks according to a set of standard criteria. Risk
mitigation plans and risk owners are then established for
those risks considered to be significant.

In addition, the Group has established an internal audit
function to assist the Board and the Audit Committee
in monitoring the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group on an-ongoing basis. Deficiencies
in the design and implementation of internal controls
are identified and recommendations are proposed for
improvement. Significant internal control deficiencies are
reported to the Audit Committee and the Board on a timely
basis to ensure prompt remediation actions are taken.

The Group Managing Director and the Group Finance
Director have the responsibility of developing and
implementing risk mitigation strategies including taking
out insurance policies to cover the financial impact of
risks. The Group Finance Director is responsible for
arranging appropriate insurance coverage including
Directors Liability Insurance to protect directors of the
Group against potential legal liabilities.

Risk management report is submitted to the Audit
Committee and the Board at least once a year and
internal control report is submitted half-yearly. The Board
performs annual review on the effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems,
including but not limited to the Group’s ability to cope
with its business transformation and changing external
environment; the scope and quality of management’s
review on risk management and internal control systems;
result of internal audit work; the extent and frequency
of communication with the Board in relation to result of
risk and internal control review; significant failures or
weaknesses identified and their related implications; and
status of compliance with the Listing Rules.

The risk management and internal control systems of the
Group are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.
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Procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information

The Group complies with the requirements of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”) and the
Listing Rules. The Group discloses inside information
to the public as soon as reasonably practicable unless
the information falls within any of the Safe Harbours
as provided in the SFO. Before the information is fully
disclosed to the public, the Group ensures the information
is kept strictly confidential. If the Group believes that the
necessary degree of confidentiality cannot be maintained
or that confidentiality may have been breached, the
Group would immediately disclose the information to the
public. The Group is committed to ensure that information
contained in its announcements is true and accurate, and
not false or misleading.

Internal Control Environment and Systems

The Board has overall responsibility for monitoring the
operations of the Group’s business. Executive Directors
are appointed to the boards of directors of all material
operating subsidiaries for monitoring of their operations,
including attendance at board meetings, review and
approval of business strategies, budgets and plans,
and setting of key business performance targets. The
executive management team of each core business
division is accountable for the conduct and performance
of such division.

The Group’s internal control procedures include a system
for reporting information to the executive management
teams of each core business division and the Executive
Directors.

Business plans and budgets are prepared annually by
the management of individual business division subject to
the review and approval of the Executive Directors. When
setting budgets, the management identifies, evaluates and
reports on the likelihood and potential financial impact of
significant business risks.
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The Executive Directors review monthly management
reports on the financial results and key operating statistics
of each business division and hold regular meetings with
the executive management team and senior management
of business operations to discuss these reports, business
performance against budgets, forecasts, significant risk
sensitivities and strategies. In addition, the Group Finance
Director and members of his finance team review monthly
performance against budget and forecast, and address
accounting and finance related matters.

The Group Finance Director has established guidelines
and procedures for approval and control of expenditures.
Operating expenditures are subject to overall budget
control and are controlled within each business with
approval level for such expenditures being set by
reference to the level of responsibility of each executive
officer. Capital expenditures are subject to overall control
within the annual budget review and approval process,
and more specific control and approval by the Group
Finance Director or Executive Directors are required prior
to commitment for unbudgeted expenditures and material
expenditures within the approved budget. Reports of
actual versus budgeted and approved expenditures are
also regularly reviewed.

The internal audit department provides to the Group
Managing Director on a regular basis, and to the Audit
Committee if necessary, independent assurance as
to the existence and effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management activities and controls in its business
operations. Using risk assessment methodology and
taking into account the dynamics of the Group activities,
the internal audit department devises its yearly audit
plan, which is reviewed by the Audit Committee, and
reassessed during the year as needed to ensure that
adequate resources are deployed and the plan’s
objectives are met. The internal audit department is also
responsible for assessing the Group’s internal control
system, formulating an impartial opinion on the system,
and reporting its findings to the Group Managing Director,
Group Finance Director and the Audit Committee as well
as following up on all reports to ensure that all issues
have been satisfactorily resolved. In addition, a regular
dialogue is maintained with the Group’s external auditors
so that both are aware of the significant factors which may
affect their respective scopes of work.
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Depending on the nature of business and risk exposure of
individual business units, the scope of the work performed
by the internal audit function includes financial and
operations review, recurring and surprise audits, fraud
investigation and productivity effectively reviews.

Reports from the external auditors on internal controls
and relevant financial reporting matters, if any, are
presented to the Group Finance Director and the relevant
management teams. These reports are reviewed and the
appropriate actions taken.

Corporate Governance

The Board is entrusted with the overall responsibility of
developing and maintaining sound and effective corporate
governance within the Group and is committed to ensuring
that an effective governance structure is in place to
continuously review and improve corporate governance
practices within the Group to keep abreast of evolving
environment and regulatory requirements.

The Board has adopted terms of reference for corporate
governance functions set out in the CG Code, and the
Audit Committee has been delegated the responsibilities
to perform the corporate governance duties set out
therein. To assist the Audit Committee in fulfilling its
responsibilities, the Company Secretary, together with
representatives from key departments of the Company,
continuously examines the corporate governance structure
of the Group, provides updates, identifies emerging
matters for compliance, sets up appropriate compliance
mechanisms and monitors compliance on an ongoing
basis.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the compliance status
and is satisfied that the Company has complied with all
the applicable code provisions of the CG Code during
the year except deviations explained in various relevant
paragraphs above.
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Review of Risk Management and Internal Control
Systems

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has conducted
a review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems for the year
ended 31 March, 2023 covering all material financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management
functions, and is satisfied that such systems are effective
and adequate. In the view of the Board, the systems of
risk management and internal control of the Group are
sufficient to safeguard the interests of the Group.

Diversity in the Workforce

As of 31 March 2023, our total workforce comprised of
63% female and 37% male, whereas senior management
comprised of 48% female and 52% male. Please refer to
the section headed “Employment” in the Environmental,
Social and Governance Report for information on the
diversity in the Group’s workforce in general for the year
ended 31 March 2023. The Board considers that the
Group has achieved good gender diversity in its workforce
(including senior management).

Communication with Shareholders and Investors

The Board recognizes the importance of maintaining clear,
timely and effective communication with the shareholders
of the Company and investors. Therefore, the Board
and the Group’s senior management maintain close
communications with investors, analysts, fund managers
and the media by various channels including interviews
and meetings. The Group specifically assigns Mr. Lam
Hing Lun, Alain, Group Finance Director, as the contact
person for investor relationship to respond to requests for
information and queries of investors.
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Shareholders may put enquiries to the Board through its
website at www.orientalwatch.com or in writing sent to
the principal office of the Company at 19th Floor, Wing
On Centre, 111 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong.
The Directors, Company Secretary or other appropriate
members of senior management respond to enquiries from
shareholders promptly.

The Company had reviewed the implementation and
effectiveness of its shareholders’ communication policy
during the year ended 31 March 2023 and concluded that
the shareholders’ communication policy has been properly
in place during the Year and is effective.

Shareholders’ Right

The Board is committed to providing clear and
fullinformation of the Group required under the
Listing Rules, the SFO and other applicable laws and
regulations to the shareholders through publication of
notices,announcements, circulars, interim and annual
reports. In addition to dispatching circulars, notices,
financial reports to shareholders, additional information
of the Group’s also available to the shareholders on the
Company’s website.

The Board welcomes the view of shareholders on matters
affecting the Group. Shareholders are encouraged to
attend all general meetings of the Company at which the
Chairman and Directors are available to answer questions
on the Group’s business.
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Pursuant to Bye-law 58 of the Company’s Bye-laws,
shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right,
by written requisition to the Board or the Secretary of
the Company, to require a special general meeting to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition, and such meeting shall
be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within twenty-one days of such deposit
the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the
requisitionists themselves may do so in accordance with
the provisions of Section 74(3) of the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda.

CHANGES IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Company had
changed its Bye-laws as detailed in its circular dated
26 July 2022.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
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In accordance with Appendix 27 — Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide of the Main Board
Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange,
Oriental Watch Holdings Limited (the “Company”, “We”,
and “Our”) presents this Environmental, Social and
Governance Report (*ESG Report”) for the year ended 31
March 2023 (the “Reporting Period”, or “FY2023").

REPORTING SCOPE

We are principally engaged in the trading business
of luxury watches. This Report presents, aligned with
the annual report, our ESG policies, programmes and
performance in Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland China
during the Reporting Period. The reporting boundaries
were selected based on principal operating locations of
the Company.

REPORTING PRINCIPLES

The Company strictly follows the four Reporting Principles
during the preparation of the ESG Report.

Materiality: Our Company conducted the annual
stakeholder engagement and identified
the material ESG issues during the
Reporting Period. The final ESG issues
have been confirmed by the management
and the Board of Directors of the
Company. All the material ESG issues are
addressed in this Report.

Quantitative: Our Company monitored various Key
Performance Indicators (“KPI”) during the
Reporting Period, which are presented in
this Report, to keep track of the progress
of our ESG initiatives. In this way, the
effectiveness of ESG policies and
management system can be evaluated
and validated. For all standards and
methods adopted for calculating the KPI
(if applicable), please refer to the relevant
sections in the Report.

Balance: The Report presents an unbiased picture
of the Company’s ESG performance

during the Reporting Period.
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The Company adopted consistent
methodologies in the data calculation
as compared to prior years to show
comparable ESG data over time. The
data are useful for setting environmental
targets, which will be discussed in this
Report.

Consistency:

BOARD STATEMENT

Acting as top management and supervision role of
the Company, our Board of Directors (the “Board”)
acknowledges that they have overall responsibility
to oversee the ESG issues to achieve sustainable
development, which includes:

e Taking ESG into account for establishing policies and
setting strategies;

° Brainstorming the current and potential planning
about ESG; and

° Receiving updated information for decision-making
and forward-looking through regular report from ESG
taskforce.

We make use of the materiality assessment which is
conducted with our stakeholders and industrial practices
to explore the potentials and opportunities of our focus
ESG topics. With the service-oriented characteristics,
the Company’s social aspects are our identified focus
area in ESG. Meanwhile, we continue to drive our effort
in improving the environment by reducing consumption.
We have setup five years emissions reduction target on
greenhouse gases, energy intensity, waste and enhance
water efficiency with long-tern management goals. The
Group will continue to monitor various environmental data
and make continuous progress. Going forward, the Board
will strengthen the communication with the ESG taskforce
to continuously introduce ESG policies and strategies
as well as track ESG performance through a top-down
approach.
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OUR ESG GOVERNANCE

We believe a well-developed corporate governance
structure is the key to success of setting our ESG strategy
and building a communication channel between the Board
and management and operational level. Therefore, we
have established an ESG taskforce, which includes senior
management as well as department heads of different
functions while the Board has the overall responsibility
for the Company’s ESG reporting and strategy in order to
embed ESG-related elements throughout our operations.
The key responsibilities of the ESG taskforce include the
following:

e  Establishing the long-term ESG goals and missions of
the Company;

o Monitoring and managing ESG-related risks;

o Evaluating the effectiveness of the Company’s ESG
management systems; and

° Reporting the ESG objectives achieved to the Board
on a regular basis.

The ESG taskforce is authorised by the Board to carry
out its tasks including stakeholder engagement and
materiality assessment. External professional advices
could be sought at the expense of the Company when the
ESG risks are assessed to be material.

We are committed to complying with the latest laws
and regulations as well as the industry standards in
our ESG practice. Our ESG initiatives are revised and
communicated timely with staff members in order to
enhance the efficiency of the ESG tasks.

We review our risk management process on a regular
basis. Material risks will be assessed and discussed
by the abovementioned ESG taskforce and the Board.
Internal control measures will be designed and
implemented to mitigate the ESG risks. Please refer to the
“RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL” section
of the Company’s “CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT”
for details of the effectiveness of risk management and
internal control systems.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

We understand that stakeholders’ comments are crucial
to our decision-making process as well as our long-
term success in the future. Therefore, we engage our
stakeholders by active communication and interaction. We
have adopted the following engagement methods for our

stakeholders:

# Stakeholders
FZAEBEE

1 Suppliers and Business Partners

GYAENSE T 0

2 Customers
®F

3 Employees
(==

4 |nvestors and Shareholders

BEE LR

5 Government and Supervising Authorities
T K B2 B 1 R

NEHEEESHE

AP AR - MR E 2R RERMAR
ZARRREFRREKDERREIER - B
b - FAFIRER B K BB R E R a4 RS

ES2EHEE - RPERAATHNEEEE
2EIE

Engagement Methods
S8R5k

Meetings

&2

= X

Daily email communications
BREBBEA

Regular evaluations

E HARH A

Company website

NIRRT

Communication in retailing points
TEHRN

Customer service hotline

B PRI 2R
Enquiry emails
EHEH

Internal trainings

AEBEE T

Staff notices and announcements
BETREMAE

Annual performance appraisal
FREREFZ

Internal meetings

SE L

General meetings

BERE

Annual and interim reports
FEETHERE

Circulars and announcements
BERAE

Company website

NGIE N

Email communications
EHE A
Meetings

=
= f

Government websites regarding regulations

BT A8 B AR
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Stakeholders Engagement Methods
F 25 EBA & S8R %E

6 Social Groups and Public ° Charitable activities
HEHBLAR RERY

° Public consultation emails

kY

ABHHED

7 Media ° Press releases
prg FEEM
MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT BEEMFME

We have invited internal and external stakeholders to  F{FIEBFERE L IN D a5 ABBE & 1T
conduct materiality assessment FY2022. Considering that ZT__MFBEMFE - ZRI T
there was no major change in the business and operating M FHEBREERFWMEXNEE) -
environment during FY2023 and the results of the T _HFEEMTEERDERENE
materiality assessment in FY2022 can still respond to the  HHEAEMHIE  EFgHR —T-_§
expectations of stakeholders, the Board confirmed that FEEWTHERDERNEZHRE - WA
the results of the materiality assessment in FY2022 are stil @ HE - BEANULZE ST -__0FHR
applicable to the Reporting Period. If needed, readers can 3% * @ REAWME - THEZETH
refer to the FY2022 ESG Report for the methodology and  &HE /A KIRAR ©

process of materiality assessment.

%

25 ® o4

Important to the Stakeholders of the Group
HAREEMNREEE CEE M

Materiality to the Business of the Group
HAKEXRBZERNE
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# ESG Issues
ESG =&

General

—RER

1 Compliance
AR

Environmental
RBiE

2 Air emissions and greenhouse gas emissions

RPN R E R BN

3 Non-hazardous waste
mERZEY)

4 Energy consumption
e

5  Water consumption
KEREFE

6  Use of packaging materials
A B EMH

7 Environmental targets
RIEAR

8  Noise pollution
RS R

9 Environmental impacts from investments (external lighting and renovation works)

BREHRENTZE (PINBERAREETRE)

10 Climate resilience

RIRM B i

Social

HE

11 Recruitment, promotion and dismissal

BEE - B kR E

12 Employee compensation and benefits
18 B 3 K A2 A

13 Employee working hours and rest periods
BB TIER SRR

14 Equal opportunity
FEHe

15  Workplace health and safety
THESHERRER 2

16 Employee training and development
EEEILER
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# ESG Issues
ESG ==&

17 Anti-child and anti-forced labour
B IEE T KB71EaR %% T

18 Supply chain relationship management

HEE R E R

19 Environmental and labour performance of suppliers and subcontractors
HEBLSBENRERSIRR

20 Green/sustainable procurement

M P E R
21 Product safety
EmZ®
22 Product quality and assurance
mE 8 MRE

23 Service quality
RBEEE

24 Intellectual property rights
B ERE

25 Advertising and labelling
R NEEE

26 Data privacy and protection

BRI R R #E

27 Community investment

HERE

Governance

A oA
E/A

28 Board’s oversight of ESG issues
EEZSYHESGREMNEER

29 Anti-corruption and anti-money laundering
&R R IR

30 Anti-corruption training
REFE

Based on the above analysis, this Report will cover the  ERMNU ESHT » REMEFREUATEERD
following major ESG related issues and describe them in  ESGHEMZE®E - WRIEESG # B E A48
order according to the importance of the ESG issues to ~ HE 2B EMIZIEF A o

our stakeholders.
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Social, Employment and Labour Practices HE  EEREIER
ESG aspects as ESG aspects as
set out in ESG Material ESG issues for  set out in ESG Material ESG issues for
Guide Area the Company Guide the Company
ESG &3l H /il ESG IR fE
ZESGEH #E KAFZEAESGHE ZESGEE KAFZERESGERE
B7 Anti-corruption o Anti-corruption B1 Employment o Employee
RE5 and anti-money E’ compensation and
laundering benefits
REFRMIDERE EEHMREN
o Anti-corruption o Recruitment,
training promotion and
&35 dismissal

e BN REE

o Equal opportunity
TEHe

o Employee working
hours and rest

periods
EETIERERERS
B6 Product Responsibility ¢ Product B3 Development and o Employee training
EmEF responsibility and Training and development
service quality BRERE BEHIRERE
EmEERBHER
o Data privacy and
protection
EHILERRE
o Advertising and
labelling
BEREBE
o Intellectual property
rights
HBERE
B2 Health and Safety o Workplace health B8 Community Investment ¢ Social responsibility
BEEZE and safety HERE HEEfR
TiesiRERS
B5 Supply Chain o Supply chain B4 Labour Standards o Anti-child and anti-
Management relationship LTk forced labour
LERER management By 1L Z TRy -5
HERBERER 8T

o Environmental and
social risks along the
supply chain

HEBNRERILE

s
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ESG aspects as ESG aspects as
set out in ESG Material ESG issues for  set out in ESG Material ESG issues for
Guide the Company Guide the Company
ESGIESIH &2 ESGHEIITfEZ
ESGEMH KAFZEAESGRE ESGEM KAFAIZEARESGEHE
A2 Use of Resources *  Energy consumption A3 Environmental Impacts ¢  External lighting
LEEE =7 from Investments FOMEX
REHRENZE

o Non-hazardous o Renovation works
waste kBT
BEEE

o Use of packaging
materials
FRBRMH

o Water consumption
KERERE

Al Emissions o Air emissions A4 Climate Change o (limate resilience
#Huy RBHM REEL RIENEREHE

o (reenhouse gas
emissions
BEREHM
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SOCIAL, EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR
PRACTICES

Anti-corruption
Anti-corruption and anti-money laundering

We believe that honesty, integrity, and fairness are of vital
importance to our business operations. The Company
has incorporated a strict code of conduct in its staff
manual for all employees to specify that solicitation and
acceptance of advantages are prohibited and breaches of
the code of conduct would result in disciplinary actions.
Regular declaration of interest is compulsory for certain
staff depending on grades and positions. Reminders are
sent to employees regularly, and our business partners,
suppliers and contractors are also informed of our policy
on declaration of interests. The Company also periodically
reviews the effectiveness of its internal control systems.

In addition, we have established an internal whistleblowing
reporting mechanism to collect suspicious misconduct
cases through various channels, and whistleblowers are
protected. Designated parties are assigned to conduct
fair, detailed, and independent investigations. For true
misconduct cases, the responsible department or person
will be imposed with punishment according to internal
systems and cases will even be settled through legal
means.

We adhere to the applicable laws and regulations in
relation to the bribery, corruption, and money laundering,
for example, the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance, and
Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing
Ordinance in Hong Kong, Prevention and Suppression
of Bribery in the Private Sector in Macau, and Anti-
Unfair Competition Law of the PRC, Interim Provisions
on Banning Commercial Bribery and Criminal Law of the
PRC in Mainland China. During the Reporting Period, we
have not identified any material non-compliance with the
aforesaid laws and regulations. In addition, there was no
legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against
the Company or its employees during the Reporting
Period.
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Anti-corruption training

Anti-corruption training is one of the preventive measures
and can raise directors’ and employees’ awareness of
integrity. Directors regularly receive reading materials
about anti-corruption via internal and external channels,
reminding them to uphold high ethics in their position
in FY2023. The Company also encourages them to join
relevant webinars to keep updated of the anti-corruption
related messages. Employees have been given induction
briefing organised by the Company or seminars on anti-
corruption regularly organised by the Independent
Commission Against Corruption of the Government of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region in Reporting
Period.

Product Responsibility
Product responsibility and service quality

As one of the largest watch retailers in Hong Kong
renowned for its reputation, credibility, and scale, we
have zero-tolerance for selling counterfeit consumer
goods in our retail shops. The Company has joined
the “Hong Kong Q-Mark Scheme” of the Hong Kong
Q-Mark Council to attest the quality of its products and
services. We also comply with the Product Quality Law of
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) in Mainland
China. To achieve high product and service quality, the
Company only imports watches from manufacturers who
use environmentally friendly and safe raw materials for
production. This ensures the products we sell to our
customers are safe.
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Although we heavily rely on our suppliers to import
quality products, we also need to ensure that products
are authenticated and obtained with valid certification. A
rigorous quality assurance process and sample testing are
conducted before sending the products to branches for
retail. For effectively handling the potential product recall
cases, we have systematic internal recall procedures
in place to effectively handle potential recall cases. A
detail investigation about the quality and recall cases is
conducted and preventive measures are implemented
to avoid cases from happening in the future. During
the Reporting Period, the Company is not aware of any
product recall due to safety and health reasons.

With the business philosophy of “keep the faith, caring for
customer”, we commit to providing outstanding services
that meet the market’s needs and valuing our customers.
During the Reporting Period, the Company is not aware of
any serious products and service-related complaints due
to safety and health reasons.

The Company’s retail shops are all located at prime
locations to allow customers to enjoy convenient and
comfortable shopping experience. The Company has
established a specially designed VIP lounge at the
flagship stores to provide a private, nice and leisure
environment for customers to exchange professional
knowledge and insights of timepieces with our staff. Our
professional sales team strictly abide by standardised
service guidelines when serving customers and they
also need to receive regular assessments to maintain
market competitiveness. Our professional sales team are
well-trained and strive to provide comprehensive and
knowledgeable advice accompanied with sincere and
premium services to each customer.

We value our customer feedback which helps achieve
continuous service improvement. Customers can raise
their concerns and complaints through various channels
such as designated customer service hotline, email
address and social media platforms. The concerns and
complaints are required to settle within a limited time and
revert satisfactory solutions to customers. Client review
is arranged to understand whether or not customers are
satisfied with the handling measures. Reports of enquiries
and complaints are recorded and reviewed regularly by
the management team for improvements on products and
services.
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During the Reporting period, the Company received
4 complaints, regarding product quality, customer
communication as well as unsatisfactory follow-up and
service attitude. All these four complaints had been
settled according to the above procedures.

In addition to understanding the needs of our customers,
we attach great importance to maintaining a good
relationship with them and rewarding their support to
us. We implement different tiers of membership, offering
different privileges.

Data privacy and protection

The Company respects the data privacy of our prestigious
customers, business partners and staff. It strives to
protect the privacy in the collection, processing, and
use of personal data. The Company strictly follows the
data protection regulations in Hong Kong, Macau and
Mainland China. Furthermore, the Company has deployed
appropriate technical measures in place, such as firewall
and anti-virus software, to protect personal data against
unauthorised use or access. The Company guarantees
that the personal data is securely kept and processed
only for the purpose for which it has been collected.

We devote our efforts in compliance with the Personal
Data (Privacy) Ordinance, Sale of Goods Ordinance,
Trade Description Ordinance, Supply of Services (Implied
Terms) Ordinance in Hong Kong, Commercial Code
and Personal Data Protection Act in Macau, and China
Personal Information Protection Law in Mainland China.

During the Reporting Period, we have not identified any

material non-compliance with the abovementioned laws
and regulations.
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Advertising and labelling

We execute our marketing strategy with the principle of
integrity as it is our responsibility to treat our customers
fairly and truthfully. We ensure that our operations comply
with the Trade Description Ordinance in Hong Kong, the
Commercial Code in Macau and the Advertisement Laws
in Mainland China.

The Company uses marketing materials provided by the
suppliers to ensure consistency between actual product
specification and information on the marketing materials.
Therefore, our marketing, advertising, and sales related
materials and services must always be genuine and
precise with the aim to meet the customer needs. We
never misrepresent any untruthful statements that would
as a result mislead our customers. Our advertisements
are all factually correct to the real product. Our products
are only offered to meet the customers’ needs and we are
prohibited to sell unsuitable product.

During the Reporting Period, we have not identified any
material non-compliance with the abovementioned laws
and regulations.

Intellectual property rights

The Company formally registers and keeps validity of
trademarks to protect and prevent from infringing the
intellectual property rights. We strictly comply with the
Trade Marks Ordinance in Hong Kong, the Industrial
Property Code in Macau and the Trademark Law of the
PRC in Mainland China in our operations. During the
Reporting Period, we have not identified any material
non-compliance with the abovementioned laws and
regulations.
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Health and Safety
Workplace health and safety

The Company is committed to providing a safe, healthy,
pleasant and efficient work environment for its staff. In
order to ensure the work environment is healthy and
safe, various administrative measures such as workplace
safety posters, training courses and practical guidelines
have been implemented to communicate such a concept
to all staff in its extensive retail network. Regardless of
seriousness and locations, all cases of injury are required
to be reported to the head office for further assessment
under the internal policies and procedures so as to ensure
proper handling of the cases and execution of preventive
measures. In FY2023, we have not identified any number
of lost days by the Company’s employees due to work-
related injuries and any case of work-related fatalities
across three financial years, including FY2023, which
result in zero rates of work-related fatalities.

As a responsible employer, all staff are entitled to the
Company’s medical insurance and other competitive
fringe benefits to enable them to have easier access
to preventive and emergency health care services and
affordable treatment.

We realise the laws and regulations about workplace
health and safety have been tightened and more aware by
the local authorities. We have spent efforts in compliance
with the Employees’ Compensation Ordinance and
Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance in Hong
Kong, safety laws in Macau (i.e. Section 2/83/M), and
Work Safety Law of the PRC in Mainland China. During
the Reporting Period, we have not identified any material
non-compliance with the aforesaid workplace health and
safety-related laws and regulations.
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Supply Chain Management
Supply chain relationship management

Since its establishment in 1961, we have established and
maintained strong relationships with various well-known
luxury European watch brands. Many of these brands
are accredited for their supreme quality and excellent
craftsmanship. Furthermore, their products are required to
comply with high production standards and pass through
various testing procedures to ensure quality. Apart from
product quality, we also consider the reputation, as well
as the environmental and social performance of the watch
manufacturers before establishing business relationship
with them. Our Company purchases well-known luxury
watches from their brand regional offices. The following
table shows the total number of suppliers in FY2023
across different regions:

Hong Kong
5k

Supply chain management
HEwE R

No. of suppliers FY2023 Supplier
—E - =UFHERRE HER 101
No. of suppliers FY2022 Supplier
—E__HFHERSE H e 101

Environmental and social risks along the supply chain

We build a fair, anti-competitive environment for managing
our supply chain. We ensure that our suppliers comply
with the anti-competitive related laws and regulations.

HEEEE
REEHEEE
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Mainland
China
Bl A i

60 12 173

60 12 173
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We are also aware of the importance of selecting suppliers
that are environmentally and socially responsible. For
effectively identifying and managing the environmental
and social risks, we require our material suppliers to fill
in declaration regarding their operations in environmental
and social aspects. We endeavour to ensure that our
suppliers do not violate any relevant environmental
and social related laws and regulations, which include
key areas on emissions, health and safety, and labour
standards. We maintain ongoing communications with
our suppliers to understand if their operations align with
the filled declaration. Once any misalignment has been
discovered, we require suppliers to improve the conditions
until the Company satisfies with the arrangement. If the
supplier does not further improve, we would consider
terminating the cooperation. Furthermore, the declaration
result is one of the factors affecting the selection and
evaluation of suppliers.

We actively procure green products for our operations,
all packaging bags distributed to customers are made
of Forest Stewardship Council (“FSC”) accredited paper
which are more environmentally friendly. We also devote
to exploring the potentials and prioritising the purchase of
more green products and services.

Employment

Considering human resources as the most important
asset of the Company, the Company has established
employment policies and guidelines based on the local
employment laws in Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland
China and endeavour to build an employee-oriented
working environment to attract and retain talents.
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Employee compensation and benefits

The Company takes reference from local industrial
average to determine staff remuneration and other fringe
benefits. Experience and qualifications of staff are also
taken into account. Key performance indices, depending
on staff position, have been adopted to measure staff
performance in determining staff salary packages. Apart
from basic salary, the Company also provides eligible
employees with commissions and/or discretionary bonus
to increase their work incentive and boost the sale
performance.

Eligible employees of Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland
China are entitled to mandatory provident fund schemes,
the social security fund, and the five types of insurance
and contributions to the mandatory housing fund
respectively. Medical insurance is also provided to
employees to protect their health and safety during work
time.

Recruitment, promotion and dismissal

The Company hires and promotes staff who share and
support the Company’s missions, values and work ethics.
The Company treasures those who demonstrate diligence,
initiative, responsibility and integrity. Hiring and promotion
are based on performance, merit and the principle of
equal opportunities.
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Total workforce in FY2023: TEC-WFCBIRE

Indicator FY 2023 FY2022
BR k- iy 7 3 ket 7§ 2
Total workforce

BT

Full-time employee Employee

2BEER == 579 587
Part-time employee Employee

FRBEE (== 1 0
Total workforce by gender

mIMpE Dz BETRER

Male Employee

B it =] 213 212
Female Employee

i (=1 367 375
Total workforce by age group

REREDZETRER

Below 30 Employee

305RA T EE 42 49
30-50 Employee

30E5073% == 455 447
Over 50 Employee

50 AR LA k£ ’E 83 91
Total workforce by employee category

REBEMNEID B THEHE

General level Employee

— AR R == 473 484
Middle management level Employee

PREERE == 78 72
Senior management level Employee

SREEE (== 29 31
Total workforce by geographical location

BB BB 2B THEE

Hong Kong Employee

BB (==] 203 200
Macau Employee

P (=1 19 20
Mainland China Employee

B A 3, == 358 367
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Dismissal is considered for underperformance, misconduct
and/or fraud. All dismissal cases will be carried out in
accordance with the relevant labour laws and regulations
in Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland China. Employees
can also choose to terminate their employment voluntarily,
and they are required to complete the handover within the
required notice period. To collect views from employees
and identify improvement areas of the Company, exit
interview with the leavers will be conducted.

BETRBERE TAKER/RTLER
o ARTEEREERIE - FARER
RERES - RPIRFERL ST
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Employee turnover rate' in FY2023:

Indicator

i

Total employee resigned/terminated

BT BERESEX

—ToCMFZRERK

Total
et

Employee
8

~

96

73

Turnover rate
mak =

%

16.55

12.44

Employee resigned/terminated by g

B S ZBHE BRIES

ender

Male

Eal3

Employee
g

39

32

Turnover rate

MR E

%

18.31

15.09

Female

oy

Employee
=

LS

57

41

Turnover rate
MR K

%

15.53

10.93

Employee resigned/terminated by a

BRERE D ZBE BBIES

ge group

Below 30
30BR AT

Emcployee
=|

=

16

12

Turnover rate
MAE

%

38.10

24.49

30-50
30 & 505

Employee
[=3=

65

52

Turnover rate
MR

8
%

14.29

11.63

Over 50
503 A £

Emi)loyee
=

b

15

Turnover rate
MR

%

18.07

9.89

Employee resigned/terminated by g

EWEMEE S 2 BHEBRES

eographical location

Hong Kong

7/

Em:ployee

EE

22

26

Turnover rate
MR K

10.84

13.00

Macau
JRPY

Turnover rate
Mk =

5.26

10.00

Mainland China
FR B A

Employee
=

=

73

45

Turnover rate
A E

%

20.39

12.26

" Employee turnover rate (percentage) = Number of employee
departure of the category/Number of employees of the

category at the end of the Reporting

Period x 100%
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Equal opportunity

The Company is an equal opportunity employer. The
Company emphasises human capital diversity, and is
against any kind of discrimination. The Company ensures
equal opportunity in all of its human resources processes,
regardless of gender, pregnancy, marital status, disability,
family status, and race of the staff.

Employee working hours and rest periods

Working hours, rest periods and other benefits and welfare
are determined based on local industrial averages.
Experience, qualifications, and seniority of staff are taken
into account as well.

We have put great emphasis to the compliance with
the labour-related laws and regulations such as the
Employment Ordinance and Minimum Wage Ordinance in
Hong Kong, Labour Relations Law, and Framework Law on
Employment Policy and Worker’s Rights in Macau as well
as Labour Law of the PRC and Labour Contract Law of the
PRC in Mainland China. During the Reporting Period, we
have not identified any material non-compliance with the
aforesaid employment laws and regulations.

Development and Training
Employee training and development

The Company considers human resources as vitally
important to the success of its business. Therefore,
the Company has developed a comprehensive training
programme consisting of product knowledge, service
and selling skills, complaints handling techniques and
managerial competences. These training courses are
provided for different levels of staff based on their job
responsibilities.

The Company also offers induction training courses for
communicating corporate values, service standards and
code of conduct to new joiners. In addition, leadership
programmes organised by external professional
institutions have been provided to management personnel
SO as to equip them with proper professional management
skills. Furthermore, the Company has engaged external
service providers to perform independent evaluation on
the performance of frontline staff. It helps identify potential
improvement areas to enhance customer service skills of
the staff.
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The percentage of employees trained? in FY2023: —ECCUFERIEEZBESL?:

Indicator FY 2023 FY2022

BE —E-CEBF

Number of employee trained by gender

RUERE D ZRIIEEAK

Male Employee 158 178
S B8

Employees training rate % 35.91 38.20
(SRS

Female Employee 282 288
pogid B8

Employees training rate % 64.09 61.80

LIRS
Total workforce by employee category

REEBMNE D 2 EEBRHK

General level Employee 316 390
— M4 R EE&

Employees training rate % 71.82 83.69
g B 155 %

Middle management level Employee 102 59
TREERE ES

Employees training rate % 23.81 12.66
fE B1EFIxX

Senior management level Employee 22 17
SRERRE BE

Employees training rate % 5.00 3.65

IS EIES
Total workforce by geographical location
BMBEUEE D 2 EEBEH

Hong Kong Employee 145 168
i) B8

Employees training rate % 32.95 36.05
(=S

Macau Employee 20 21
P =35

Employees training rate % 4.55 4.51
ESEEEIES

Mainland China Employee 275 277
B g 3 (=]

Employees training rate % 62.50 59.44

EEEIIX

2 Employee training rate (percentage) = Number of trained 2 EEFIXR(BEHL)= ZBAXINETA
workforce of the category/Number of workforce took part in B SMAKRLDMEEZINE T AB x 100%
training at the end of the Reporting Period x 100%
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The average training hours completed per employee® in  —ZT =B F 8% E8TK 2 FHEIE
FY2023: e

Indicator i FY 2023 FY2022

512 By —g-=pif = L

Total and average training hours by gender
BRI R B 53 2 15 )l 48 R B K 7 35 iy 81

Male Hour 2,078.00 2,602.50
EE s NS
Average training hours Hour 9.76 12.28
1555 I 2K AN
Female Hour 4,859.40 5,494.50
oy N
Average training hours Hour 13.24 14.65
3955 IR 2R /N

Total and average training hours by employee category
1218 B AR 8l 53 2 38 7)) 48R B Ko S 15 R 8

General level Hour 4,943.90 7,357.50
— R R aNisi
Average training hours Hour 10.45 15.20
1555 oI 2K /N
Middle management level Hour 1,759.50 629.00
PREERE N
Average training hours Hour 22.56 8.74
F 955 316% 8 N
Senior management level Hour 234.00 110.50
BREERE e
Average training hours Hour 8.07 3.56
95 3B B 1B

Total workforce by geographical location

RIENEE N < BEEAK

Hong Kong Hour 1,292.00 1,717.00
55 /|NBF
Macau Hour 149.00 104.00
B P N
Mainland China Hour 5,496.40 6,276.00
FERH N

3 Average training hours = Total number of training hours for  ° “FIEINEE = ZEFEE 2 B ERE
employees of the category/Number of employees of the /S 2RBRZLEREE AR
category at the end of the Reporting Period
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Community Investment
Social responsibility

The Company demonstrates its care for society by giving
back to the community. We are committed to enhancing
the community’s well-being and social services. During
the reporting period, the Company as a whole, as well
as individual senior management personnel have been
actively donating to various charitable organisations with
a lump sum of HKD$14,050 equivalent. On one hand, it
provides funding to support charity activities. On the other
hand, it motivates the staff to join the charity activities,
thereby magnifying the effect. We also have built a
volunteering team that actively participates in community
events, contributing to total of 20.5 service hours.

Labour Standards
Anti-child and anti-forced labour

All of the Company’s offices and retail stores strictly
comply with the local law’s requirements, with no tolerance
on child labour. During our hiring process, we check and
verify the personal data of the potential candidates in
order to prevent from hiring child labour. We also sign
the formal employment contract with employees, and the
contract specifies key areas such as work duties, work
hours, overtime arrangements and rest periods to protect
the rights and obligations of the employer and employees
and prevent forced labour.

We have noted the requirements about child or forced
labour in the local laws and regulations of our operating
locations. Therefore we strictly adhere to these laws and
regulations such as Employment Ordinance in Hong Kong,
Labour Relations Law in Macau and Labour Law of the
PRC in Mainland China. During the Reporting Period, we
have not identified any material non-compliance with the
aforesaid employment laws and regulations. In case of
discovering non-compliance cases, we will immediately
terminate the employment relationship or even transfer the
cases and settle through legal means.
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ENVIRONMENTAL

The Company exerts its best efforts in protecting the
environment from its business activities and workplace.
The Company is committed to promoting the green
concept by introducing environmentally friendly business
practices and educating its employees to raise their
awareness on environmental protection.

Multiple measures have been adopted to reduce energy
and other resource use, minimise waste, increase
recycling and promote environmentally friendly practices
in its supply chain and retail network operations. Our
overall sales revenue of FY2023 has experienced a slightly
decrease as compared to FY2022.

During our daily operations, we are subject to the Product
Eco-responsibility Ordinance and Motor Vehicle Idling
(Fixed Penalty) Ordinance in Hong Kong, environmental
laws in Macau (i.e. Section 2/91/M), and Law of the PRC
on Prevention and Control of Pollution from Environmental
Noise, Environmental Protection Law of the PRC, Laws of
the PRC on the Prevention and Control of Environmental
Pollution Caused by Solid Wastes and Energy Conservation
Law of the PRC in Mainland China. We strictly adhere to
all applicable environmental laws and regulations and
we have not identified any material non-compliance with
the aforesaid laws and regulations during the Reporting
Period.

We make use of the past consumption data for
environmental target setting regarding the energy, water
and waste. Employees will continue to be reminded to
minimise unnecessary consumption of resources, and
shall continue to implement green efforts in reducing
resource consumption from its source. Relevant emission
figures will be monitored periodically to ensure the Group
is on track to achieve the reduction target.
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Use of Resources

Owing to the nature of our retail business, our operations
do not have issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose
was noted during the Reporting Period. Fuels, electricity
and packaging bags are the major resources we use in
our luxury watch retail business.

Energy consumption

During the Reporting Period, the types and amount of
energy consumed were as follows:

FY2023
—p-=

—_—

Unit Amount

Energy Type RRER Efy EE
Electricity & kWh

TR 1,890,713

Diesel m Liter 27 28,699

Petrol T Liter 27 16,461

To minimise energy consumption in its retail stores and
offices, the Company advocates the efficient use of energy
by adopting green technologies and close monitoring
on operations. As a retailer of luxury watches, the most
significant use of energy has arisen from the electricity
consumption in retail stores for air conditioning and
lighting. The Company monitors technology advancements
in lighting systems and upgrades the systems accordingly
so as to increase overall operating efficiency. For
instance, all traditional light bulbs have been replaced
with LED ones, which are more energy efficient and can
save energy, for the shop renovation in Mainland China in
early 2021.

4 The Company’s diesel consumption increased compared with
last year, due to the growth of the Company’s business and
included a new motor vehicle in the Reporting Period.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited R A XTE BB R A 7

(Per square foot

&R fEHA
ERNTEXHZ2ME B2 ERER
HA P 2 2 BUE A 7KOIR 7 T S B AR F] RE e
B EORBEXKBEMAARBEER
TEXHBZERER

FEBE

ZWPA - FrEEERERENEENT ¢

FY2022

i :3 S

Intensity Intensity
(Per square foot

of operating

of operating

locations) locations)
BE(BYH Amount BE(BYA
REXtH) 8 REZME)
26.78 1,977,017 27.84

0.41 11,617 0.19

0.23 22,910 0.34
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Our energy use efficiency target focuses on the electricity
consumption of the Company. The Company has
established a five years reduction target for electricity
intensity of our core business by approximately 35% in
total. The estimated reduction target was established by
comparing the data of FY2021 as the baseline year. By
comparing FY2023 with FY2021, we already experienced

MM RERAMEBIEFERR RN
BE - ARFIEHERLERREERES
SRRIEAI35% MAFHIZ BB EREE
F(ZEZ—UF) MEIEREEHFTAR
BEEE - T _-UFNRETREER -
T —BERMAD29.17% ° AN 0 ARQ A
SRETERGEEERE  UoTEREREX

29.17% reduction for the electricity intensity. In addition, m °©

the Company measures and records the energy

consumption on an on-going basis to analyse its energy

consumption efficiency.

Non-hazardous waste BEZEZY

Owing to the Company’s retail business nature, no
hazardous waste was produced during the Reporting
Period. The major type of non-hazardous waste was
paper used for administrative work and the details of non-
hazardous wastes created were as follows:

ERARRTEXBK2ME - REFRHYA
VTEELAEZERY BEBREV IR
BRIBITHRIEFMA®RER  MAELES
BB

FY2023 FY2022

It Sy 2 —ToCWE
Intensity Intensity
(Per square foot (Per square foot
of operating of operating
locations) locations)
Unit Quantity  BE(E¥A Quantity — BE(8FFH
Type :Fidl By HE REXHE) #e REZEMEH)
Non-hazardous waste ~ EZREEY) tonnes A 28.07 0.00040 23.03 0.00032

As compared to FY2022, total non-hazardous waste
experiences 21.88% increase due to an increase of
total paper consumption in this Reporting Period. This is
because of the reduction of flexible work arrangement
causing the working days in FY2023 to be longer than
FY2022. We strive to adopt the following waste reduction
measures to reduce the total non-hazardous waste.

AEMBPABLEESEN  BEEEEYH
EER_ZT - _BFIEMN21.88% * LI
AREG TIELRHN RO B T - =5
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To reduce office waste paper, the Company has been
creating a paperless working environment through
increasing the use of internet system gradually. On one
hand, it reduces environmental damage; on the other hand,
it fits commercial goals, as this saves office space used
for storing hardcopies and facilitates efficient information
sharing via office network. Furthermore, double-sided
printing and copying has become compulsory in the
Company except for special circumstances with approval
obtained. Only used paper can be used as draft paper by
staff. Collection boxes have been put in place to collect
single-side used paper for reuse and other scrap paper
for recycling. These can help reduce paper consumption
and save costs substantially. To monitor the paper usage
efficiency, consumption records of paper and printing
have been regularly collected, assessed and monitored.

Our waste reduction target focuses on continuously
increasing the recycling rate within five years’ time by
comparing the data of FY2021 as the baseline year. The
amount of recycled paper for FY2022 and FY2023 are
6,310kg and 5,842kg respectively.

Use of packaging materials

We consume packaging bags and materials in our
business. During the Reporting Period, the packaging
materials consumed were as follows:

e

Packaging materials

Our data collection system for our packaging materials
include both normal packaging materials and all kinds of
shopping bags including recycled shopping bags.
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All of the packaging bags distributed to customers
are made of FSC accredited paper which are more
environmentally friendly. Furthermore, the packaging
bags are designed to fit the product size in order to
avoid excessive packaging. Packaging bags will only
be distributed upon customers’ request. Our customers
have raised awareness of reducing the consumption of
packaging materials, and some customers even do not
request for recycling bags. In FY2023, our packaging
bag consumption decreased while our recycling bag
consumption increased because of the Company’s
encouragement for using reusable eco bags.

Water consumption

We have newly collected the water consumption of Hong
Kong and Mainland China during this Reporting Period.
The water consumption is 640 m?, with the intensity value
of 0.0091 m?® per square foot of operating locations by
only considering the floor area of Hong Kong and the
Mainland China. Our water efficient targets focus on
implementing water efficiency initiatives, which include
raising the awareness of our employees to cherish the
water resources and conducting regular inspections with
timely repairs to prevent water wastage.

Emissions

Owing to the nature of our retail business, the Company
has no production activities or facilities. Therefore, there
were no sewage discharge to the environment during the
Reporting Period.
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Air emissions

We maintain vehicles for our executives and customers, as
well as for delivery purposes. Such vehicles are the major
source of our air emissions. During the Reporting Period,
our air emissions details were as follows:

R

BPRITHRABREPRENEREMNE
Mk - HETERRBERZIEIERE -
ERBAA - BAZREBBRFBOT

FY2023 FY2022

—E-=BF T MF

Unit Amount Amount

Source of emission® BERUR 5 B =8 =8
Nitrogen oxides (“NOx”) RE ([NOx]) tonnes M 0.31 0.14
Sulphur oxides (“SOx”) m%ﬂ:% (I'sox]) tonnes M 0.00069 0.00052
Particular matter (“PM”") BER T ([PM]) tonnes MA 0.029 0.012

Since we bought a vehicle for smooth business operation,
the air emissions data has experienced an increase with
comparison to FY2022. We are aware of the air emissions
generated from our use of vehicles so that we have
established internal procedures to reduce the negative
impact and ensure the compliance with the Air Pollution
Control Ordinance in Hong Kong and Environmental
Protection Law of the PRC. For example, we monitored the
vehicle conditions on a regular basis and arranged the
vehicles for annual test by the local authority.

Greenhouse gas emissions

The Company’s major business is luxury watches retailing
in different geographical areas of the Greater China
region, the major direct greenhouse gas emissions
(Scope 1 emission) of the Company came from the use
of vehicles. Our major indirect greenhouse gas emissions
(Scope 2 emission) and other indirect greenhouse
emissions (Scope 3 emission) came from the electricity
consumption and paper use of offices and retail stores
respectively. The details of the greenhouse gas emission
(“CO,e") were as follows:

5 The calculation of air emissions was based on the “Reporting

Guidance on Environmental KPIs” of the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.
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FY2023 FY2022
“ROCHE ik Skl £

Intensity Intensity

(Per square foot (Per square foot

of operating of operating

locations) locations)

Unit Quantity BE(B¥xr Quantity BE(8FF

Source of emission®  HHE® Efr #E REEH ) g2 REEHI)

Scope 17 HiE—7 tonne CO,¢ 124.50 0.0017 93.81 0.0013
W CO,e

Scope 2¢ HE_* tonne CO,e 1,098.40 0.020 1,202.10 0.020
ECO,e

Scope 3° HE=" tonne CO,e 74.21 0.0011 50.26 0.00071
ECO,e

Total 5t tonne CO,¢ 1,297.16 0.018 1,346.17 0.019
HCO,e

Our total Scope 1, 2 & 3 emissions in FY2023 has
experienced 5.61% reduction as compared with baseline
year (FY2021).

6

The calculation of greenhouse gas emissions was
based on the “Greenhouse Gas Protocol” published by
World Resources Institute and World Business Council
on Sustainable Development, “Reporting Guidance on
Environmental KPIs” published by the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited, “Guidelines to Account for and Report
on Greenhouse Gas Emission and Removals for Buildings
(Commercial, Residential or Institutional Purposes) in Hong
Kong” by Hong Kong Environmental Protection Department
and Electrical and Mechanical Services Department, “CLP
Sustainability Report 2022” by CLP Holdings Limited, “HONG
KONG Electric Sustainability Report 2022” by Hong Kong
Electric Company Limited, “CEM Sustainability Report 2021”
by Companhia de Electricidade de Macau, “fE EXRBiEH
TrEAERBHRZER ERRERERE (A7) published by
the National Development and Reform Commission of the
PRC, and “2020 FE AR P HER K BHELERIEREA T
published by the Ministry of Ecology and Environment of the
PRC.

Scope 1 emission, which include carbon emission from
vehicles.

Scope 2 emission, which include carbon emission from
electricity consumption by the Company.

Scope 3 emission, which include carbon emission from paper
usage by the Company.

BAR—ZE_=FNHE— — K=K
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We are cautious about the environment and the carbon
footprints in our operations. We have put into practice
certain environmentally friendly initiatives in reducing
the greenhouse gas emission. We also strictly track our
established Group-wide five years reduction target for
the Scope 1, 2 & 3 emissions of our core business by
approximately 13% in total. The estimated reduction target
was established by comparing the data of FY2021 as the
baseline year.

Environmental Impacts from Investments

As most of our retail stores are located at central business
areas, the Company endeavours to minimise its impacts
on the environment by identifying, assessing and
managing environmental impacts resulting from its various
operational activities regularly. For any significant impacts
identified, the Company will immediately formulate and
execute the corresponding mitigation measures and
monitor its effectiveness continuously to ensure the
impacts have been resolved.

External lighting

As a luxury watch retailer, the Company uses standout
advertising signs to attract customers, which may create
certain level of light. In view of that, the Company has
signed up to the “Charter on External Lighting” launched
by the Environment Bureau of the Government of the
Hong Kong Special Administration Region such that all
advertising signs of the retails stores would be switched
off between 11p.m. and 7a.m. on the following day. Apart
from reducing the impacts of light pollution, these actions
also help to reduce energy consumption throughout the
operations.

Renovation works

Renovation works are carried out regularly to ensure our
retail shops offer pleasant environment to customers
and to increase our bargaining power when negotiating
rental terms with landlords. As such, noise and dust
will be resulted from the renovation works and affect
the neighbourhood. Although all renovation works are
outsourced to third party contractors which the Company
has no direct control, we require our contractors to
execute all possible measures in mitigating the negative
impacts on the neighbourhood, for example, requiring
renovation works to be carried out during non-peak hours
and installing barriers to prevent dust and noise from
spreading out.
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Climate Change
Climate resilience

The management of the Company has a controlling
interest and will take adequate steps to build its resilience
to climate change by identifying and managing climate
change risks and opportunities and by developing
strategies which are in line with global best practices
to adapt to and mitigate the impact of climate change
on its operations. We acknowledge that both acute and
chronic physical risks in our principal operating locations
will impose an impact on our operations, which our retail
shops cannot open due to extreme weathers. To maintain
the health and safety of our employees, the Company has
established internal guideline of the work arrangement
under extreme weather conditions.

In order to mitigate the impact of climate change, we
reduced the carbon footprint through the establishment
and implementation of long-term carbon emissions
reduction targets. We encourage employees, suppliers
and customers to reduce carbon emissions in their daily
operations wherever practicable. We will adopt industry
best practices to improve energy efficiency in our
operations.
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The directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company as
well as engages in watch trading. The principal activities
of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements. The Company and its
subsidiaries are collectively referred to as the “Group”.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 87 to 88.

An interim dividend of 7.8 Hong Kong cents per share and
a special dividend of 23.5 Hong Kong cents per share
were declared and paid to the shareholders during the
year. A final dividend of 7.5 Hong Kong cents per share
and a special dividend of 22.0 Hong Kong cents per share
being proposed by the directors are subject to approval
by the shareholders in the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

RESERVES

As at 31 March 2023, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution consisted of contributed surplus of
HK$122,183,000, dividend reserve of HK$143,771,000
and retained profits of HK$16,696,000.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the contributed surplus account of the Company is
available for distribution. However, the Company cannot
declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of
contributed surplus if:

(a) to do so would render the Company unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be
less than its liabilities.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group incurred approximately
HK$49.0 million on the purchase of property, plant and
equipment. Details of these and other movements in
property, plant and equipment of the Group during the
year are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to
the date of this report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Yeung Him Kit, Dennis
Madam Yeung Man Yee, Shirley
Mr. Lam Hing Lun, Alain

Independent non-executive directors:

Dr. Li Sau Hung, Eddy
Mr. Choi Man Chau, Michael
Mr. Sun Dai Hoe, Harold

In accordance with Bye-law 87(1) of the Company’s Bye-
laws, Mr. Lam Hing Lun, Alain and Mr. Choi Man Chau,
Michael, retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election.

None of the directors has a service contract with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

Details of the remuneration paid by the Group to the
directors of the Company and the senior management of
the Group for the year ended 31 March 2023 are set out in
note 11 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2023, the interests of the directors of
the Company in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company, as recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 352 of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFQO”), or as otherwise notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies
were as follows:

EEHRAZRSERRAR

REFBEF LMEGRD ([E5RMERK
f511) £ 352 IFMERE 2 B Fracsx -

\
E\
N

ZEZ=F=A=1T—8 " ARAIZE

ERARE 2B KA S 2
@ HBPBELTRAREFETESIZH
SETHEMEARRNEEHMER SR
BRAR](THERZPT]) 2 #Eastn |

Number of shares held

FERn8A
Percentage of
Total issued share
Personal Family Corporate number capital of the
interest interest interest of shares Company
EARRACHST
Name of director BEpg AR RikER AL $ R g REBAL
Mr. Yeung Him Kit, Dennis BhEE 4,084,000 — (note (a)) 4,084,000 0.84%
(Wit(a)
Madam Yeung Man Yee, Shirley 88L&+ 1,200,000 221,161 (note (b)) 1,421,161 0.29%
(Wit (b))
Mr. Sun Dai Hoe, Harold N ¥k — — 3,200,000 3,200,000 0.66%
(note (c))
(it (c))
Notes: Bzt -

(a) Mr. Yeung Him Kit, Dennis and his wife are the beneficial
owners of an aggregate of about 16.7% of the issued share
capital of Realtower Holdings Limited, the beneficial owner
of 10% of the issued share capital of Furama Investments
Limited, which in turn is the beneficial owner of 80% of
the issued share capital of Datsun Holdings Limited. He
is also the beneficial owner of about 14.3% of the issued
share capital of Real Champ Limited, the beneficial owner
of 20% of the issued share capital of Datsun Holdings
Limited. Datsun Holdings Limited is the beneficial owner
of 127,776,000 shares in the Company. He is also the
beneficial owner of 2.5% of the issued share capital of Y.H.
Chan Limited, which is the beneficial owner of 25% of the
issued share capital of Furama Investments Limited. Y.H.
Chan Limited also directly holds 388,561 shares in the
Company.
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Notes. (Continued)

(b) Madam Yeung Man Yee, Shirley is the beneficial owner
of about 13.3% of the issued share capital of Realtower
Holdings Limited.

(c) Mr. Sun Dai Hoe, Harold is a director and has 24.5% interest
in Sun International Limited, which is the beneficial owner
of 3,200,000 shares in the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2023, none of
the directors of the Company had any interest or short
positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded
in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of
the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME, SHARE AWARD
SCHEME AND DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO
ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

(a) 2013 Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 13
August 2013, a share option scheme was adopted
with effect on 3 November 2013 (the “2013 Share
Option Scheme”).

Wizt - (&)
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Under the 2013 Share Option Scheme, options may
be granted to (i) any director, employee or consultant
of the Group or a company in which the Company
holds an equity interest or a subsidiary of such
company (“Affiliate”); or (ii) any discretionary trust
whose discretionary objects include any director,
employee or consultant of the Group or an Affiliate;
or (iii) a company beneficially owned by any director,
employee or consultant of the Group or an Affiliate; or
(iv) any customer, supplier or adviser whose service
to the Group or business with the Group contributes
or is expected to contribute to the business or
operation of the Group. The purpose of the 2013
Share Option Scheme is to attract and retain quality
personnel and other persons to provide incentive to
them to contribute to the business and operation of
the Group. The total number of shares available for
issue under the 2013 Share Option Scheme both as
at 1 April 2022 and 31 March 2023 was 57,061,022
shares, representing about 11.7% of the issued share
capital of the Company on the date of this report. No
eligible persons shall be granted an option in any
12-month period for such number of shares (issued
and to be issued) which in aggregate would exceed
1% of the share capital of the Company in issue on
the last day of such 12-month period unless approval
of the shareholders of the Company has been
obtained in accordance with the Listing Rules. The
exercisable period is determined by the directors of
the Company, which shall not be more than 10 years
from the date of grant, and may include a minimum
period for which the options must be held before
it can be exercised. The exercise price per share
payable on the exercise of an option equals to the
highest of:

(a) the nominal value of one share;

(b) the closing price per share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of
grant; and

(c) the average closing price per share as quoted in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for
the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant.

The 2013 Share Option Scheme will remain in force
until 2 November 2023.
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(b)

No option has been granted, exercised or lapsed
under the 2013 Share Option Scheme since its
effective date on 3 November 2013 and there was no
outstanding share option under such scheme as at
31 March 2023.

2022 Share Award Scheme

On 27 June 2022 (the “Adoption Date”), the Company
adopted an employees’ share award scheme (the
“2022 Share Award Scheme”). The 2022 Share Award
Scheme shall be valid and effective for a term of 10
years commencing from the Adoption Date.

Under the 2022 Share Award Scheme, any employee,
executive, officer, or directors of the Company or of
any subsidiary are eligible for participation in the
scheme. The purposes and objectives of the 2022
Share Award Scheme are to recognise and motivate
the contributions by certain eligible persons and
to provide them with incentives in order to retain
them for the continual operation and development
of the Group and to help the Group in attracting
and recruiting suitable personnel as additional
employees to further the operation and development
of the Group, and to provide the eligible persons
with a direct economic interest in attaining the long-
term business objectives of the Group. The board
of directors shall not make any further award which
will result in: (i) the number of shares awarded by
the board under the scheme exceeding 10% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at the
Adoption Date; or (ii) the number of the shares held
by public shareholders falls below the minimum
percentage as prescribed under the Listing Rules.
The maximum number of shares which may be
awarded to each selected person under the scheme
shall not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the Adoption Date. The total number
of awards available for grant under the 2022 Share
Award Scheme was 48,735,822 shares both as at the
Adoption Date and 31 March 2023, representing 10%
of the issued share capital of the Company as at the
date of this report.

For further details of the principal terms of the 2022
Share Award Scheme, please refer to the Company’s
announcement on 27 June 2022.

No share award has been granted under the 2022
Share Award Scheme since the Adoption Date.

(b)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2023, according to the register maintained
by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, the
following persons (not being a director or chief executive
of the Company) had interests in the share capital of the
Company:

FERR

AR RVIRIRE % R 101 25 336 1A E
FEZEEMMT R-B-=%=5
=+—B LTAL(EHAEAAZE
BABBTRAR) RARABRAD A
s

Percentage of
issued share
Number of capital of the

shares held Company
EARRE T
Name of shareholder BREREE FiERGEEB AT
Yeung Ming Biu B EFE 155,754,144 31.96%
Datsun Holdings Limited Datsun Holdings Limited 127,776,000 26.22%
Furama Investments Limited Furama Investments Limited
(Note 1) (Htat 1) 127,776,000 26.22%
Realtower Holdings Limited Realtower Holdings Limited
(Note 1) (Hiat 1) 127,776,000 26.22%
Ntasian Discovery Master Fund  Ntasian Discovery Master Fund 29,164,000 5.11% (Note 2)
(Kt 2)
TIG Advisors LLC TIG Advisors LLC 16,134,000 5.05% (Note 3)
(K1:iZ3)
Notes: it -

1. Realtower Holdings Limited holds 55% of the issued share
capital of Furama Investments Limited, which holds 80%
of the issued share capital of Datsun Holdings Limited.
Accordingly, both Realtower Holdings Limited and Furama
Investments Limited are deemed under the SFO to be
interested in the 127,776,000 shares in the Company held
by Datsun Holdings Limited.

2. This percentage is according to the latest notice filed under
the SFO on 10 June 2016 on the basis of 570,610,224
shares then in issue.

3.  This percentage is according to the latest notice filed under
the SFO on 15 January 2008 on the basis of 319,253,000
shares then in issue.

Save as disclosed above, at 31 March 2023, there was
no person who had any interests or short position in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company according
to the register maintained by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive directors an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company considers that all of the independent non-
executive directors are independent.

INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

There were no transactions, arrangements or contracts
of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director or a
connected entity of a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisting
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

There is no contract of significance between the Group
and a controlling shareholder of the Company (as defined
in the Listing Rules) or any of its subsidiaries, including
for the provision of services to the Group.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate purchases during the year attributable
to the Group’s five largest suppliers comprised
approximately 94% of the Group’s total purchases while
the purchases attributable to the Group’s largest supplier
was approximately 89% of the Group’s total purchases.

The aggregate sales during the year attributable to the
Group’s five largest customers comprised approximately
1.0% of the Group’s total sales while the sales attributable
to the Group’s largest customer was approximately 0.3%
of the Group’s total sales.

None of the directors, their associates or any
shareholders, which to the knowledge of the directors
owned more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital, had any interest in the share capital of any of the
five largest customers or suppliers of the Group.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made donations totalling
HK$14,000.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices as adopted by
the Group are set out in the Corporate Governance Report
on pages 12 to 35.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had a total of about 580
employees.

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is
set by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their
merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are
decided by the Remuneration Committee, having regard
to the Group’s operating results, individual performance
and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme and
a share award scheme as incentives to directors and
employees of the Group, details of the schemes are set
out in the paragraph headed “Share option scheme, share
award scheme and directors’ rights to acquire shares or
debentures” above and in note 32 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE AND REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

Details of the Company’s Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee are set out in the Corporate
Governance Report on pages 21 to 25.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements during the year in the share capital
of the Company are set out in note 31 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata
basis to existing shareholders.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Bye-laws of the Company provide that the directors of
the Company shall be indemnified out of the assets and
profits of the Company against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which they may incur or
sustain by reason of any act done or omitted in or about
the execution of their duty except in respect of any of
their wilful negligence, wilful default, fraud or dishonesty.
The Group has taken out insurance to cover Directors’
liabilities to third parties.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of its directors as at
the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual
report, the percentage of the Company’s shares in the
hands of the public exceeds 25% of the Company’s total
number of issued shares.
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AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general
meeting of the Company to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Yeung Him Kit, Dennis
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong, 20 June 2023

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited R A XTE BB R A 7

¥ B Em

ARBERERBFASG LIRERBRE
BRE e MEMT GFTMITARARF 2K
2RED o

RREFS

TE
BITHELE

BEE—E-_=FA=+H



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B 2B RS

Deloitte

To the Shareholders of
Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Oriental Watch Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set
out on pages 87 to 226, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 March 20283,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 March 2023, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (*“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that,

in our
professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial

FERETER

FARETFHRERERMANERHE - &
RE ARGV BRERNBARSERN
B aLERRERMEABREEM
BHRELEABRRETRED - AT
SHELEHEHEBNER -

statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these

matters.

Key audit matter

BRETSE

Net realisable value assessment of watches

F ik i) BB FE T

We identified net realisable value assessment
of watches included in inventories as a key
audit matter due to the significance of amount
of watches to the consolidated statement of
financial position as at the end of the reporting
period, and significant judgements and estimate
by management in determining the net realisable

value for watches.

m##%# &%Xmi W%#R%%%%K
&5t W% ﬁﬁﬁﬁkﬁ
u$1$ﬁﬁaﬁ§\§u+$lg\ °

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated
financial statements, the management of the
Group identifies slow-moving watches with
reference to the ageing analysis. The net
realisable value of the watches are determined
by considering the saleability of watches based
on current market conditions, pricing policies
and strategies, as well as the historical/latest
available sales information of similar watches.
As at 31 March 2023, the carrying amount of
watches (net of allowance) is HK$411,148,000.
The reversal of allowance for slow-moving
watches during the year and the carrying amount
of watches (net of allowance) at 31 March 2023
are set out in notes 10 and 23 to the consolidated
financial statements, respectively.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BN EFTNAHBERETSRETER

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of
watches included:

BPEETTERABENREF B

e  Obtaining an understanding of the Group’s
allowance policy on watches and evaluating
management’s process in identifying slow-
moving watches and determining the
allowance for watches;

AEEREER

TR BEEMFEERIE
R SH T 8k K E?ﬁ%%mﬁf

° Evaluating the allowance policy adopted by
the management with reference to current
market conditions, historical and current
sales information, ageing and conditions of
inventories;
%F*ﬁ%%%%ﬁﬁﬁ%~ﬂ&&%%%%
BE - TEBRKXER i N 17 B AR L BR AR
R IR

° Evaluating the reasonableness of the
estimation of the net realisable value of
watches with reference to sales subsequent
to the end of the reporting period, on a
sample basis.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e  (Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies

used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’'s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance
with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B 2B RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Mr. Tsang Yiu Chung.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

20 June 2023

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited R A XTE BB R A 7
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GEBEERHEMAEZERKER

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BE—E-_=F=ZF=+—HILFE

Revenue
Cost of goods sold

Gross profit
Other income
Other gains and losses

Impairment losses (recognised)
reversed under expected

credit loss model, net
Distribution and selling
expenses

— Expenses related to leases
— Other distribution and

selling expenses
Administrative expenses
Finance costs

Share of results of associates
Share of result of a joint venture f&

Profit before taxation
Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Yo 2k

5
H g\

Hinlas R
BEEEERERAT
(W) B R
18 %
SR ER S

— HEZHEBARX
— By R HE

F A4 A

Other comprehensive (expense) 2 m (A% ) W

income
[tem that will not be

reclassified to profit or loss:
Change in fair value of
equity instruments at
fair value through other
comprehensive income

(“FVTOCI”)

Items that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or

loss:

Exchange difference arising
on translation of foreign

operations

Change in fair value of debt
instruments at FVTOCI

Release on redemption of

debt instruments at
FVTOCI

Other comprehensive (expense) ERNEH M2 (X ) Wz

income for the year

Total comprehensive income

for the year

BT EEFHEEE

ZIEE -

BAFER AEAM
2EWE (TERQ
FEFARMEE
W) ZIRATA
ZRFEE

HEQEEF HEE

BmEHAH -

BEGINERFTEE
T ERE

BRRAFER AR
eI ALY
TRAZRFEES
BER A FEEA
Hit 2 Wa 2
B T AR #E[E

FAZHEWEAER

Notes

it

16

10
12

2023 2022
—=E-= —ZE--
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
3,704,677 3,639,774
(2,515,967) (2,459,489)
1,188,710 1,180,285
30,538 42,750
4,367 17,482
(1,834) 18,161
(203,629) (166,057)
(323,461) (338,661)
(252,912) (243,704)
(14,612) (12,033)
13,116 14,789
(225) 425
440,058 513,437
(144,534) (150,461)
295,524 362,976
(77) 1,128
(85,700) 39,417
(44) (172)
(16) (10)
(85,837) 40,363
209,687 403,339
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
SEREREMEEHKER

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BE-_T_=F=F=+—HIFE

Profit for the year attributable to: LA A+ FEE E A% F
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income

attributable to:

Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Earnings per share
Basic and diluted

ZN/NCTE 2PN
FEPRRHE 21

A TALTEEZERE
HaER
RRBEBA
FEYE R 28

B &F

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited R A XTE BB R A 7

2023 2022
—_E_= —E-=
Note HK$’000 HK$000
ok FET FET
295,432 362,574
92 402
295,524 362,976
209,661 402,916
26 423
209,687 403,339

14 60.62 HK cents
AL

74.40 HK cents
Rl




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

mE MR R

At 31 March 2023
R-E-—=F=ZH=+—H

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets
Investment properties
Deposits for acquisition
of property, plant and
equipment
Interests in associates
Interest in a joint venture
Equity instruments at FVTOCI

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
("FVTPL")

Loan receivables

Deferred tax assets

Property rental deposits

Current assets
Inventories
Loan receivables
Trade and other receivables
Debt instruments at FVTOCI

Financial assets at FVTPL

Taxation recoverable
Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Contract liabilities
Lease liabilities
Taxation payable
Bank loan

Net current assets

Total assets less current
liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities
Lease liabilities

Net assets
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18
19

20

22
30

23
25
21
22
26

27
28
29

30
28

2022

== —ET--
HK$’000 /‘/K$EOOQ
FET FET
246,635 244,148
314,213 415,289
8,261 —
2,400 4,477
81,552 83,135
24,430 26,688
13,359 13,436
15,007 15,616
20,038 —
4,503 4,248
32,169 36,835
762,567 843,872
422,202 483,625
41,364 46,319
295,359 205,097
— 7,158
14,664 5,374
4,319 5,388
1,078,783 1,282,442
1,856,691 2,035,403
277,713 270,825
20,677 26,817
121,724 114,744
46,654 44,975
— 28,708
466,768 486,069
1,389,923 1,549,334
2,152,490 2,393,206
26,162 30,373
230,397 326,666
256,559 357,039
1,895,931 2,036,167
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e AR R R

At 31 March 2023
R-B-=#=F=1—-H

2023 2022
—E== = S
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
M it F#ET FHET
Capital and reserves BAR NG

Share capital R 7 31 48,736 48,736
Reserves B 1,846,009 1,986,271

Equity attributable to owners of ZARQFIEA ABIGER
the Company 1,894,745 2,035,007
Non-controlling interests VR 1,186 1,160
Total equity B R 1,895,931 2,036,167

The consolidated financial statements on pages 87 to 226  #HWRFES7THEF 226 B 2 AP BHRERLK
were approved and authorised for issue by the board of ZBEBEFE@R _TE_=—FXA-_+HMLENRE
directors on 20 June 2023 and are signed on its behalf by:  # T3 - YR TIEBRAERE :

Yeung Him Kit, Dennis Yeung Man Yee, Shirley
BOTEE B8E
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
HiTEE HITEF

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited R A XTE BB R A 7



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BE—E-_=F=ZF=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

EARERAER
Share Capital Asset Non-
Share Share option  Statutory redemption Capital revaluation ~ Special Translation  Retained  Dividend controlling
capital  premium reserve reserve resgé\;; reserve vesgﬁf\g reserve reserve profits reserve  Sub-total interests Total
BE  ROEE BREGRE iERE BERE EARE  EMRE  RRIRE  RERE  REEN KRG N FERER &t
HK§000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS00O  HKS000  HKS000  HK$'000
AT AT AT AT A7 AT AT AT AT AT FAT AT A7 BT
(nqtg c) (note b) (note a/
(Hi#c) (#b) (Hiia)
At 1 April 2021
4873 303,250 79,388 42,384 425 840 2,721 5,180 58462 1,260,039 190,070 1,991,495 (946) 1,990,549
Profit for the year - — — — — - - - — 362574 — 362574 402 362976
Change in fair value of
equity instruments at
FVToCH
- — — - — — 1128 — - - — 1,128 — 1,128
Change in fair value of
debt instruments at
FvToc
g - - - - - - (172) - - - - (172) - (172)
Exchange difference BERNER
arising on translation of FﬁEEZ
foreign operations EXER = - - = = o o o 39,396 o - 39,396 21 39,417
Release on redemption & Fﬁ ATEHA
of debtinstrumentsat ~ Efp2ENEZ
FVTOCH ERTARER = S = = = = (10) = - - - (10) - (10)
Total comprehensive FREAKERE
income for the year - - - - - - 946 - 39396 362,574 — 402916 423 403,339
2021 final dividend paid =~ BR%-F--%
KRS - - - - - - - - - —  (58483)  (58,483) —  (58,480)
2021 special dividend paid 2JF%—
- - - - - - - - - —  (131587)  (131587) - (131,587)
2022 interim dividend
declared/paid
- - - - - - - - - (#9) - (#1913 - (41913
2022 interim special
dividend declared/paid
- - - - - - - - - (125738) - (125738) - (125738)
2022 final dividend
proposed — - - — — — — — —  (4873) 48736 - - —
2022 special dividend
proposed - — — — - - - - —  (148,644) 148644 — — -
Transfer — - - 34,874 — — — — — (34,874) - - - —
Lapse of share options - — (79,388 - - - — — - 79,388 - - - -
Acquisition of additional
interests in a subsidiary — - - - — — — — — (1,683) - (1683) 1,683 —
At 31 March 2022
48,736 303,250 - 7258 425 840 3,667 5,180 97858  1,300413 197380 2,035,007 1,160 2,036,167
Profit for the year - - - - - - - - — 295432 — 295432 92 295524
Change in fair value of
equity instruments at
FvToc
= = = = = = Wi = = = = i = (™)
Change in fair value of
debt instruments at
TOCI
- - - - - - (44) - - - - (44) - (44)
Exchange difference )
arising on translation of Pﬁé
foreign operations ERER - - - - - - - —  (85634) - —  (85,634) (66)  (85,700)
Release on redemption F@Fﬁ AT A
of debt instruments at - Efp2ENzZ
\TOCH BEIARER - - - - - - (16) - - - - (16) - (16)
Total comprehensive ER2ENGEE
income for the year - - - - - - (137) - (65,634) 295,432 — 209,661 26 209,687
2022 final dividend paid
- - - - - - - - - —  (48,736)  (48,736) - (48,736)
2022 special dividend paid EE@ TIF
- - - - - - - - - —  (148,644)  (148,644) —  (148,644)
2023 interim dividend
declared/paid
- - - - - - - - — (38,019 — (38,014 - (38,019)
2023 interim special
dividend declared/paid
- - - - - - - - — (114529 —  (114529) - (114,529)
2023 final dividend
proposed - - - - - - - - - (36,552) 36,552 - - -
2023 special dividend
proposed - - - - - - - - —  (107219) 107219 - - -
Transfer - - - 35,658 - - - - - (35,658) - - - -
At 31 March 2023
48,736 303,250 - 112916 425 840 3,530 5,180 12,24 1263873 143,771 1,894,745 1,186 1,895,931
Annual Report 2023 =% — = F F 3§
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BE—E-_=F=F=+—HILFE

Notes:

(a)

The special reserve of the Group comprises the difference
between the nominal amount of the share capital issued
by the Company and the nominal amount of the issued
share capital and special reserves of those companies
which were acquired by the Company pursuant to a group
reorganisation in 1993. The special reserves of these
acquired subsidiaries represent the credit arising on
reduction of their paid up share capital under the group
reorganisation.

Subsequent to NEBEBEEZRMHBRAF (“Li Loong”)
becoming a subsidiary of the Company in May 2013, the
Group further subscribed 6,000,000 shares of Li Loong in
September 2013, for a cash consideration of New Taiwan
Dollar (“NT$”) 60,000,000 (equivalent to HK$15,698,000).
The Group’s equity interest in Li Loong increased from 90%
to 96%. This is accounted for as a deemed acquisition
of additional interests in a subsidiary and has been
recognised as capital reserve.

In accordance with relevant laws and regulations for
foreign investment enterprises in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”), the PRC subsidiaries are required
to transfer 10% of their profit after taxation applicable to
enterprises established in the PRC to the statutory reserve.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited R AF X{T& B AR A A

HieE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
HEBRERER

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BE—E-_=F=ZF=+—HILFE

2023 2022
—s=-= B
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Operating activities BEER
Profit before taxation B B & A 440,058 513,437
Adjustments for: BATIEE EH A -
Depreciation of property, plant Y% - HER RERIE
and equipment ZITE 43,611 38,245
Depreciation of right-of-use FREEEZTE
assets 136,662 127,166
Impairment loss recognised under  FEER{EEEIEBERT
expected credit loss, net R EE BT 1,834 (18,161)
Gain arising from termination of MIEBEES 2 s
leases — (52)
Gain on redemption of debt fE R A AT AEAM
instruments at FVTOCI 2HKEZEFTIAR
Z e (16) (10)
Reversal of allowance on FERBREFE
inventories, net (24,394) (151)
Interest expense B 14,612 12,033
Interest income FEWA (14,948) (18,729)
(Gain) loss on disposal/written e MR - e
off of property, plant and REEz (W) B8
equipment (1,616) 4,048
Gain on change in fair value of HEMERFEZED
investment properties 2 W= (65) —
Fair value loss (gain) on financial BEAFEFABRZ
assets at FVTPL TREEZATFEZ
EE (lam) 1,710 (1,223)
Fair value gain on derivative BATHEFABRZ
financial instruments at FVTPL, TASR I A
net N EWEFE = (13,318)
Fair value gain on loan BRAFEFABRZ
receivables at FVTPL BWERZATFEZ
W 5 (3,384) (2,368)
Share of results of associates JE(REE RR & (13,116) (14,789)
Share of result of a joint venture ElE—REEegEArZ
Epr 225 (425)
Annual Report 2023 =% — = F F 3§
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GERIMER

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BR-—F_=F=F=+—HIFE

Operating cash flows before
movements in working capital

Decrease in inventories

(Increase) decrease in trade and
other receivables

Increase (decrease) in trade and
other payables

(Decrease) increase in contract
liabilities

Cash generated from operations

Income taxes paid in Hong Kong

Income taxes paid in the PRC

Income taxes paid in other
jurisdictions

Net cash from operating activities

Investing activities

Advance to third parties as loan
receivables

Repayment from loan receivable

Purchase of property, plant and
equipment

Purchase of investment properties

Purchase of financial assets at
FVTPL

Deposits paid for acquisition of
property, plant and equipment

Refund of (payments for) rental
deposits

Interest received

Dividends received from associates

Proceeds from redemption of debt
instruments at FVTOCI

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of loan
receivable at FVTPL

Proceeds from disposal of financial
assets at FVTPL

Purchase of equity instruments at
FVTOCI

Proceeds from disposal of equity
instruments at FVTOCI

Acquisition of interests in
associates

Settlement of derivative financial
instruments at FVTPL

Net cash used in investing activities

LEECEPH 2KERS
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Oriental Watch Holdings Limited R AF X{T& B AR A A

2023 2022
—_E_-= —_E-—

HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FETT
581,173 625,703
70,160 148,569
(104,814) 113,855
25,226 (38,708)
(6,140) 22,315
565,605 871,734
(1,160) (8,945)
(135,015) (127,284)
(7,456) (2,840)
421,974 732,665
(58,796) (28,708)
47,926 18,566
(44,563) (68,352)
(8,196) =
(10,391) (19,390)
(2,400) (4,477)
4,479 (11,605)
12,452 13,239
12,163 6,841
7114 1,315
3,120 79

— 23,733

— 5,659
— (7,810)

— 27
— (6,000)
— (682)
(37,092) (77,565)




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

= A 2= =2
MEEERER
For the year ended 31 March 2023
BE-_E-_=F=ZFA=+—HILFE

Financing activities
Dividends paid
Repayment of lease liabilities
Repayment of bank loans
New bank loan raised
Interest paid on lease liabilities
Interest paid on bank loans

Net cash used in financing activities

Net (decrease) increase in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of the year

Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes

Cash and cash equivalents at the
end of the year, represented by:
bank balances and cash

BE LB

EfRE
EEHEAB
BRIBRITER
FERITE R
ENHERENE
EfIRITERH B

BETDHEL B2 FE
e RERBSERY
T
FNZREREANLIER
XD pE
FIBERERRS

HE Bl RITEBRK
Be

2023 2022
—E-= —E-F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHT FET
(363,137) (344,504)
(124,295) (113,015)
(28,708) (17,525)
— 28,708
(14,510) (11,406)
(102) (627)
(530,752) (458,369)
(145,870) 196,731
1,282,442 1,061,320
(57,789) 24,391
1,078,783 1,282,442
Annual Report 2023 =% — = F F 3§



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eI HRR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023
P FE-—=F=F=+—HIFE

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company
with limited liability and acts as an investment holding
company as well as engaged in watch trading. The
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set
out in note 39. The shares of the Company are listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). The address of the registered
office and principal place of business of the Company
is detailed in the corporate information section of the
annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) which is also the
functional currency of the Company.

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) AND
AGENDA DECISION OF THE IFRS
INTERPRETATIONS COMMITTEE (THE
“COMMITTEE”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the
following amendments to HKFRSs issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“"HKICPA") for the first time, which are mandatorily
effective for the Group’s annual period beginning on
1 April 2022 for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19 Related Rent Concessions
beyond 30 June 2021

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment —
Proceeds before Intended Use

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2018 - 2020

96 Oriental Watch Holdings Limited R A XTE BB R A 7
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR M A

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BE—E-_=F=ZF=+—HILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”’) AND
AGENDA DECISION OF THE IFRS
INTERPRETATIONS COMMITTEE (THE
“COMMITTEE”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (Continued)

In addition, the Group applied the agenda decision
of the Committee of the International Accounting
Standards Board, including HKAS 2 “Inventories —
Cost necessary to sell inventories”.

Except as described below, the application of the
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had
no material impact on the Group’s financial positions
and performance for the current and prior years and/
or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.

Application of the agenda decision of the
Committee — cost necessary to sell inventories
(HKAS 2 “Inventories™)

In June 2021, the Committee, through its agenda
decision, clarified the costs an entity should
include as “estimated costs necessary to make the
sale” when determining the net realisable value of
inventories. In particular, whether such costs should
be limited to those that are incremental to the sale.
The Committee concluded that the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale should not be limited to
those that are incremental but should also include
costs that an entity must incur to sell its inventories
including those that are not incremental to a
particular sale.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023
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APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”’) AND
AGENDA DECISION OF THE IFRS
INTERPRETATIONS COMMITTEE (THE
“COMMITTEE”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (Continued)

Application of the agenda decision of the
Committee — cost necessary to sell inventories
(HKAS 2 “Inventories”) (Continued)

The Group’s accounting policy prior to the
Committee’s agenda decision was to determine
the net realisable value of inventories taking
into consideration incremental costs only. Upon
application of the Committee’'s agenda decision, the
Group changed its accounting policy to determine
the net realisable value of inventories taking into
consideration both incremental costs and other cost
necessary to sell inventories. The new accounting
policy has been applied retrospectively.

The application of the Committee’s agenda
decision has had no material impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR M A

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BE-_E-_=F=ZFA=+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”’) AND
AGENDA DECISION OF THE IFRS
INTERPRETATIONS COMMITTEE (THE
“COMMITTEE”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new
and amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 17 (including the Insurance Contracts'
October 2020 and
February 2022
Amendments to HKFRS 17)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback®

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and
related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)°

Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants®
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies'

and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates’

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction'

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2023

e Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a
date to be determined

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2024
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For the year ended 31 March 2023
BE T _=F=F=+—HIFE

2.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”’) AND
AGENDA DECISION OF THE IFRS
INTERPRETATIONS COMMITTEE (THE
“COMMITTEE”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (Continued)

The directors of the Company anticipate that
the application of above new and amendments
to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable
future.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA. For the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements, information is
considered material if such information is reasonably
expected to influence decisions made by primary
user. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and by the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for
certain financial instruments that are measured at
fair values at the end of the reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BE—E-_=F=ZF=+—HILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements (Continued)

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of
the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of
an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account
the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/
or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment”, leasing
transactions that accounted for in accordance with
of HKFRS 16 “Leases”, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value,
such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in
use in HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”.

For financial instruments which are transacted at fair
value and a valuation technique that unobservable
inputs are to be used to measure fair value in
subsequent periods, the valuation technique is
calibrated so that at initial recognition the result of
the valuation technique equals the transaction price.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level
1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable
and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the entity can access at the measurement
date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly
or indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

Significant accounting policies

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries.
Control is achieved when the Company:

®  has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BE—E-_=F=ZF=+—HILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group
gains control until the date when the Group ceases to
control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income (“OCI”) are attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring
their accounting policies in line with the Group’s
accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are
presented, separately from the Group’s equity therein,
which represent present ownership interests entitling
their holders to a proportionate share of net assets of
the relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)
Changes in the Group’s interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s relevant
components of equity and the non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiaries, including
re-attribution of relevant reserves between the
Group and the non-controlling interests according
to the Group’s and the non-controlling interests’
proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair value
of the consideration paid or received is recognised
directly in equity and attributed to owners of the
Company.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group's interests in existing subsidiaries
(Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the
assets and liabilities of that subsidiary and non-
controlling interests (if any) are derecognised. A gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated
as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair
value of the consideration received and the fair value
of any retained interest and (ii) the carrying amount
of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities
of the subsidiary attributable to the owners of the
Company. All amounts previously recognised in OCI
in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if
the Group had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit
or loss or transferred to another category of equity
as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The
fair value of any investment retained in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent
accounting under HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”
or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of
an investment in an associate or a joint venture.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business
is carried at cost as established at the date of
acquisition of the business (see the accounting policy
above) less accumulated impairment losses, if any.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Goodwill (Continued)

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating
units (or groups of cash-generating units) that
is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination, which represent the lowest level at
which goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes and not larger than an operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating
units) to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment annually or more frequently when
there is indication that the unit may be impaired. If
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss
is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill and then to the other assets on a pro-rata
basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in
the unit (or group of cash-generating units).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit
or any of the cash-generating unit within the group
of cash-generating units, the attributable amount
of goodwill is included in the determination of the
amount of profit or loss on disposal. When the Group
disposes of an operation within the cash-generating
unit (or a cash-generating unit within a group of cash-
generating units), the amount of goodwill disposed
of is measured on the basis of the relative values of
the operation (or the cash-generating unit) disposed
of and the portion of the cash-generating unit (or the
group of cash-generating units) retained.

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the
acquisition of associates and a joint venture is
described below.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Investments in associates and a joint venture

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee but is not control or
joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the joint arrangement.
Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing
of control of an arrangement, which exists only
when decisions about the relevant activities require
unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates
and a joint venture are incorporated in the
consolidated financial statements using the equity
method of accounting. The financial statements
of associates and a joint venture used for equity
accounting purposes are prepared using uniform
accounting policies as those of the Group for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances.
Under the equity method, an investment in an
associate or a joint venture is initially recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position at
cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s
share of the profit or loss and OCI of the associate
or joint venture. When the Group’s share of losses
of an associate or joint venture exceeds the Group’s
interest in that associate or joint venture (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate or joint venture), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional
losses are recognised only to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations
or made payments on behalf of the associate or joint
venture.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Investments in associates and a joint venture
(Continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for using the equity method from the date
on which the investee becomes an associate or a
joint venture. On acquisition of the investment in an
associate or a joint venture, any excess of the cost of
the investment over the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment. Any
excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of
the investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective
that the interest in an associates or a joint venture
may be impaired. When any objective evidence
exists, the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by
comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value
in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its
carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised is
not allocated to any asset, including goodwill, that
forms part of the carrying amount of the investment.
Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the
recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Investments in associates and a joint venture
(Continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence
over an associate or joint control over a joint venture,
it is accounted for as a disposal of entire interest
in the investee with resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. When the Group retains
an interest in the former associate or joint venture
and the retained interest is a financial asset within the
scope of HKFRS 9, the Group measures the retained
interest at fair value at that date and the fair value
is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition.
The difference between the carrying amount of the
associate or joint venture at the date the equity
method was discontinued, and the fair value of any
retained interest and any proceeds from disposing of
the relevant interest in the associate or joint venture
is included in the determination of the gain or loss on
disposal of the associate or joint venture. In addition,
the Group accounts for all amounts previously
recognised in OCI in relation to that associate or joint
venture on the same basis as would be required if
that associate or joint venture had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain
or loss previously recognised in OCI by that associate
or joint venture would be reclassified to profit or loss
on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities,
the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to
profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) upon
disposal/partial disposal of the relevant associate or
joint venture.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a
joint venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting
from the transactions with the associate or joint
venture are recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in
the associate or joint venture that are not related to
the Group.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in associates and
joint ventures

The Group continues to use the equity method when
an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or an investment in a joint venture
becomes an investment in an associate. There is no
remeasurement to fair value upon such changes in
ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest
in an associate or a joint venture but the Group
continues to use the equity method, the Group
reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain
or loss that had previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income relating to that reduction
in ownership interest if that gain or loss would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control”
of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or
service (or a bundle of goods or services) that is
distinct or a series of distinct goods or services that
are substantially the same.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria
is met:

e the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs;

e the Group’s performance creates or enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

° the Group’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group and
the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct
good or service.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount
of consideration is due) from the customer.

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those
costs that the Group incurs to obtain a contract with
a customer that it would not have incurred if the
contract had not been obtained.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract
(Continued)

The Group recognises such costs (sales
commissions) as an asset if it expects to recover
these costs. The asset so recognised is subsequently
amortised to profit or loss on a systematic basis that
is consistent with the transfer to the customer of the
goods or services to which the assets relate.

The Group applies the practical expedient of
expensing all incremental costs to obtain a contract
if these costs would otherwise have been fully
amortised to profit or loss within one year.

Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the
date of initial application of HKFRS 16 or arising from
business combinations, the Group assesses whether
a contract is or contains a lease based on the
definition under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification
date or acquisition date, as appropriate. Such
contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and
conditions of the contract are subsequently changed.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract

For a contract that contains a lease component
and one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to each lease component on the basis of
the relative stand-alone price of the lease component
and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components.

Non-lease components are separated from lease
component and are accounted for by applying other
applicable standards.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases that have a lease term of 12
months or less from the commencement date and
do not contain a purchase option. It also applies the
recognition exemption for lease of low-value assets.
Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised
as expense on a straight-line basis or another
systematic basis over the lease term.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

the amount of the initial measurement of the
lease liability;

any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

any initial direct costs incurred by the Group;
and

an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying
assets, restoring the site on which it is located
or restoring the underlying asset to the condition
required by the terms and conditions of the
lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and
the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate
line item on the consolidated statement of financial
position.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and
included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the
present value of lease payments that are unpaid at
that date. In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing
rate at the lease commencement date if the interest
rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include fixed payments
(including in-substance fixed payments) less any
lease incentives receivable.

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an
index or a rate are not included in the measurement
of lease liabilities and right-of-use assets, and are
recognised as expense in the period in which the
event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes
a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-
use assets) whenever the lease term has changed
or there is a change in the assessment of exercise of
a purchase option, in which case the related lease
liability is remeasured by discounting the revised
lease payments using a revised discount rate at the
date of reassessment.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate
line item on the consolidated statement of financial
position.

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a
separate lease if:

e the modification increases the scope of the
lease by adding the right to use one or more
underlying assets; and

° the consideration for the leases increases by an
amount commensurate with the stand-alone price
for the increase in scope and any appropriate
adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect
the circumstances of the particular contract.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease modifications (Continued)

For a lease modification that is not accounted for
as a separate lease, the Group remeasures the
lease liability, less any lease incentive receivables,
based on the lease term of the modified lease by
discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate at the effective date of the
modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities by making corresponding adjustments to
the relevant right-of-use asset. When the modified
contract contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the modified
contract to each lease component on the basis of the
relative stand-alone price of the lease component
and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components.

The Group as a lessor
Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified
as finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying
asset to the lessee, the contract is classified as
a finance lease. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessor (Continued)

Classification and measurement of leases (Continued)

Rental income from operating leases is recognised
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset,
and such costs are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Rental income which is derived from the Group’s
ordinary course of business is presented as other
income.

Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract

When a contract includes both leases and non-
lease components, the Group applies HKFRS 15
“Revenue from Contracts with Customers” to allocate
consideration in a contract to lease and non-lease
components. Non-lease components are separated
from lease component on the basis of their relative
stand-alone selling prices.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted
for under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair
value. Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition
are considered as additional lease payments from
lessees.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessor (Continued)

Lease modification

Changes in considerations of lease contracts that
were not part of the original terms and conditions are
accounted for as lease modifications, including lease
incentives provided through forgiveness or reduction
of rentals.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of
exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At the end of the reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary
items carried at fair value that are denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at rates prevailing
on the date when the fair value was determined.
When a fair value gain or loss on a non-monetary
item is recognised in profit or loss, any exchange
component of that gain or loss is also recognised in
profit or loss. When a fair value gain or loss on a non-
monetary item is recognised in other comprehensive
income, any exchange component of that gain or
loss is also recognised in other comprehensive
income. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Company (i.e. HK$)
using exchange rate prevailing at the end of the
reporting period. Income and expenses items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the
period, unless exchange rate fluctuate significantly
during the period, in which case, the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in OCI and accumulated in equity under the heading
of translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over
a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, or a
partial disposal of an interest in a joint arrangement
or an associate that includes a foreign operation
of which the retained interest becomes a financial
asset), all of the exchange differences accumulated
in equity in respect of that operation attributable to
the owners of the Company are reclassified to profit
or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Borrowing costs (Continued)

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding
after the related asset is ready for its intended use
or sale is included in the general borrowing pool
for calculation of capitalisation rate on general
borrowings. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All the Group’s borrowing costs are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them and that the grants
will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss
on a systematic basis over the periods in which the
Group recognises as expenses the related costs for
which the grants are intended to compensate.

Government grants related to income that are
receivable as compensation for expenses or
losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they become receivable. Such
grants are presented under “other income”.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit
schemes, including Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme and state-managed retirement benefit
schemes, are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to
the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits and other long-term
employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be
paid as and when employees rendered the services.
All short-term employee benefits are recognised
as an expense unless another HKFRS requires or
permits the inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an
asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees (such as wages and salaries and annual
leave) after deducting any amount already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term
employee benefits are measured at the present value
of the estimated future cash outflows expected to be
made by the Group in respect of services provided by
employees up to the reporting date. Any changes in
the liabilities’ carrying amounts resulting from service
cost, interest and remeasurements are recognised in
profit or loss except to the extent that another HKFRS
requires or permits their inclusion in the cost of an
asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit before
taxation because of items of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition,
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary differences arises from initial recognition
of goodwill.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries and associates, and interest in a joint
venture, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of the reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
in which the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group expects,
at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle
the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
leasing transactions in which the Group recognises
the right-of-use assets and the related lease
liabilities, the Group first determines whether the tax
deductions are attributable to the right-of-use assets
or the lease liabilities.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited R AF X{T& B AR A A

REVBBEREREERTE
SRR (E)

ETEETRER(E)
#E(E)

BERIEEERERHER
ERBIZKRE  ARIE— FﬁALAj
CERAEAZERMERERER -
MR AR B B SR | B i =5 2 B [
NEREENA R RETeRm
AIRRSN - MZFREREDFB A
?Dﬁ%ﬁﬁvirﬁgﬁﬁ§$2ﬁﬁﬁlﬁi§§1%

AIRE R B HERTOA A Pl B A E iy
#%EZ%'J & N FEHAE R Z RE N 1] R
X%@Hﬁﬁgpg\o

EETHIRE E 2 RE(ER 2 R KRME
mad - W EBA B MRS MU
Bl 2 #R Sk &R 0 B EE A SRL ©

BELXEHEEENRABIRERZ2HS
AIZADERIXARNE M ZHE
(RBR)EEMNABEFEREESR
BHRERA R E -

ELERARBENREEZTERBRAS
BEHAR2RBRKEHEEELEE
MBEREEZTAMEEL ZBRER
8o

METEARERAEREEELIAH
MEREBZHER S ZREFIAM
5 AKEEREENENGREREB
REMEEEIRBERNHEHERE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BE—E-_=F=ZF=+—HILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions
are attributable to the lease liabilities and provision
for decommissioning and restoration in which the
tax deductions are attributable to ultimate costs
incurred, the Group applies HKAS 12 “Income Taxes”
requirements to the leasing transaction as a whole.
Temporary differences relating to the relevant assets
and related liabilities are assessed on a net basis.
Excess of depreciation on the relevant assets over
the lease payments for the principal portion of lease
liabilities and the estimated cost for decommissioning
and restoration results in net deductible temporary
differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when
they relate to income taxes levied to the same taxable
entity by the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit
or loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in OCI or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in
OCI or directly in equity respectively. Where current
tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting
for a business combination, the tax effect is included
in the accounting for business combination.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties also include leased properties
which are being recognised as right-of-use assets
and subleased by the Group under operating leases.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are measured at fair value, adjusted to
exclude any prepaid or accrued operating lease
income.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value
of investment properties are included in profit or loss
for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon
disposal or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposal.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets
that are held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services, or for administrative purposes.
Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Freehold lands are not depreciated and are measured
at cost less subsequent accumulated impairment
losses.

When the Group makes payments for ownership
interests of properties which includes both leasehold
land and building elements, the entire consideration
is allocated between the leasehold land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair
values at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments
can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land that
is accounted for as an operating lease is presented
as “right-of-use assets” in the consolidated statement
of financial position and is amortised over the lease
term on a straight-line basis. When the consideration
cannot be allocated reliably between non-lease
building elements and undivided interest in the
underlying leasehold land, the entire properties are
classified as property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the
cost of assets less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of the
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant
and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment on property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets to determine
whether there is any indication that these assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets (Continued)

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment,
corporate assets are allocated to the relevant cash-
generating unit when a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be established, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash
generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be established. The
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit or group of cash-generating units to
which the corporate asset belongs, and is compared
with the carrying amount of the relevant cash
generating unit or group of cash-generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset (or
a cash-generating unit) for which the estimates of
future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or
a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. For corporate assets or portion of corporate
assets which cannot be allocated on a reasonable
and consistent basis to a cash-generating unit, the
Group compares the carrying amount of a group of
cash-generating units, including the carrying amounts
of the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets
allocated to that group of cash-generating units,
with the recoverable amount of the group of cash-
generating units. In allocating the impairment loss,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and
then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based
on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or a
group of cash-generated units. The carrying amount
of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair
value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value
in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the
impairment loss that would otherwise have been
allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the
other assets of the unit or a group of cash-generated
units. An impairment loss is recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating
unit or a group of cash-generated units) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset (or a cash-generating unit or a group of
cash-generated units) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents presented on the
consolidated statement of financial position include
cash, which comprises of cash on hand and demand
deposits.

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of
cash and cash equivalents as defined above, net
of outstanding bank overdrafts which are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management. Such overdrafts are presented as
short-term borrowings in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

Inventories

Inventories, which are finished goods held for sale,
are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated on a specific identification
basis for watches. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price for inventories less
incremental costs directly attributable to the sale and
non-incremental costs which the Group must incur to
make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when a group entity becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All
regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the market place.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023

&

3.

PE_=F=F=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are
initially measured in accordance with HKFRS
15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial
liabilities at FVTPL) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at
FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
or financial liability and of allocating interest income
and interest expense over the relevant period.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial
asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited R 5 X 1T&£ B AR 2 7

,znv i N

=r

EMBBREREERTE
SR (E)

FESHBE(E)
EHMITHE)

TREEREBABEVNZARFERT
B EXBEEFPANZE SRR
BRAN - EAIPRIBRAM B RE ER
FBRIEFPENZ K] FTE - W
BAETEREERERABEAR
FEFABRRZEREEXNERAR
BRON) BER B Z X BRATINY %
BRARNATREELEREBEZR
FEXEEREEXTRABBE LAY
ERME(ER) - WERAFER
ANEmZeREES TR BBEEERRE
HZRBHA - BR BT R

ERMEENAESREEITHE
{82 B AR A IR AR R 0 M B
WARMBRXZITE - BRENES
AEBAEATHEENERAB (G
AHEME (HER) RS RN
FERKR WA RN K (BB A
KWBRBERMNEEXNEY 22 HE
RRIED ~ R MA R E AL B AT
R)NMEEN P ER EEREFE
LRI o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BE—E-_=F=ZF=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at amortised cost:

the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is to collect contractual
cash flows; and

the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by both
selling and collecting contractual cash flows;
and

the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023

&

3.

P CE_CF- = —HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Continued)

All other financial assets are subsequently measured
at FVTPL, except that at the date of initial recognition
of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect
to present subsequent changes in fair value of an
equity investment in OCI if that equity investment is
neither held for trading nor contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in a business combination
to which HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations” applies.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose
of selling in the near term;

e  on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a
financial asset that are required to be measured at
the amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL
if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR M A

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BE—E-_=F=ZF=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of

financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the
effective interest method for financial assets
measured subsequently at amortised cost
and debt instruments subsequently measured
at FVTOCI. Interest income is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired. For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit
risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer credit-
impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BE-_E_=F=Hf=+—HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Continued)

(ii)

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI
are subsequently measured at fair value with
gains and losses arising from changes in fair
value recognised in OCIl and accumulated in the
asset revaluation reserve; and are not subject
to impairment assessment. The cumulative gain
or loss will not be reclassified to profit or loss on
disposal of the equity investments, and will be
transferred to retained profits.

Dividends on these investments in equity
instruments are recognised in profit or loss
when the Group’s right to receive the dividends
is established, unless the dividends clearly
represent a recovery of part of the cost of the
investment. Dividends are included in the “other
gains and losses” line item in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BE—E-_=F=ZF=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Continued)

(iii)

Debt instruments classified as at FVTOCI

(iv)

Subsequent changes in the carrying amounts
for debt instruments classified as at FVTOCI as
a result of interest income calculated using the
effective interest method, and foreign exchange
gains and losses are recognised in profit or
loss. All other changes in the carrying amount
of these debt instruments are recognised in OCI
and accumulated under the heading of asset
revaluation reserve. Impairment allowances are
recognised in profit or loss with corresponding
adjustment to OCI without reducing the carrying
amounts of these debt instruments. When
these debt instruments are derecognised, the
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised
in OCI are reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for
being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI nor
designated as FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period, with
any fair value gains or losses recognised in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss included any dividend or interest
earned on the financial asset and is included in
the “other gains and losses” line item.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023

&

3.

P CE_CF- = —HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and financial
guarantee contracts

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit losses (“ECL”) model on financial
assets (including trade receivables and other
receivables, refundable rental and other deposits,
loan receivables, debt instruments at FVTOCI and
bank balances) and financial guarantee contracts,
which are subject to impairment assessment under
HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of
the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL
(“12m ECL”) represents the portion of lifetime ECL
that is expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
Assessment is done based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, and factors that are specific
to the debtors, general economic conditions and
an assessment of both the current conditions at
the reporting date as well as the forecast of future
conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, in which case the Group recognises
lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime
ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default
occurring since initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR M A

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BE—E-_=F=ZF=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and financial

guarantee contracts (Continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring
on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition. In making this assessment,
the Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience
and forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk
has increased significantly:

e an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial instrument’s
external (if available) or internal credit
rating;

e significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit
default swap prices for the debtor;

e existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eI HRR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023

BE—E-_=F=F=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and financial
guarantee contracts (Continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

e an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of the
debtor;

e an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the credit
risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

For financial guarantee contracts, the date that
the Group becomes a party to the irrevocable
commitment is considered to be the date of
initial recognition for the purposes of assessing
impairment. In assessing whether there has
been a significant increase in the credit risk
since initial recognition of a financial guarantee
contract, the Group considers changes in the
risk that the specified debtor will default on the
contract.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BE—E-_=F=ZF=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and financial
guarantee contracts (Continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

(ii)

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk and
revises them as appropriate to ensure that the
criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount
becomes past due.

Definition of default

The Group considers an event of default occurs
when information developed internally or
obtained from external sources indicates that the
debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including
the Group, in full (without taking into account any
collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset
is more than 90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion
is more appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eI HRR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023
P FE-—=F=F=+—HIFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and financial
guarantee contracts (Continued)

(iii)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events of default that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of
that financial asset have occurred. Evidence
that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

(a)

(b)

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
the borrower;

a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic
or contractual reasons relating to the
borrower’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the borrower a concession(s)
that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider; or

it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BE—E-_=F=ZF=+—HILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and financial
guarantee contracts (Continued)

(iv)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty
is in severe financial difficulty and there is no
realistic prospect of recovery, for example,
when the counterparty has been placed under
liguidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings. Financial assets written off may
still be subject to enforcement activities under
the Group’s recovery procedures, taking into
account legal advice where appropriate. A
write-off constitutes a derecognition event. Any
subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit
or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e.
the magnitude of the loss if there is a default)
and the exposure at default. The assessment
of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data and forward-
looking information. The Group measures ECL
on individual basis. Estimation of ECL reflects an
unbiased and probability-weighted amount that
is determined with the respective risks of default
occurring as the weights.

,ﬂw i N

=r

ARBRRMREER T D

BE (&)

ERETHER(E)

EHITHE)

EHEE (&)

TREENMYBEEREQRMEE)

(iv) MEEECR

EREMBRYFTIHRBEEN
5 IR 2 B30 8 B B (] TR RS
FIanE $F T RACEAK
ERFR  AEESMHEERE
E o BERLRER(WER)
EMH 2 S REE R REDRETT
AEBWKEIEF T ZHATITE -
MIHBR T BREREMT - P2
EAAIBE R UL B R B 2 TR

BEREEER 8 RER

BEHMEEBBZTERENA
M BEHEBBR(MERED
R 2 BRI ) KRR Z K
e BORREREOEBEERY
AHE TR B EBIR R ATIEIEE
FHETT - AREREREEFE
BHEEER -FAHEEEERZ
BT R A 2 REE KRR
Y/ INRER(E M e E 2 B AR
MESER -

Annual Report 2023 =% — = F F 3§

143



144

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BE—E-_=F=F=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and financial
guarantee contracts (Continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Generally, the ECL is the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition.

For a financial guarantee contract, the Group
is required to make payments only in the event
of a default by the debtor in accordance with
the terms of the instrument that is guaranteed.
Accordingly, the ECL is the present value of the
expected payments to reimburse the holder for
a credit loss that it incurs less any amounts that
the Group expects to receive from the holder, the
debtor or any other party.

For ECL on financial guarantee contracts for
which the effective interest rate cannot be
determined, the Group will apply a discount rate
that reflects the current market assessment of
the time value of money and the risks that are
specific to the cash flows but only if, and to the
extent that, the risks are taken into account by
adjusting the discount rate instead of adjusting
the cash shortfalls being discounted.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial assets unless
the financial assets are credit-impaired, in which
case interest income is calculated based on
amortised cost of the financial asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BE—E-_=F=ZF=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and financial
guarantee contracts (Continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Except for investments in debt instruments that
are measured at FVTOCI and financial guarantee
contracts, the Group recognises an impairment
gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial
instruments by adjusting their carrying amount,
with the exception of trade receivables where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised through
a loss allowance account. For investments in
debt instruments that are measured at FVTOCI,
the loss allowance is recognised in OCI| and
accumulated in the asset revaluation reserve
without reducing the carrying amount of these
debt instruments. Such amount represents the
changes in the asset revaluation reserve in
relation to accumulated loss allowance.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or

loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023

&

3.

PE_=F=F=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

On derecognition of an investment in a debt
instrument classified as at FVTOCI, the cumulative
gain or loss previously accumulated in the asset
revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity
instrument which the Group has elected on initial
recognition to measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative
gain or loss previously accumulated in the asset
revaluation reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss,
but is transferred to retained profits.

Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with
the substance of the contractual arrangements and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments
is recognised and deducted directly in equity.
No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on
the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the
Company’s own equity instruments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BE—E-_=F=ZF=+—HILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method or

at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and other
payables and bank loans are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

A financial liability is held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose
of repurchasing it in the near term;

e on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative, except for a derivative that is a
financial guarantee contract or a designated and

effective hedging instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023

&

3.

PCECCFZ =1 —HIULFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payments when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
Financial guarantee contract liabilities are measured
initially at their fair values. It is subsequently
measured at the higher of:

° the amount of the loss allowance determined in
accordance with HKFRS 9: and

e the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised
over the guarantee period.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group’s obligations
are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the
date when derivative contracts are entered into and
are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the
end of the reporting period. The resulting gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BE—E-_=F=ZF=+—HILFE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgments, apart from
those involving estimations (see below), that the
directors of the Company have made in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies and
that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

Determination on lease term of contracts with
extension options

The Group applies judgment to determine the lease
term for lease contracts in which it is a lessee that
include extension option, specifically, the leases
relating to retail shops. The assessment of whether
the Group is reasonably certain to exercise extension
options impacts the lease term, which significantly
affects the amount of lease liabilities and right-of-use
assets recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2023
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4.

P CE_CF- = —HIFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

Determination on lease term of contracts with
extension options (Continued)

When assessing reasonable certainty, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances
including economic incentives/penalties for
exercising or not exercising the options. Factors
considered include:

° contractual terms and conditions for the optional
periods compared with market rates (e.g.
whether the amount of payments in the optional
periods is below the market rates);

e the extent of leasehold improvements undertaken
by Group; and

e costs relating to termination of the lease (e.g.
relocation costs, costs of identifying another
underlying asset suitable for the Group’s needs).

The details of the leases with extension option are set
out in note 16.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following is the key assumption concerning
the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period,
that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BE—E-_=F=ZF=+—HILFE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Net realisable value assessment of watches

Watches are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. The management of the Group
reviews regularly the suitability of allowance policy
and estimates the amount of allowance for inventories.
The Group identifies slow-moving watches with
reference to the ageing analysis. The net realisable
value of the watches are determined by considering
the saleability of watches based on current market
conditions, pricing policies and strategies, as well
as historical/latest available sales information of
similar watches. If conditions which have an impact
on the net realisable value of inventories deteriorate/
improve, additional allowances/reversal of allowances
may be required. Details of the reversal of allowance
for slow-moving watches credited during the year and
the carrying amount of watches (net of allowance)
as at 31 March 2023 are set out in notes 10 and 23,
respectively.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group’s operation is principally sales of watches.
The Group’s revenue represents consideration
received or receivable from sales of watches.

Information reported to the executive directors of the
Company, being the chief operating decision maker
(*CODM”), for the purpose of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance is analysed
based on the geographical markets of the goods
sold, which is consistent with the basis of the Group’s
organisation for managing the business operations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023
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5.

F=ZF=+—HIFEE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Specifically, the Group had three operating
segments, being (a) Hong Kong, (b) the PRC and
(c) Macau (2022: four operating segments, being (a)
Hong Kong, (b) the PRC, (c) Macau and (d) Taiwan.
During the year ended 31 March 2022, the business
in Taiwan had been discontinued. The management
considered the Group’s operation in Taiwan did not
constitute a separate major geographical area of
operations as the results for the year ended 31 March
2022 were not significant to the Group. Accordingly,
such operating segment was not presented as
discontinued operation). No operating segments
identified by the chief operating decision maker
have been aggregated in arriving at the reportable
segments of the Group.

Sales of watches (revenue recognised at a point in
time)

For sales of watches, revenue is recognised when
control of the goods has transferred, being at the
point the customer purchases the goods at the retail
shop, including those sales through department
stores. Payment of the transaction price is due
immediately at the point the customer purchases
the goods. A credit period of not more than 30 days
is granted to department stores who receive the
payment on behalf of the Group at the point the
customer purchases the goods.

All sales contracts are for periods of one year or
less. As permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction
price allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is not
disclosed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BE—E-_=F=ZF=+—HILFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WER7BER(E)

(Continued)
Sales of watches (revenue recognised at a point in HEER(WERE—BHBEHEER)
time) (Continued) (&)
The following is an analysis of the Group’s segment NTRASEREESHE D 295
revenue and results by operating segments: Wzt REEDIT -
Segment revenue —
recognised at
a point in time Segment profit (loss)
DEWE — RFHER D EEF (E5E)
2023 2022 2023 2022
—E=-= T —E== T
HK$°’000 HK$'000 HK$°’000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Hong Kong &5 1,008,210 1,062,847 80,030 115,280
The PRC h 2,559,988 2,415,056 475,505 475,135
Macau SRPY 136,479 161,871 24,673 35,876
Taiwan = = = — (423)
3,704,677 3,639,774 580,208 625,868
Unallocated other ROBEMEA
income 14,060 18,443
Unallocated corporate AP EMEMS
expenses (169,378) (184,069)
Unallocated other gains &% Bt E b Uiz
and losses K E1E 2,379 22,476
Unallocated impairment FEEf{= & &8
losses reversed under &I THEE 2
ECL model A0 ERIE
&8 — 16,132
Interest on bank loan BITERFE (102) (627)
Share of results of JELBEE RN A2
associates | 13,116 14,789
Share of result of a joint fE{E —fE& &
venture NAElZEE (225) 425
Profit before taxation & F5 B A 440,058 513,437

Annual Report 2023 — & — = F £ 3§ 153



154

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2023

&

5.

ECEC=FZ A=+ HIFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Sales of watches (revenue recognised at a point in
time) (Continued)

The accounting policies used to determine segment
revenue and results are the same as the accounting
policies adopted in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements described in note 3. Segment
profit represents the profit before taxation earned
by each segment without allocation of interest on
bank loan, share of results of associates and a joint
venture, unallocated other income, unallocated other
gains and losses, unallocated impairment losses
reversed under ECL model and unallocated corporate
expenses. Unallocated corporate expenses include
auditor’'s remuneration, directors’ emoluments,
expenses of the Group’s headquarter which are
unallocated between the operating segments and
operating expenses of inactive companies. This is
the measure reported to the chief operating decision
maker of the Group for the purposes of resources
allocation and performance assessment.

The Group has no customer who contributed over
10% of the total revenue of the Group for any of the
two years ended 31 March 2023.

All segment revenue is generated from external
customers for both years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BE—E-_=F=ZF=+—HILFE

5.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WER7BER(E)

(Continued)

Sales of watches (revenue recognised at a point in HEER(WENRE—KEMER)
time) (Continued) (&)

NTAAEBREENMEND 2 EE
HEEDN -

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and
liabilities by operating segments.

Segment assets Segment liabilities

PHEE PHEE

2023 2022 2023 2022

—E== —ET-= —E=-= -
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FET TFET
Hong Kong B8 661,075 822,608 354,847 426,618
The PRC e 565,555 466,353 129,931 107,641
Macau RFT 86,072 100,282 64,896 80,345
Taiwan = — 1 — 50
Segment total D Eb A 1,312,702 1,389,244 549,674 614,654
Unallocated Ko ic 1,306,556 1,490,031 173,653 228,454
Group’s total REE BT 2,619,258 2,879,275 723,327 843,108

REEMEMEID 20 MEERR T
EEmMBZMUEE N EMER -

The segment assets by location of assets are the

same as by location of markets of the goods sold. =

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance MERDERIR LR DA D ELEIR

and allocating resources between segments: =

— all assets are allocated to operating segments — BREEME  GBEQRE
other than investment properties, interests in wmo I HegERFCER &

NFHE AR EE RS 2 BRA

associates, interest in a joint venture, equity

instruments at FVTOCI, financial assets at FVTPL,
debt instruments at FVTOCI, loan receivables,
deferred tax assets, taxation recoverable, cash
and cash equivalents, and other unallocated
corporate assets; and

all liabilities are allocated to operating segments
other than taxation payable, deferred tax
liabilities, bank loan and other unallocated
corporate liabilities. Bank loan was classified as
unallocated corporate liabilities because it was
managed centrally by the treasury function of
the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BE T _=F=F=+—HIFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WaRkoER (&)

(Continued)
Hitb 5 # & #

Other segment information

Amounts included in the measure of segment results

AEDHMEEINHEERERZE

or segment assets: B
Additions of Depreciation of Gain (loss) on disposal ~ Impairment losses Reversal of
property, plant Additions of property, plant Depreciation of of property, plant (recognised) reversed  allowance (allowance)
and equipment right-of-use assets and equipment right-of-use assets and equipment under ECL model for inventories
HENE BERRE  REEEHREAT
RENE BERRR RERRREE & BERRERE RREEERE 2 (58) (B BEHEEE FERERRO(RR)
2022 2022 2022
ZEoCE it St -3 - Sk
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AT AT
Hong Kong B 26,449 66,279 14,235 96,749 (33,751)  (28,194)  (99,495) (94,036 (755) (4,046) - - 17,635 (4,500)
The PRC hE 22,591 1,270 - 24,712 (9,760) (9.705)  (14,890)  (17,369) 2,31 - (1,834) 2,029 1,029 4,587
Macau an - 83 25,708 89,787 (100) (346)  (22217) (15,761 - (2) - - 5,730 64
Segment total A HEH 49,040 77,632 30,043 211248 (43611)  (38245)  (136,662)  (127,166) 1,616 (4,048) (1,834) 2,029 24,394 151
Unallocated %7 E - - - - - - - - - - - 16,132 - -
Group'stotal ~ AEEE 49,040 77,632 39,943 211248 (43,611)  (38.245)  (136,662)  (127,166) 1,616 (4,048) (1,834) 18,161 24,394 151

Note: The amounts of interest in associates and share
of results of associates, and the interest in a joint
venture and share of result of a joint venture, are
presented to the CODM as a whole but not included
in the measure of segment profit or loss or segment
assets.

A o
Information about the Group’s non-current assets
(excluding equity instruments at FVTOCI, financial
assets at FVTPL, debt instruments at FVTOCI,
loan receivables, deferred tax assets, interests
in associates and interest in a joint venture) by
geographical location of the assets is detailed below:

Wit - (REE QR 2 sk K e B & R A
ZEEARE—REE QR Z s
REGE—HAERRZEREIERE
BEREFLERKE  BTEE
HEFENEEN S ERA N HEE

WEEMEBRE D 2 ANEEIFRB
BE(MBREEAFEFARMEE
Wes 2 IRAT A ~ A FEFARR
ZEMEE  RAFEFAEMEZE
W2 BT A - RIER - RIER
REE 6B ZE QAR 2 S RIE—fH

BERNRZER) 2 ERFRIT

Carrying amount of
non-current assets

FRBEEIREE
2023 2022
HK$°000  HK$'000
FET FEL
Hong Kong s 455,369 557,795
The PRC 2 76,103 63,945
Macau SERFY 63,945 79,009
Other H it 8,261 —
603,678 700,749
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR M A

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BE-_E-_=F=ZFA=+—HILFE

6. OTHER INCOME

Interest income from bank

Interest income from loan
receivable at amortised cost

Interest income from rental
deposits

Government subsidies (note)

Others

RITALEHA

RBERAGTEZ
W E A B A
HEeEEeHBBA

BB (A et)
Hith

Note: During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group

Ha A

2023 2022

—_E_= —=E-=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FET
12,452 13,239
1,608 4,362
888 1,128
9,644 17,696
5,946 6,325
30,538 42,750

M BEZE-_=ZF=A=+—AH1

recognised government grants in respect of COVID-
19-related subsidies, including subsidies from the
Employment Support Scheme provided by the Hong
Kong Government of HK$4,440,000 (2022: nil). The
remaining government subsidies in both years mainly
comprised of unconditional subsidies received for
subsidising the Group’s business in the PRC.

FE o AEER2019TRFER
A ERETREEE  BER
BRTATREZ [RUE] FTE8H
B 4,440,000 T( =Z T = — 4 :
) c PRBFENKRTHRAREE
TEBERMAEEFBEERK
B2\ -
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7. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 7

(Loss) gain from changes in fair T§ﬂ$ﬁ?)&?§ﬁ:’32é%ﬂ

(E@’S‘TE)H&Z
Gain from changes in fair value of RQAF(EE ABz 2 UK
loan receivables at FVTPL ERzATFEZH NS
Gain arising from termination of WIFHEESE 2 e
leases

Gain (loss) on disposal/written off H& /MEEME « HEK
of property, plant and equipment &2 Uizs (E518)

Gain on redemption of debt BEZE AT EFTAEAMm
instruments at FVTOCI PHBRZEBIAEZ

Wz

Net gain on derivative financial BAFEGFABRZITE
instruments at FVTPL SR TR FR

Change in fair value of investment %X& W% 2 A FEE S

properties
Net exchange gains PE 5 U s ) 58
IMPAIRMENT LOSSES (RECOGNISED) 8.

REVERSED UNDER EXPECTED CREDIT
LOSS MODEL, NET

Impairment losses (recognised)  TEHIZEEEERT
reversed under ECL model on:
— trade receivables

— other receivables

B 5 U R
— H YRR

Details of impairment assessment are set out in note
38.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited R A XTE BB R A 7

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BE-_E_=F=Hf=+—HIFE

HiWmEREE

2023 2022

—_E_= —E-=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
(1,710) 1,223
3,384 2,368
— 52
1,616 (4,048)
16 10
— 13,318
65 —
996 4 559
4,367 17,482

(ﬁﬁn ) BBl 2R R

RAEEEHEEN N (BR) &

ERERSE  FHE

2023 2022

—_E_-=4F —E=-=
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
(1,834) 2,029
— 16,132
(1,834) 18,161

RERHA BN E 38 -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR M A

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BE-_E-_=F=ZFA=+—HILFE

9.

10.

FINANCE COSTS

Interest on bank loan
Interest on lease liabilities

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation has been
arrived at after charging:

Directors’ remuneration (note 11)

Other staff costs

Other staff’s retirement benefits
scheme contributions

Total staff costs

Auditor’s remuneration

Cost of inventories recognised
as expense (including reversal
of allowance for slow-moving
watches of HK$24,394,000
(2022: HK$151,000))

RITERZHE
HEREBEZHNE

10.

BR B¢ A K 2 HIBR

EEME (Mt 11)
H B B A AN
H b B B 2 iR 4& F 5T &l

#HK

BB R HEER

T2 BUED B &
ERRAX ZFERA
(BIEmH TR m RO

24,394,000 /& 7T
e —

R

151,000 7))

Depreciation of property, plant and ¥ - #EREZHEZITE

equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets FHEEZEZITE

& AN
2023 2022
—_E_= —=E-=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FET
102 627
14,510 11,406
14,612 12,033
BR AR F
2023 2022
—_=E_= —E=-=
HK$°000 HK$'000
FETT FET
121,548 130,365
163,180 142,901
4,255 3,990
288,983 277,256
3,500 3,330
2,515,967 2,459,489
43,611 38,245
136,662 127,166
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MRk M

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BE—E-_=F=F=+—HILFE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ . EEkEEZ#ME
EMOLUMENTS
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the BEERITHRER 2 RN FEHMIHRE
year, disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing A LETARRREERRHEDIHKE -
Rules and Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The ENSHENARB(ZEZ_F: +£4)
emoluments paid or payable to each of the six (2022: BEEEAZHEAT -

seven) directors were as follows:

2023 2022
ZEZC —EoCE

Retirement Performance- Retirement  Performance-

Salaries benefits related Salaries benefits related

and other scheme incentive and other scheme incentive
Fees benefits contributions bonus Total Fees benefits  contributions bonus Total

¥eRk  BHEA *EEE geR BIEH  RBAE
e HH R iafts  RRRA it Be  EBER HEMR BETA 3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$'000
7T FEr FEr FEr FEr AL AT AL AT AT

(note) (note)

(Hi) (Wit)

Executive directors ~ #17%%
Mr Yeung HimKit, — Bi7gas

Dennis' - 4,723 540 66,000 71,263 - 4417 530 72,000 76,947
Madam YeungMan ~ B&ELT

Yee, Shirley - 1,638 21 22,000 23,865 — 1,560 207 24,000 25,767
Mr. Lam Hing Lun, WERTE

Alain - 3,142 378 22,000 25,520 = 2835 332 24,000 21,167

Independentnon-  BUFH7TEE

executive directors
Dr. Sun Ping Hsu, L
Samson? - - - - - 120 - — - 120
Dr. Li Sau Hung, SAERT
Eddy 300 - - - 300 180 - - - 180
Mr. Choi Man Chau,  Z3UM% 4
Michael 300 - - - 300 180 - - - 180
Mr. Sun Dai Hoe, FRRRES
Harold® 300 - - - 300 4 — — — 4
900 9,503 1,145 110,000 121,548 484 8,812 1,069 120,000 130,365
Note: During the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022, Wit BEZE-_=FR-_FT=-__F=A
the performance related incentive bonus payments =+—RHIEFE - RIFABEREIE
are determined with reference to the operating AR ELEFEREAREE
results and individual performance. JE °
L Appointed as chairman on 10 February 2022 L RZEZ—F-A+HEZEAERE
g Passed away on 28 November 2021 g RZEBEZ—F+— A=+ /\ Bt
3 Appointed on 23 March 2022 € MRZEBEZZF=A-+=AEZHF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR M A

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BE-_E-_=F=ZFA=+—HILFE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Mr. Yeung Him Kit, Dennis is also the managing
director of the Company and his emoluments
disclosed above include those for services rendered
by him as the chief executive.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group. The emoluments of independent non-executive
directors shown above were for their services as
directors of the Company.

Employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid individuals included three (2022:
three) directors of the Company, details of whose
emoluments are set out above. The emoluments of
the remaining two (2022: two) highest paid individuals
are as follows:

Employees (==
— basic salaries and allowances — E AR $ &i2AL
— bonus — fEAT
— retirement benefits scheme — RIKEFFHEIH

contributions

Note: The bonus is determined based on performance of
the employees.

M. ESREECZHME(Z)

BITBRAENRARBZEFTRE
2 EXEREEMeBREERT
BASRERE ZME -

EXFRTRATES ZME IR EA
REGHAEEARARAEBERHZ
RIS « EXFIRBILIFAITE
M IR BEEFERTARRESA
R 2 IR

EEMS

ANUEeFMALTBEE=2(-%
ToF ZR)ARBEE BEZ
ZEANTZMESFFBEHR L3 - HiHm
N(ZE2EZ—F - WA)meaumMALT
ZBEmT

2023 2022
—E_-= —E-—

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

3,540 3,292

7,795 4,280

81 191

11,416 7,763

B A THERNEERRMETE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eI HRR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BE T _=F=F=+—HIFE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Employees’ emoluments (Continued)

The emoluments were within the following bands:

HK$2,000,000 to HK$3,000,000 2,000,000/8TE
3,000,000 % 7T
HK$3,000,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,000,001 BLE
4,000,00078 7T
HK$5,000,001 to HK$6,000,000 5,000,001/87LE
6,000,000/& 7T
HK$7,000,001 to HK$8,000,000 7,000,001 B TE
8,000,000 % 7T

There was no arrangement under which a director or
the chief executive waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the year. No emoluments were
paid by the Group to the directors of the Company
and/or five highest paid individuals as an inducement
to join or as compensation for loss of office.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited R A XTE BB R A 7

. ESREECZME(Z)

EEMS (&)
PeEEmT :
Number of employees
EEAH
2023 2022
—E-= g
— 1
1 P
— 1
1 N
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR M A

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BE—E-_=F=ZF=+—HILFE

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Current tax: ANHBFR IR -
Hong Kong BB

PRC Enterprise Income Tax H B (b RS AR
Other jurisdictions B rREERR
Withholding tax on dividend B AAIREWMAZ
income from associates CEIE
Withholding tax on dividend B ARIREWAZ
income from subsidiaries A
Under(over) provision in prior BEFERETIR
years: (EBRERE)
Hong Kong BB
Other jurisdictions H e iR
Deferred taxation (credit) charge  EZERIIE (e ) X H
(note 30) (K7t 30)

Hong Kong Profits Tax for both years is calculated
at 16.5% of the estimated assessable profits for the
year, except for one subsidiary of the Group which is
a qualifying corporation under the two-tiered profits
tax rates regime. For this subsidiary, the first HK$2
million of assessable profits are taxed at 8.25% and
the remaining assessable profits are taxed at 16.5%.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax
(the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the
EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25%
for both years, after setting off of tax losses brought
forward, if any.

Taxation in other jurisdictions mainly represents
Macau SAR Complementary Tax, which is calculated
at the rate of 12% on the estimated assessable
profits.

12. i8R

2023 2022
—_E_= —=E-=

HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FET
512 8,755
120,626 118,364
2,347 4,782
2,554 1,437
20,779 6,893
146,818 140,231
2,857 (1,144)
(615) (1)
2,242 (1,145)
(4,526) 11,375
144,534 150,461

WEFE 2 BBNBFRIZF NG E
BB 2 165%tE - EAEE
—FHENB AR (BFESHMAF T2
BERRA) BRI ZMBARIZE
2,000,000 % 7t FE &% i 4 7142 8.25%
ZTRERBNTIIE - R T ERB R F A
£ 16.5% 2 B R GHAFRIA o

RIB(PBEEERBHER) ([REMRE
BOE D) BERMEBOEERIRD])
REEEBZHBEBRR(INE) -
RAEFEREMNBRARZRER
25%

H iy AR BIAE B SRR

FrSmEM - AT ERBEF &
12% 8 °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BE T _=F=F=+—HIFE

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 12. FiBHEAX (&)
The tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the FABIBERZ JERBGEEERRE
profit before taxation per the consolidated statement fth 2 TE W R 2R 2 BR A AT A A 4 BR 40
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as N
follows:

2023 2022
—_=E_= —E=-=

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

Profit before taxation B 55 A Yid ) 440,058 513,437

Tax at the applicable income tax  RIFEBTEHE 16.5%

rate of 16.5% (2022: 16.5%) —TE - :16.5%)
HE I 72,610 84,717

Tax effect of share of results of EIEEE RR 2B

associates M2 (2,164) (2,440)
Tax effect of share of result of a ~ E(E— AL AT %8

joint venture BT E 37 (70)
Tax effect of expenses not AP 2 MG E

deductible for tax purposes 2,076 533
Tax effect of income not taxable for BER WA Z 7S£

tax purposes (8,603) (7,841)
Tax effect of tax losses not RIERH BB 2 W%

recognised T 22,873 20,650
Tax effect of temporary differences Bt& QAT & —EA &L QA

attributable to undistributed R IR & F AL 2 B

profits of associates and a joint ERIBMBRE

venture 2,784 3,159
Tax effect of temporary differences MfB A 7]k 5 K% F fE(S

attributable to undistributed LEREREIHETE

profits of subsidiaries 16,338 16,747
Effect of different tax rates of REMANERRELE 2

subsidiaries operating in other B8 A RIFT R AR

jurisdictions MEZZE 39,464 38,629
Under(over) provision in prior BEFEREBETR

years (EBRE R E) 2,242 (1,145)
Utilisation of tax losses previously @A 2 B RIER Z 5

not recognised BB (2,651) (2,284)
Income tax at concessionary rate BB KIS (165) (165)
Others Hb (307) (29)
Tax expense for the year FAMIBEZ L 144,534 150,461
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BE—E-_=F=ZF=+—HILFE

13. DIVIDENDS 13. KR
2023 2022
—EC-= —EoCF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Dividends recognised as distribution ~ FREEAEDEZIKE
during the year:
Interim dividend for financial year 1 487,358,224 %
ended 31 March 2023 of 7.8 HK (fgiiﬁ 487,358,224f% )
cents (2022: 8.6 HK cents) per Bt EHE_S-=F
share on 487,358,224 (2022: ZA=T-BLEMBFETH
487,358,224) shares REEHK7.8 %M
(ZE2E=-=%F :8.6/81) 38,014 41,913
Interim special dividend for financial 1 487,358,224 %
year ended 31 March 2023 of 23.5 (fz::i 487,358,224f% )
HK cents (2022: 25.8 HK cents) BBz 8E-_E =%
per share on 487,358,224 (2022: ZA=T-BULHRFEREH
487,358,224) shares B RIR S &Mk 23.5 A1l
(ZF-—F :258%(l) 114,529 125,738
Final dividend for financial year ended #2487, 358 224 1%
31 March 2022 of 10.0 HK cents (f 2~ —%F : 487,358,224%)
(2021: 12.0 HK cents) per share on BRIDGHEZBE_T__F
487,358,224 (2021: 487,358,224) ZA=T-BHIEMBFERY
shares BB & 10.0 754
(Z2=—% : 12.01) 48,736 58,483
Special dividend for financial year 1487, 358 224 1%
ended 31 March 2022 of 30.5 (ZZ=—% : 487,358,224k
HK cents (2021: 27.0 HK cents) BT EZBE-T-_F
per share on 487,358,224 (2021 ZRA=T-AULMHEERH
487,358,224) shares & 28 30.5 1
(ZZ2Z—%:27.0/) 148,644 131,587
349,923 357,721
Dividends proposed after year end FRHERR RS (W)
(note):
Proposed final dividend for financial 1% 487 358,224 )%
year ended 31 March 2023 of 7.5 (ZZ =4 : 487,358, 224Hx)
HK cents (2022: 10.0 HK cents) RiPFHECBE_T_=
per share on 487,358,224 (2022: =A=t+—H mamir Bk
487,358,224) shares REREEMR7.5 %I
(ZTZZF - 10.081L) 36,552 48,736
Proposed special dividend for 1£ 487,358,224 %
financial year ended 31 March 2023 (ZZ =~ 487,358, 224Hx)
of 22.0 HK cents (2022: 30.5 HK Bt EcBE-_T ==
cents) per share on 487,358,224 =A=+—H JtEMﬁZiJ*%E/)E
(2022: 487,358,224) shares ¥Rl & &% 22.0 %L
(ZZE=Z% : 30.5%8(l) 107,219 148,644
143,771 197,380
Annual Report 2023 =% — = F F 3§
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eI HRR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BE T _=F=F=+—HIFE

13. DIVIDENDS (Continued)

Note: Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final
dividend and a special dividend for the year ended
31 March 2023 have been proposed by the directors
of the Company and are subject to approval by the
shareholders in the forthcoming annual general
meeting

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per
share attributable to owners of the Company is based
on the following data:

Earnings ZF
Earnings for the purposes of basic
and diluted earnings per share

(profit for the year attributable to

owners of the Company)

FEAHF R )

Number of shares R4 E

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares for the purpose
of basic and diluted earnings

per share

Z BB RN 15 2R

The diluted earnings per share for the year ended
31 March 2022 had not included the effect from
the Company’s share options because the exercise
prices of the share options were higher than the
average market price of the shares of the Company.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited R A XTE BB R A 7

13. RE (&)

Hiit - RERMPRE - ARAEFZHIK
BE-_Z-_=F=A=+—H1E
FREZARPRERFRIBE - A
FRRREERRBFEANS L4
/E °

14. BREBF

KA NG RER R
BRI TR LA R B -

AEERERLE SRR
ZBM(KNRBHEAA

AAESREARE TR

2023 2022
—_=E2_= T
HK$°’000 HK$'000
FET FET
295,432 362,574
2022
= S
‘000
FhaR
487,358 487,358

BE_T__F=A=1+—HIL*F
B2EREERNLESEART
BRELEE  WhHnRNEREZ
TEESNRARRRN 2 FHITE
PTEL -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BE—E-_=F=ZF=+—HILFE

15. ¥ - B RRE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures
land and Leasehold and Motor
buildings  improvements equipment vehicles Total
il i fffh -
1iREF ES RERRK RE CH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AT FHET FET FET
COoST ﬁ$
t1 April 2021 “F--#NA-A 90,253 178,151 91,862 4,306 464,572
Exchange adjustment [R;ﬂ% 1,013 2,606 991 — 4,610
Additions AE — 45,222 32,410 — 77,632
Disposals/written off HE /M - (37,410) (34,086) — (71,496)
At 31 March 2022 A\_FZZFE=A=1-H 191,266 188,569 91177 4,306 475,318
Exchange adjustment L (1,868) (4,382) (1,853) - (8,103)
Additions E — 24,842 17,121 7,077 49,040
Disposalsfwritten off HE /W (1,182) (9,021) (1,105) - (11,308)
At 31 March 2023 RZBZ=4=A=1-H 188,216 200,008 105,340 11,383 504,947
DEPRECIATION il
At 1 April 2021 R=E-—ENA—-A 52,646 128,949 72,352 2,513 256,460
Exchange adjustment L 7 2,350 767 — 3,834
Provided for the year TEERE 4,064 26,744 7,110 327 38,245
Eliminated on disposals/ (& /48 & 44
written off — (33,340 (34,029) — (67,369)
At 31 March 2022 RZE-—E-f=+-H 57,427 124,703 46,200 2,840 231,170
Exchange adjustment AR (1,388) (3,839) (1,423) — (6,650)
Provided for the year rEERfE 3,984 27,079 11,494 1,054 43 611
Eliminated on disposals/ & /e & 8
written off (743) (8,750) (326) — (9,819)
At 31 March 2023 WZFZ=F=A=1-H 59,280 139,193 55,945 3,8%4 258,312
CARRYING VALUES EEWE
At 31 March 2023 A\_E-=#=A=1-AH 128,936 60,815 49,3% 7,489 246,635
At 31 March 2022 WZFZZF=A=1-H 133,839 63,866 44977 1,466 244,148
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eI HRR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BE T _=F=F=+—HIFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, using straight-line

method at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land and Over 20 years for those located

buildings in the PRC or 50 years for
those located in Hong Kong
Leasehold 20% - 33'/3% or over the lease
improvements terms, if shorter
Furniture, fixtures 10 - 20%
and equipment
Motor vehicles 20%

Owner-occupied leasehold land located in Hong
Kong and the PRC is included in property, plant and
equipment because the allocation between the land
portion and building portion cannot be made reliably.

The carrying value of property V¥ REBERE

comprises:

Properties located in: IR NAM B 2 Y5 -
Hong Kong B
PRC Fh

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited R A XTE BB R A 7

15. ¥)3€ - WEBERRE(E)

P& RIRE LA T HIE R R EHY)
% BESEMRERRB KK

HELHEET URPEAEE

20 F AL A
HAERIS0F
MEWMEERE 20% — 33"/3% X
R E (AR
ERHE)

R HER 10 — 20%
B
RE 20%

HRURBERTEZEZEEAMEE
Ti 2z £E D RABF EE D TRERI 52
wED - MEEBERBEELIIETA
ME - SR RRE -

2023 2022
—E-=4F —E=-=

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FETT

124,444 127,278
4,492 6,561
128,936 133,839




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BE—E-_=F=ZF=+—HILFE

16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 16. FAREE
Leased
properties
HEWE
HK$'000
FET
As at 31 March 2023 R-ZEBE-_=F=H=+—H
Carrying amount FREE 314,213
As at 31 March 2022 R=-B-=—%=A=+-—H
Carrying amount FREE 415,289
2023 2022
—=E-= —EF=-—
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Expenses related to leases HEZHBER
Expenses relating to short-term HOHEERECAX
leases 21,354 16,616
Variable lease payments not TEHEaERITETA
included in the measurement of Z A B E 1A
lease liabilities 56,420 30,380
Depreciation for the year FARAFE 136,662 127,166
214,436 174,162
Analysed as: P2k i
Distribution and selling expenses 2 # M IHER X 203,629 166,057
Administrative expenses ITHHEX 10,807 8,105
214,436 174,162
Additions to right-of-use assets FEREEEEMN 39,943 211,248
Total cash outflow for leases HERES R AR 216,579 171,417
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For both years, the Group leases various retail shops
and offices for its operations. Lease contracts are
entered into for fixed terms of 1 year to 8 years (2022:
1 year to 8 years), but may have extension options as
described below. Lease terms are negotiated on an
individual basis and contain a wide range of different
terms and conditions. In determining the lease term
and assessing the length of the non-cancellable
period, the Group applies the definition of a contract
and determines the period for which the contract is
enforceable.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group
entered into new lease agreements for the use of
leased properties for 1 years to 5 years (2022: 3
years to 6 years). The Group recognised additions
to right-of-use asset of HK$15,005,000 (2022:
HK$83,510,000) and related lease liabilities of
HK$14,990,000 (2022: HK$78,514,000) upon
commencement of leases, which constitute non-
cash transactions. In addition, lease terms of certain
leases were extended through modification and the
Group recognised additions to right-of-use assets
of HK$24,938,000 (2022: HK$127,738,000) and
related lease liabilities of HK$24,616,000 (2022:
HK$124,188,000) at the effective date of modification.

The Group regularly entered into short-term lease for
retails shops in the PRC with duration of one year or
less and the portfolio of short-term leases is similar
for both years. The increase in expenses relating to
short-term leases is due to more retails shops leased
in the PRC during the year.

Variable lease payments

Leases of retail shops, excluding short-term leases,
are either with only fixed lease payments or contain
variable lease payment that are based on certain
percentage of sales. The payment terms are common
in retail shops in Hong Kong and the PRC where
Group operates.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited R AF X{T& B AR A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BR-—F_=F=F=+—HIFE

16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued) 16. EREEE (&)

PRREFEE  AEBEpEEEHRES
EAEEEAHAE HESHUNETE
MB—=2NF(ZZE=_=—F: —&N
F)RI c EAFEREEE(WTA
) o MERRTIRERNEEREZ -
FrEERREHS B TR ARER
K o BEMEEBRHR LTG0l BiEEH
RER  AEEEAENZEE I
SRIE A 98 H| 1T A 40 2 HARE o

BE-_ET-_=f=A=+—8L*#
B AEERERBREYWEITLH
HeEWwE AR—Z2RF (T
F:ZEXRF)  AEERHEERA
e RN B A # & ZE 15,005,000
BT (ZZT -4 :83,510,000%T)
N AARITHE & 15 14,990,000/8 7T (=
T4 :78,514,000/&7T) B
FEERH - o BETFHLYBEB
fERmER - MAEERERERA
HAE W sR 4L N1 A4 & 7 24,938,000

BT (ZFE - —F 127,738,000
70) MBI E & & 24,616,000 T
(ZE=——4 :124,188,000787T)

AEERPRTEEEHT L EHE
g MHHA—FxARN - BEHBHEE
HAENMEFERS - RBBEEREH
RSB BRAFEETEBEER
LTEEMN -

AEEENR

TEREZHEE (BREEHHEE)EAE
EHENRABEAERENH (R
DERETEOHLHEER) - M3UE
PRAEBEEENTREECZTE
BT B E & o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR M A

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BR—F_=—F=F=+—HIFE

16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

Variable lease payments

For leases of retail shops that contain both fixed lease
payments and variable lease payment that are based
on 8% to 14% (2022: 6% to 14%) of sales, the amount
of fixed and variable lease payments paid/payable to

relevant lessors for the years are as below:

For the year ended 31 March 2023

Retail shops without
variable lease
payments

Retail shops with
variable lease
payments

TEE

TEE

For the year ended 31 March 2022

Retail shops without
variable lease
payments

Retail shops with
variable lease
payments

ZEE

TEE

TRTRRER R

SEAERENRY

16. ERREEE (&)
EE2h SO ENE D

REEEETHENREBEERE
EEI78%E14%(ZE__F : 6%
E14%) 2R BHENRCEEEHR
E - RUTFEEEN BN FHEEBH
MAZEERAEHENRESEN

T

PRAZHENKZ

REAEHENRZ

BE-Z-_=F=A=+—HLEFE

Number Fixed Variable Total
of shops payments payments payments
EHHE B E K CIE-SNEA NESE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET TFET FET

10 10,647 — 10,647

13 32,908 56,420 89,328

23 43,555 56,420 99,975
HE—_ZT_—_F=A=+—HLFE

Number Fixed Variable Total
of shops payments payments payments
EHHE ERENEA CIE-A0E ES-E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET FET

10 18,924 — 18,924

9 14,049 30,380 44,429

19 32,973 30,380 63,353
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023

&

P CE_CF- = —HIFE

16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

Variable lease payments (Continued)

The overall financial effect of using variable payment
terms is that higher rental costs are incurred by
shops with higher sales. Variable rent expenses are
expected to continue to represent a similar proportion
of shops sales in future years.

Extension options

The Group has extension options for certain leases
of retail shops. This is used to maximise operational
flexibility in terms of managing the assets used in
the Group’s operations. The extension option held
is exercisable only by the Group and not by the
respective lessor.

The Group assesses at lease commencement date
whether it is reasonably certain to exercise the
extension options. The directors of the Company
concluded the Group is reasonably certain to exercise
all leases with extension options considering all
relevant facts and circumstances including economic
incentives for exercising the options. As at 31 March
2023, the carrying amount of lease liability over the
periods of extension option is HK$160,554,000 (2022:
HK$164,433,000).

The Group reassesses whether it is reasonably certain
to exercise an extension option, upon the occurrence
of either a significant event or a significant change in
circumstances that is within the control of the lessee.
During the year, there is no such triggering event.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited R AF X{T& B AR A A

16. EREEE (&)

TEBEENKE)

ERAENKIER BBV BEER
HERRSZEBAEEZHESKA
B BHARZF  AJ2HASHX
HEBHEEREHFEERIEELL
& o

EERER

AEERETEEEAETRAMA
FIRIBIE - B S EEAEEZER
RAEFAZSEBREEETRA -
i 2 R SRR S ] e A SR 7T
AR AT -

rEERHERREBFTHESSEE
BESTHEEHREEE ZEI—1)
EEEERMR(BRITEEEE
KELEFE)  RRARIESERE &
SEEEETETEEMERERE - ©
ZE=F=A=+—H8 &HEE
EHEABRMmER 160,554,000 %
TT(ZZT - : 164,433,000/ 7T) °

B E B R E M SR AEHIEE R
ZIBRBELEBRBE  AEBEH
AfhREAEMETHEEHEEEE -
RAEE - SEEEE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BR—F_=—F=F=+—HIFE

16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued) 16. EREEE (&)

Restriction on assets

In addition, lease liabilities of HK$352,121,000
(2022: HK$441,410,000) are recognised with related
right-of-use assets of HK$314,213,000 (2022:
HK$415,289,000) as at 31 March 2023. The lease
agreements do not impose any covenants other than
the security interests in the leased assets that are
held by the lessor and the relevant leased assets may
not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

Details of the lease maturity analysis of lease
liabilities are set out in notes 28 and 38.

Rent concessions

During the year ended 31 March 2023, lessors of
various retail shops provided rent concessions to the
Group through reductions ranging from 23% to 100%
over three months (2022: ranging from 25% to 100%
over one to three months).

The Group opts not to apply the practical expedient
on application of Amendment to HKFRS 16 “COVID-
19-related rent concession”. Changes in lease
payments were assessed under the general
requirement of HKFRS 16 and accounted for as lease
modifications. The relevant rent concessions resulted
in the reduction of the Group’s carrying amount of
right-of-use assets and related lease liabilities of
HK$850,000 with the combined effect of revised
lease payments from the rent concessions and the
reduction in the revised incremental borrowing rates
determined upon the date of modification (2022
reduction of carrying amount of right-of-use assets
and related lease liabilities of HK$3,233,000 with the
combined effect of revised lease payments from the
rent concessions and the increment in the revised
incremental borrowing rates determined upon the
date of modification).

BEZRH

AN BN B _=F=RA=+—
A2 M8 FER#EEE314,213,000/%8
T(ZZFEZ 4 : 415,289,000/8 7T )
MREEABE352,121,0008 (=
T 4 : 441,410,000 ) -
EmmTER TEREH - HEHE
EE(BEBEARE) cBEFRmERS
A8 REHE & & & T A FAME S B /B
& o

HEaBE2HERHE»MHBIHR
Bf3E 28 2 38 °

HEm%

REBEE-E-_=F=A=+—HLHF
B ZEAZTEENHEARRERIR
HELRER - BIEH23% £ 100% T
Z. AH=@EA(ZEE-_—%F: FHE
H25% 2 100% 1% » BE—Z= =1
H) e

AEBERETERE BV RS %R
F16R (BRI AR) [2019 B AR m S
HEAReRE] 2EER X - HEN
REEHIRIER B SRS AERIZE 16
SR —MBTEETHME  WAKRAM
Btk - HERASREERAEBIFE
BEEEREBEEAEZEREAER
RS REEBNEETHENRK
FMER] B HREE TE 2 1&1E AT & & 3K F
TR RERE 2R 4> 850,000
T(ZE-_—F : FHEEENEHA
HEABsFEERRESRRER
BRI HENR NS HHERE
ZIERTIE EERFIRIB NI E
ZmRE 4> 3,233,000/ 7T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BR-—F_=F=F=+—HIFE

17.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group leases out various residential properties
under operating leases with rentals payable monthly.
The leases typically run for an initial period of two
years.

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as
a result of the lease arrangements, as all leases are
denominated in the respective functional currency
of group entity. The lease contracts do not contain
residual value guarantee or lessee’s option to
purchase the property at the end of lease term.

17. REWHE

AEENEEHETALBZEEE
ME - WIRAXNEE - HE 295
HIfR AR SMF -

AEEY EABE ZBEM AR IMER
% REARMAHEEHAEEER
BRI ERE HEAOTES
FHEEERNEARATAHESRR
RREBBEVMR ZEEE -

HK$'000
TET
FAIR VALUE NEE

At 1 April 2022 R-_ZE-_—_#MA—H —
Additions NE 8,196

Changes in fair value recognised in RiBRERZ AT EE
profit or loss 65
At 31 March 2023 RZZEZ=F=H=+—H 8,261

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties
as at 31 March 2023 has been arrived at on the basis
of a valuation carried out on the year ended date
by GCA Professional Services Group, independent
qualified professional valuer not connected to the
Group.

The change in fair value, being an unrealised gain, on
investment properties amounted to HK$65,000 (2022:
nil) during the year ended 31 March 2023 is included
in profit or loss (included in other gains and losses).

The fair values of certain Group’s investment
properties as at 31 March 2023 have been arrived
at on the basis of valuations carried out at the end
of the reporting period by an independent qualified
professional valuer, which is not connected with
the Group. The management works closely with the
qualified external valuer to establish the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs to the model. The
management reports the findings to the board of
directors of the Company every half-year to explain
the cause of fluctuations in the fair value of the
investment property.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited R AF X{T& B AR A A

AEEREWER_ZT-_=ZF=HA
=+—HZAFERE—REAE
EWERE B A EREELERM
BEEEREEENFEBRETZ
HEMmMSE -

REBEE-_ZT-_=F=ZA=+—HILHF
B REWEZAFEES(BARE
BULES) A 65,0008 (- —4F :
) Wit AR B s G AR E R E
1B) -

AEEETREMER T _=F=
AZ+—HBZRAFEDNRE-RER
SEYEBECBIABERERME
MR ERMMRETZHENSL - &
HEEESERIMEEMEDAIE
N EE 2 AERT MR AR
B EEESYFRAARRESGE
BER  BEREMEAFELERK
BZRA -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BE—E-_=F=ZF=+—HILFE

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17. REWE(£Z)

The valuation of Group’s investment properties at 31
March 2023 is derived from the basis of capitalisation
of net income with due allowance for the reversionary
income potential but without allowance for any
expenses or taxation which may be incurred in
effecting a sale, and where appropriate, cross
reference by sales comparables.

In estimating the fair values of the properties, the
highest and best use of the properties is their current
use.

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties
situated in Japan are classified as Level 3 of the fair
value hierarchy. There were no transfers into or out of
Level 3 during the year.

The following table gives information about how
the fair values of these investment properties as at
31 March 2023 are determined (in particular, the
valuation techniques and inputs used), as well as
the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value
measurements are categorised based on the degree
to which the inputs to the fair value measurements is
observable.

AEBRENER-_T_=F=A
=T —HZEERFREENMERE
YW SERWABNEL TS BE
WX EAHERF A BEELE Z(EME R
HARBELEE - X (WER) BAE
LEHEFERIN2E -

Wi EE DL ATERS - RS
L SERBEREAEREMAR -

AEEURBARZEEME 2 2FE
BRERATFEREEIR -FAR-F
SABEMEMBAREL -

TREIIN B _=F=A=+—H
BRANAEEXFRENE 2 FE
(LERFER 2 EERT M AR
B MEBRAFEAERREGA
BB BRREEETIEZATE
REZER -

Fair value Significant
Description hierarchy Valuation technique(s) unobservable input(s)
i DNFEEE AERD EXTHEEBRAYE
Investment properties  Level 3 Income approach method (i) Capitalisation rate
located in Japan assuming sale in their

existing states and by (if)  Prevailing market rent

taking into account of the per month

current market rents and

the reversionary income

potential of the tenancies.
R BAARZIKREME FE 3R Wk - BREBRATET () BRMEX

HEXERBAMSES

MEEZER

W& o (i) BARTMSEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eI HRR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BE T _=F=F=+—HIFE

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 18. & A B 2

Cost of investments in unlisted RIELEMBERRZEE
associates BN

Exchange adjustments P& i, 58 2

Share of post-acquisition profits,  EB{5UEZEF] - Nk
net of dividends received B B

Included in the interests of investments are goodwill
of HK$25,842,000 (2022: HK$26,817,000) arising on
acquisition of associates.

Details of the Group’s major associates at 31 March
2023 and 2022 are as follows:

Place of
incorporation Proportion of
Name of associate  and operation ownership interest
LM B 3L B
BERNTER EENH Fi & R 2 L Bl
2022
—T--F
NFEERNBERRF Taiwan 60% 60%
(Th# ) =
KEEZRHBB AR Taiwan 60% 60%
(5% 1) =)
s EERNBRAR Taiwan 60% 60%
(&%) =)

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited R A XTE BB R A 7

2023 2022
—_E_= —E-=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
59,192 59,192
904 3,440
21,456 20,503
81,552 83,135

WEEZPRIERWEBRES AT mE
K7 HEE 258420008 T (ZE -
F :26,817,000/87T) ©

AEBTIZEHERNTANR_T_=FRK
—E - —FZAZt+—RHBZHEHBW
T

Proportion of
voting power held Principal activity

HEZRERELH TEER
2022
—E-CF
(note)

(Hit)

40% 40% Watch trading

40% 40% Watch trading

40% 40% Watch trading



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2023
BE—E-_=F=ZF=+—HILFE

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Aggregate information of associates that are not

individually material

18. A& N7 2Rk (8
YHBAEAZHEAT S EH

The Group’s share of profit and

AEBEREENEEH

total comprehensive income W e 4258
Aggregate carrying amount of REEGZEERE A
the Group’s interests in these < BREMAE

associates

Note: On 22 January 2020, the Group acquired additional

20% interest (“Interest”) over J¥r, k¥ and
#@¥7 together with a call option exercisable by
the seller with aggregate cash consideration
of HK$12,000,000. Pursuant to the agreement,
the seller has the right to buy back the Interest,
exercisable between 22 January 2022 to 21 February
2022, at exercisable price of HK$12,000,000 plus
interest of 4% per annum. Upon completion of
the transaction, the Group recognised the call
option derivative at fair value of HK$10,991,000
and consideration of the additional interests of
HK$22,991,000, respectively. The Group holds 60%
of the issued share capital in each of the associate
after the acquisitions are completed. However, under
the shareholders’ agreement, other shareholders
have the right to appoint three out of five directors
to the board of these associates and since the
critical business decision of these associates are
determined by the simple majority in the board, the
directors of the Company considers that the Group
does not have control over of these associates and
they are therefore continued to be classified as
associates of the Group. During the year ended 31
March 2022, the call option lapsed and the derivative
financial instrument was derecognised and a gain
of HK$14,000,000 was recognised to profit or loss
as “other gains or losses” during the year ended 31
March 2022.

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
13,116 14,789
81,552 72,144

#iiE R—T-_TF-A-+=H X%

B LA 4838 € X {8 12,000,000 % 7T
W BE %7~ KT KRR FTEEIN20%
B ((ZER]EREBSI T
F 2 REEE - REHR AT
RZBE-_—_F—A=-+=-HA=E==%F
T - A+ —HEM B R ZE
%5 17{# {8 A& 12,000,000 % 7T N
FREA% - RPTHKE  AEE
DRERIE AN EFE ZREH
T4 T A 10,991,000 7T & 58
INEE 2= 2 B 22,991 ooo,%yz o
$E.EA”&E§E&1§EA%“EXH§
NABEITRAB0% - A R
BERRGZ  EMRREHESIZ
EMENRAREEP2=F M
HRZE ﬁ;—:@?zﬁ%@%ﬂ‘ka&
HEESMBEARZERE AR
§$paﬁ$%ljfm§%%/&ﬂz#
HlE - B EEEES B ALREE
ZHERR - HE_T-_—_F=A
=+—HLFE  BRUWREIE
&?ﬁié%ﬂlﬂa%wﬁﬂﬁ‘
4 %5 14,000,000 T2 R EE
:$::$ A=+—HILFExE
B ERA sk Eig] -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eI HRR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023

BE-E-=F=F=1+—HIFE

19.

INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE 19.

Cost of investment in an unlisted A—FRFEEFTEERNRZ
joint venture B

Exchange adjustments P& i, 58 2

Share of post-acquisition profit FEAL UK B 1% 0% 7

H—EEE QT ZER
2023 2022
—_E_= —E-=

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FET

21,794 21,793

(2,628) (594)

5,264 5,489

24,430 26,688

Details of the Group’s joint venture at 31 March 2023
and 2022 are as follows:

Place of
incorporation

Proportion of
ownership interest

Name of joint venture and operation 2023 & 2022

FrafEEs L fl

“BIZFR

RENAER AMEIREELH i gt ;2

EREXEZRARAF The PRC 40%
(“Huimei”) ([EZ]) Y

Note: The Group holds 40% of the paid-in capital of
Huimei. Huimei is jointly controlled by the Group
and the other significant equity owner by virtue of
contractual arrangements among equity owners.
Therefore, Huimei is classified as a joint venture of
the Group.

Included in the interest of investment is goodwill
of HK$3,925,000 (2022: HK$4,235,000) arising on
acquisition of Huimei during the year ended 31 March
2012.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited R A XTE BB R A 7

AEBEERAN _ZE_=F_F
TTHFEZHA=Z1+—HZHBOT

Proportion of
voting power held
2023 & 2022
BRZRRELS
ZBIZER
—E-C-F

Principal activity

FEXK

40%
(note)
(Htat)

AEBRFBEEZTEHARAZ

40% - [EERAZWEEE A ZME
RV ZENTMZALEEHES —
ERREER ALRIZES] o Bt
EESEAAREB ZEENA] -

Watch trading

Hiet -

REEZTPEEAREZE T ——F
=A=+— Etiﬁﬁ%%[%ﬁ?
A7 EE3,925000 T (ZE - =
1 4,235,000/ 7T) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BE-_E-_=F=ZFA=+—HILFE

19. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE 19. iE—EE&E AR 2R (&)
(Continued)
Information of the joint venture that is not WHBERAERZEE QAT ZER

individually material

2023 2022
—E=-= T
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
The Group’s share of (loss) REBEEWS (BE) 2R
profit and total comprehensive 2 (X)) Wmiass
(expense) income (225) 425
Carrying amount of the Group’s ~ KNEB(EZAL AT 2
interest in the joint venture @2 REE 24,430 26,688
20. EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE 20. BAFEFAHMEEKEZ
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE AT R
INCOME
2023 2022
—=E-= —EF=-—
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Unlisted investments FELEMTE 13,359 13,436
Note: & -
The directors of the Company have elected to designate BRARRIESMEE  BRZEREANE
these investments as at FVTOCI as they believe that mREAFEZERESEASEE AR
recognising short-term fluctuations in these investments’ REMNMBAEZSRERERAERERE
fair value in profit or loss would not be consistent with the ZRENT  AUHBREBZESRERT
Group’s strategy of holding these investments for long-term BIEAFEF AL MR ERE -

purposes and realising their performance in the long run.

Annual Report 2023 — & — = F F 7§ 179



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2023
BE T _=F=F=+—HIFE

EHTA

2023 2022
—=— = e —

—_— = —_—<

HK$°000 HK$000
FHET TET

—_ 7,158

21. DEBT INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE 21. BAFEFARMEZEKEZ
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME
Listed investments EHhiE
Debt securities listed overseas EEFFENTF2.89%
with fixed interests ranging £3.25% RN TR
from 2.89% to 3.25% per —E-_H®N\A=H
annum and maturity dates E-T-=F—Ah
ranging from 3 August 2022 to HE|E 285 £
9 January 2023 (EUECES
Analysed as: DR
Current portion BN ER &R >

At 31 March 2022, debt instruments at FVTOCI were
stated at fair values, which were determined with
reference to the quoted bid prices available and
quoted market prices provided by brokers which
were financial institutions.

These debt securities were held by the Group within
a business model whose objective was to collect their
contractual cash flows which were solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding and to sell these financial assets. Hence,
the investments in debt securities were classified
as at FVTOCI. The debt securities has been fully
redeemed during the year.
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— 7,158

RZE-ZZF=A=+—H &BA¥
Bt AEwezEKka 2B T AN
NEBEAR  EN2EABZFAHRE
RENMBLL (ASREE) TRt
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BE-_E-_=F=ZFA=+—HILFE

21.

22,

DEBT INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME (Continued)

The amount of the Group’s debt instruments at
FVTOCI denominated in currency other than
functional currency of the relevant group’s entity was
set out below:

United States Dollars (“US$”) Ex(ZEmxT])

Details of impairment assessment of debt instruments
at FVTOCI are set out in note 38.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

21. BNV EFAEMEZEKEZ
BERIA(E)

AEEZAHESAREMEEEEGE
BEHRTAZSBEU N XAHEREE
ERVEEEUIIN EHBHE

2023 2022

—_=— —_—<

HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TET

— 7,158

BRRAFESFARMEEKSE ZE
BT EREN G ZFBENHESS -

22. BERNFEFABGEZEHEE

2023 2022
—E2-= —E-=
HK$°000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
Listed investments FHERE
Equity securities listed in RER LT ZRAE S
Hong Kong 13,436 3,873
Equity securities listed in RBIN T 2 RARF 5
overseas 1,228 1,501
14,664 5,374
Unlisted investments ELEM"E 15,007 15,616
29,671 20,990
Analysed as: DA
Current portion BIERER 2 14,664 5,374
Non-current portion JERNHAER & 15,007 15,616
29,671 20,990
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BE—E-_=F=F=+—HILFE

22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

The amount of the Group’s financial assets at FVTPL
denominated in currencies other than functional
currencies of the relevant group’s entities is set out

22%%$E#AE§Z$@§E
AEBRATEIFABS 2 EREE

ZEBATXHEHEREERGE
EBLAINZ EEEHE -

below:

2023 2022
—_E_= —E-=
HK$°’000 HK$'000
F#ET F#T
US$ e 16,235 17,117
23. INVENTORIES 23. &
2023 2022
—_E_= —E=-=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Watches F ik 411,148 465,647
Accessories and parts [T E =S 11,054 17,978
422,202 483,625
24. LOAN RECEIVABLES 24. EWER
2023 2022
—E-=4F —E=-=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Loan receivables at amortised B H AR 2 2 I
cost (note a) EX(Hita) — 46,319
Loan receivables at FVTPL WA EET ABEZEW
(note b and ¢) ER(KiEb Kc) 61,402 —
61,402 46,319

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited R A XTE BB R A 7



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BE—E-_=F=ZF=+—HILFE

24. LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The following is the maturity profile of the loan
receivables at the end of the reporting period:

Repayable after one year R—FREER
Repayable within one year R—FANEE
Notes:

(a)

On 13 November 2020, the Group entered into a loan
facility agreement (“Facility A”) with an independent
third party (“Borrower A”) with an amount not
exceeding United States Dollar (“US$”) 5,200,000, to
fund the Borrower A’s obligation in lending to another
party (“Project Borrower A”) who has beneficial
interest in certain properties in Indonesia (“Properties
A”). The loan carried interest at a fixed rate of 10%
per annum and is repayable after 18 months and 5
business days from the date of drawn down. As at
31 March 2021, Borrower A drew down the facility
in full. Pursuant to the Facility A, the Group was
entitled to take assignment of the beneficial interest
in Properties A by way of security in the event of
default by Borrower A and a personal guarantee.
Based on the relevant terms in the Facility A and
the personal guarantee provided to the Group, the
directors of the Company considered that the loan
had contractual right to cash flow that represented
contractual cash flow that were solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding,
and was accounted for as amortised cost. During
the year ended 31 March 2022, Project Borrower A
had identified a new buyer for Properties A. It was
expected that disposal would be concluded soon and
the loan would be repaid upon the disposal. In this
regard, on 18 May 2022, the Group entered into a
supplementary agreement with Borrower A to extend
the loan by 4 months to 31 August 2022. The directors
of the Company considered the fair value of Properties
A and concluded that the loss given at default was
insignificant. As a result, no impairment on ECL was
recognised on this loan receivable at amortised cost
as at 31 March 2022. During the year ended 31 March
2023, the loan and accrued interest were repaid in
full.

24, EWWEF (&)
AT AR 2 3 HA ok fE U 205 2

oL
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
20,038 —
41,364 46,319
61,402 46,319

Hiit -

(a)

R-ZEBE-_EF+—A+=0" ' K&
BHE—2BIE=A(BEZAFR]D
I — & BT B 5,200,000 3%
TUERDZEFBE B
ER]) BERARERFE—H
([EEfEHAl ERHE2ETY
¥([WEF NP HEEEEHER) Z
EBREES - ZEREETFEF
E10% T8 - ARNIREH BfE + )\
BMAZEREZEREEE KT
—T—FZA=+—H" BERAFRZE
BRI ZEE - RERER @ HE
RARREAEREDN  KXEEAF
OB AZXEZYEFZE
i - IRIERMERBEBEEG M
AEEREZEAER  A28E
EREZEEREMBERS K E
FEBEAEHNFEMNTNELIRE
REMBLREEALERN - BAA
ERIVIVEBHENA - B2 - —

ZA=+—BLFE EHEEBEXA
FEAYMERBF —ZHER - &
HHEBEEEE MEFRBRLE
BEE -RUmE  AEBR_Z
T ZFRATNBHEERARITL
Hrhz ABEFRER4EAZE
—E-__FNA=1+—8 K27
BEZCEZEEMERZLAFE UR
BENEEXEZEBITEKR B
 RZTE-_—_F=A=+—8"
5% ZE PR W B TR0 SR AR S A R RERR
EHEEERRE - REZE -Z
T ZFZA=+—HILFE %E
ERRERFEEBEHEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BE—E-_=F=F=+—HILFE

24. LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

On 8 July 2022, the Group entered into a loan facility
agreement (“Facility B”) with an independent third
party (“Borrower B”) with an amount not exceeding
US$5,000,000, to fund the Borrower B's obligation
in lending to another party (“Project Borrower B”)
who has beneficial interest in certain properties in
Vietnam and Indonesia (“Properties B”). The loan
to Borrower B carries interest at a fixed rate of 10%
per annum and is repayable on 9 June 2023. As at
31 March 2023, Borrower B drew down the facility in
full and the amount is expected to be repaid within
1 year, and hence presented as current assets. The
shareholder of Borrower B has pledged its shares
in Borrower B to the Group as collateral. This loan
receivable is accounted for as FVTPL as the directors
of the Company consider that the contractual right
to cash flow of the loan receivable do not represent
contractual cash flow that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding.
The management considers that the exposure to
the price risk is insignificant after considering the
valuation of the underlying assets held by the Project
Borrower B. The loan and accrued interest are fully
repaid as of the date of this report.

On 22 December 2022, the Group entered into a loan
facility agreement (“Facility C”) with an independent
third party (“Borrower C”) with an amount not
exceeding US$2,500,000, to fund the Borrower C
in acquiring the freehold land in Thailand through
its wholly-owned subsidiary. The loan to Borrower
C carries interest at fixed rate of 12% per annum
and is repayable after 18 months from the date of
drawdown. As at 31 March 2023, Borrower C drew
down the facility in full and the amount is expected
to be repaid over 1 year, and hence presented as
non-current assets. The shareholder of Borrower C
has pledged its shares in Borrower C to the Group
as collateral. This loan receivable is accounted for
as FVTPL as the directors of the Company consider
that the contractual right to cash flow of the loan
receivable do not represent contractual cash flow that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding. The management considers
that the exposure to the price risk is insignificant after
considering the valuation of the underlying assets
ultimately held by the Borrower C.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited R AF X{T& B AR A A

24, EWWEF (&)
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(b)

(c)

R-ZE-_—_F+ANH  AEEHHE
—BBIUE=ZFUERAZDE
N — {7 & % EE 85,000,000 7T
ZEZXBEHBE(RMEL])  AfE
RACERFR—FUBEBERA
ol ERBEEHEzETYE
((MELDFPHEEEEER) ZE
BIREES - MIERALRENE
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ETZ2ERmER E(RER]) -
BEFIARBBEEZENB AWK
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mERARRENEFTIZEEFF
R12%ET B - ARIRE B B st
18R EE R_T-_=F=A4
=+—H8  BERXAREZERIE
B WHEBERN1FEFAREE At
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2023
BE-_E-_=F=ZFA=+—HILFE

25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 25. EZ REMERIRR

2023 2022
—E-= g
HK$°’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Trade receivables g 5 EWIE 267,161 182,436
Less: Allowance for credit losses & - s EEBEE (4,653) (2,821)
262,508 179,615
Property rental and other deposits ¥ ¥ & R E iz 21,198 14,401
Receivable from sale of loan KB & EWE A E
receivable I8 — 4,975
Advances to suppliers M ER R 6,772 1,886
Others HAth 4,881 4,220
295,359 205,097

As at 1 April 2021, trade receivables from contract
with customers, net of allowance for credit losses,

amounted to HK$260,527,000.

T_—FWA—R  KAEFA

Q
—_—<

HV2EBEFRRBERIREERBER
&) /260,527,000 7 7T ©

The Group maintains a general credit policy of not AEBEHETEARZTEHEERTT
more than 30 days for its retails sales in department MBIz —MEEHK - TEX
stores. Sales made to retail customers are mainly FPHEFENURSET UTRES
made on a cash basis. The following is an aged EWERR (HIREEEIERE) REW
analysis of trade receivables net of allowance for HIRIZEZEB 2R DT -
credit losses based on the invoice date at the end of
the reporting period:
2023 2022
—ZE_= T _F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Age ARie
0 to 30 days 0OZ30H 217,860 165,998
31 to 60 days 312 60H 20,246 9,047
61 to 90 days 61290 H 17,708 %)
Over 90 days @90 H 6,694 4 567
262,508 179,615
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2023
BE T _=F=F=+—HIFE

25.

26.

27.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

As at 31 March 2023, included in the Group’s
trade receivables balance are debtors with
aggregate carrying amount of HK$44,648,000
(2022: HK$13,617,000) which are past due as at
the reporting date. Out of the past due balances,
HK$6,694,000 (2022: HK$4,567,000) has been
past due 90 days or more. These balances are
not considered as in default because historical
experience indicated that such receivables could be
recoverable from the relevant debtors. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.

Details of the impairment assessment of trade and
other receivables are stated in note 38.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents include demand deposits
and short-term deposits for the purpose of meeting
the Group’s short-term cash commitments, which
carry interest at market rates ranged from 0.125% to
3.52% (2022: 0.01% to 0.3%) per annum.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND
CONTRACT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables

Trade payables Z SRR
Payroll and welfare payables JEf T & RAEF
Commission payables EAe

Renovation work payables FETEIET TRRER N

PRC VAT and other taxes payables F&1~ 1 B 1%{E f7 K H b

I8
Property rental fee payables i ANREEZ KA
Dividend payable FET AR B
Others HAb

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited R A XTE BB R A 7

25.

26.

27.

ES5REMEBWRERR(E)

RZE-_=F=A=+—H &Xx&£H
ZESRREREHRBIEEFSART
4{H 44,648,000 (T - —4F :
13,617,000/8 70 ) Z FEUER 3K + 7%
SRWEZNERHBCBE - BHAL
g2 © 6,694,000 (T - =
4,567,000/ 0) BB HI90 B s A F -
ZERBBTIEERBEY BN A
BB RZ SRR T EMEE
HAWE o« REEWERZSEHRT
BEMEKHER -

B NHEHMEWRER ZBEGHFS
B MIFE3S ©

ReRkERRESER

RekERBSEBREETHTRK
ARTASBEEHRESAE ZEE
FH - mmBSENENF0125EE
3E2E(ZZE - :001EZXE03
[E)&H& -

BESREMENRIAREHN

=R

EZRHEMBLERD
2023 2022
—E_= —EoF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
38,184 35,278
120,174 123,236
42,330 32,672
5,610 2,525
43,886 26,806
13,130 9,652
—_ 13,214
14,399 27,442
277,713 270,825




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR M A

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BE-_E-_=F=ZFA=+—HILFE

27. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND
CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued)

Trade and other payables (Continued)

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the
reporting period:

Age ARie

0 to 60 days 0&£60H

61 to 90 days 61290 H
Over 90 days Q0 HM

The average credit period on purchases of goods is
30 days.

Contract liabilities

HEFRZANAR

Contract liabilities on sales of
watches

As at 1 April 2021, contract liabilities amounted to
HK$4,502,000.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, revenue
recognised in current year of HK$26,817,000 (2022:
HK$4,502,000) was included in the contract liabilities
balance at the beginning of the year.

27.

5 REMERRKARE K
sk (#)

EZREMBEMRR(E)

AT R85 A RN 2 B R 1% %
RN 2B

2023 2022
—E-= —E-=

HK$°000 HK$'000

FETT FET

35,557 34,587

— 48

2,627 643

38,184 35,278

BEEmFHEEH/I0A -

= h-Ri
2023 2022
—E-=4F —E-=
HK$°000 HK$'000
FETT FET
20,677 26,817

R-_ZE-_—FWNA—H  AHBEEAE
4,502,000 7T -

BE_T-_=%F=A=+—HItF
B RAFERER W% 26,817,000
BIL(ZZT = —F : 4,502,000 7T)
Bt ARFEYZ2EHBEEHRT -
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For the year ended 31 March 2023
BE-_E_=F=Hf=+—HIFE

27. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND 27.

CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued)

Contract liabilities (Continued)

Contract liabilities represent receipts in advance for
sales of watches, giving rise to contract liabilities
until revenue is recognised and the contract liabilities
decreased during the year ended 31 March 2023
due to less deposits are received for the obligation
to deliver watches to customers (2022: The contract
liabilities increased during the year ended 2022
increase due to more deposits were received for the
obligation to deliver watches to customers).

28. LEASE LIABILITIES

Lease liabilities payable:
Within one year
Within a period of more than
one year but not
more than two years
Within a period of more than
two years but not
more than five years
Within a period of more than
five years

Less: Amount due for settlement

with 12 months shown
under current liabilities

Amount due for settlement after
12 months shown under
non-current liabilities

28.

ENEERE :
—FR
HBiE—FETBERE
Z HRA

HEMFENBEBARSF
Z HEA

HiBhEF 2 BER

B ORBBRE TR 121E
ARNBEREZ
IR

#ﬁEJJEﬁTﬁm_—\ 1218 A
®REEE 2 IR
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?/\Mﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ AR EH

BHBERHEEERZANE - &
EFENABEEEERRERIE
MENBERBE T _=F=A4

=+—HLFERY  REEARE

FRISESENEE - FAAKRMIEESR

P(ZEZZF: GHEEREEC

T FUEFEEN RRAAERAE

ERFEZNEM - FAARMREIE

) e

HES®E

2023 2022

—_E_= —E-=

HK$°000 HK$'000

FETT FET

121,724 114,744

113,966 108,806

116,431 213,459

— 4,401

352,121 441,410

(121,724) (114,744)

230,397 326,666
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BE-_E-_=F=ZFA=+—HILFE

29.

30.

BANK LOAN

Uesecured bank loan repayable
(based on the scheduled
repayment dates set out in the
loan agreements):

Within one year

TR AR
ARATHIRER

—FRA

The bank loan as at 31 March 2022 carried effective
interest rate at 2.18% per annum. The management
considered that the interest rate benchmark reform
will not have a material impact on the Group’s
variable bank loan as the bank loan was fully repaid
during the year ended 31 March 2023.

The Group’s bank loan that are denominated in

currencies other than the functional currency of the
relevant group’s entities is set out below:

A$ RIT

DEFERRED TAXATION

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax
balances for financial reporting purposes:

Deferred tax assets EERRTBE E
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEEE

29. SRITER

BEMRITER (KRBREK

= H)

2023 2022
—_E_= —=E-=

HK$’000 HK$'000

FETT FET

— 28,708

N_E-_—_F=A=1+—HZETE
BTEEBRFFR218%:T 8 - AR
ZIRTTERERBE_ZE_=ZF=A1
ST RALFERHEERE  HWEEE
RENEEENEFSHAEE 2]
SBIRITERBREATE -

REBZRITERAT XFEHERBEE
EERNGEEENINCEIEEHE

2023 2022
—_=E_= —E-=

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

— 28,708

30. IEERIE

AT A VB 75 R Sl 2 IR AE TR IR A R
D

PLIPX] 2022
—E-= T
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
4,503 4,248
(26,162) (30,373)
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For the year ended 31 March 2023
BE—E-_=F=F=+—HILFE

30. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued) 30.

The following are the major deferred tax (liabilities)
assets recognised and movements thereon during
the current and prior years:

ECL Distributable

ELERIR ()

UTRARAFERANEFE®RRAZ E
ZREHIE(AE) EEREES -

provision profits of  Distributable
of trade associates and profits of
receivable  a joint venture subsidiaries Others Total
EARUWERN BERTR
ZREEE -MRELR (] A
BERGE  <U20ER A KER At CE
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
TET TET T T T
(note)
(Hi)
At 1 April 2021 R-E-—%MA-A 1173 (2,925) (15,872) 2,842 (14,782)
Exchange adjustment L 38 - - (6) 32
Reversal of withholding ~ AEIBRTMH
tax payment — 1,437 6,893 — 8,330
(Charge) credit to profit  FMEZ (MK )3FA
or loss (506) (3,159) (16,747) 707 (19,705)
At 31 March 2022 R-B--F=fA=1-H 705 (4,647) (25,726) 3,543 (26,125)
Exchange adjustment BN AR (60) - — - (60)
Reversal of withholding ~ &EIB(HEHH
tax payment — 2,554 20,779 — 23,333
Credit (charge) to profit ~ REREHA (1K)
or loss 521 (2,784) (16,338) (206) (18,807)
At 31 March 2023 RZB-=F=HA=1-H 1,166 (4,877) (21,285) 3,337 (21,659)

Note: The amounts as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March
2022 mainly represent deductible temporary
differences arising from property, plant and
equipment.

At 31 March 20283, the Group had unutilised tax
losses of HK$472,967,000 (2022: HK$350,409,000)
available to set off against future assessable profits.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of these unutilised tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future profit stream. The tax losses
of the Group at 31 March 2023 and 2022 may be
carried forward indefinitely.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited R AF X{T& B AR A A

g RZBE_=ZF=ZA=+—AHAK=Z
CoFE=A=+—HZEEIER
Y WERREEE ZATHRE
BFEHE o

R-EBE-_=F=A=+—H K£H
BEAREBREIE 472,967,000 7T
(Z= = —4% : 350,409,000 T ) A]
I R R ERTBOEF - AR KEETR
AR HOR TR - R B E RS
RAREEERRERAEERBEE - £5%
BER - -_=FK_FT-_"%=H
=+—HZBEEEERBBLEE o
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BE—E-_=F=ZF=+—HILFE

30. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued) 30. IEERIE ()
Under the EIT Law, withholding tax with tax rate of BRIBAEFRGEMRE BZZEZNF
5% or 10% is imposed on dividends declared in —A—HBR AEWBARMEIR
respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries from B BRIV 7 2 B % /A%sﬁlﬁ5%jz
1 January 2008 onwards. As at 31 March 2023, 10% 2 BB - RZFEZ=F=H
deferred tax liabilities of HK$21,285,000 (2022: =+—H BRER T%%Jd%qﬂl
HK$25,726,000) has been provided for in full in Mﬁ%@aﬂ%ﬁﬁliﬂqX%i““/ﬁﬂx
respect of the temporary difference arising from the B MERZEMNBRAAIEZEE
undistributed profits earned by the PRC subsidiaries F—A—HRBEIRZKRDIKEF Fﬁ
from 1 January 2008 onwards as the directors of the EECZERZEZRIENREENIE
Company considered that these subsidiaries will B1E21,2850008 (T :
continue to distribute dividend in the foreseeable 25,726,000 7T) °
future.
31. SHARE CAPITAL 31. |’k
Number
of shares Amount
RO E ok |
HK$'000
FET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each &M EE0.10/8 T2
=R ilil
Authorised: ERE
At 1 April 2021, 31 March 2022 R-ZE-—FPPA—
and 31 March 2023 H - —ZZ2E-_—_F=#8
=t+—BEkZZT==
=A=+—H 1,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BERITRAMT :
At 1 April 2021, 31 March 2022 R-ZE-_—FWA—
and 31 March 2023 HZE-_%=HA
=t+—HERZZZ==%F
=HA=+—8H 487,358,224 48,736
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2023

HEr—_FE_—=

F=ZF=+—HIFEE

32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION

(a)

2003 Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at
the Company’s special general meeting held
on 3 November 2003, the Company adopted a
share option scheme (the “2003 Share Option
Scheme”). The 2003 Share Option Scheme was
valid for a period of ten years commencing on
the adoption date on 3 November 2003.

Under the 2003 Share Option Scheme, options
may be granted to any director, employee,
consultant, customer, supplier or advisor of the
Group or a company in which the Company
holds an interest or a subsidiary of such
company, the trustee of the eligible persons or
a company beneficially owned by the eligible
persons. The purpose of the 2003 Share Option
Scheme is to attract and retain quality personnel
and other persons to provide incentive to them
to contribute to the business and operation of
the Group. No eligible persons shall be granted
an option in any 12-month period for such
number of shares (issued and to be issued)
which in aggregate would exceed 1% of the
share capital of the Company in issue on the last
day of such 12-month period unless approval
of the shareholders of the Company has been
obtained in accordance with the Listing Rules.
The exercisable period is determined by the
directors of the Company, which shall not be
more than ten years from the date of grant, and
may include a minimum period for which the
options must be held before it can be exercised.
The exercise price per share payable on the
exercise of an option equals to the highest of:

(a) the nominal value of one share;
(b) the closing price per share as stated in the

Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on
the date of grant; and
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BE—E-_=F=ZF=+—HILFE

32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION
(Continued)

32. LROABER NS (&)

(a) 2003 Share Option Scheme (Continued) (a) —ZEE=FBERETE(£E)

(c) the average closing price per share as (c) BRIPREEREHERR A
quoted in the Stock Exchange’s daily EeE¥BEEBIFEHER
quotations sheet for the five business days BRABz2BREHKT

immediately preceding the date of grant.

On 6 April 2011, 32,300,000 share options were
granted and on 29 August 2011, 23,000,000
share options were granted under the 2003
Share Option Scheme. The options may be
exercised by the grantees at any time during
the option period up to the termination of
employment or exercisable period. All share
options vested immediately at the date of
grant. The estimated fair values of the options
granted on these dates are HK$44,855,000
and HK$48,698,000, respectively. The closing

B o

#:T——iﬂﬂﬁa i
BT =-FEREE
32,300,00017 BB PE REE R -

mMR=—F——FNA=+ANA8 -

23,000,000 7 B A% #E & & 1 -

AR AR R BB B BE R 7 T {3
BRE BEE2RIEEBITE
BHAELE -FIEBREARDE
ARNEESEE - RZERERE
ZEREZ B AFES A
44,855,000 JT & 48,698,000

BT BEREREE BRI 2 WME
DR A 3.958 TN 4.3887T ©

prices immediately before the date of grant were
HK$3.95 and HK$4.38, respectively.

Details of specific categories of options are as FERERERRZFBNT ¢
follows:
Original  Adjusted
Number of exercise exercise
share options price per  price per
Date of grant granted Exercisable period share share
2R RESR KHAREKR
RE B8 BREHE FTITEHE TREE TREE
6 April 2011 32,300,000 6 April 2011 to HK$4.13 HK$3.44
(note iii) 5 April 2021 (note i)
—E——FWAKA (Batii) —FT——FHARNBE 41387 3.44B7T
T —FMARH (Hiati)
29 August 2011 23,000,000 29 August 2011 to HK$4.80 N/A
28 August 2021
—T——F —ET——FN NAZThIBE 4.8078 7T TEA
NAZ+hA8 T/ \AZ+N\H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BE-_E_=F=A=+—HIFE

32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION
(Continued)

(a) 2003 Share Option Scheme (Continued) (a)

The following tables disclose movements of the
Company’s share options granted under the
2003 Share Option Scheme held by directors,
employees and consultants during the years
ended 31 March 2022 and 2023:

Share options granted on 6 April 2011

32. URHOBEBRINARRKE (&)

—ER-FRRERR(E)

TREBESIRBE_ZT-_—_F
F—E-=ZF=ZA=+—HItF
ERNES EENMEMFAFAR
B =FHERETEERD
AN A EREES)

R-FE——FHANARLEZIE
KR

Number

of shares
under option
outstanding

(11,520,000)
(14,400,000)
(2,640,000)

Number
of shares
under option

Lapsed outstanding
during the at 31 March
year ended 2022 and
31 March 31 March
2022 2023

R=-2-Z
=Z=A=+—H

REBE R-ZTZ-=
—F=-= =A=+—8
ZA=+—8B XR{TEBRE
IEFERY ZBRHEE

(28,560,000)

at 1 April

Categories of participants 2021

R-ZBZ-—-fF

MA—H

RITEBRAE

S EEE ZRPEE

Directors of the Company PiN/N=] === 11,520,000

Other employees Hitfg 8 14,400,000

Consultants (note ii) EAFS (Kratii) 2,640,000

Total B 28,560,000
194 Oriental Watch Holdings Limited R A XKTTEEHR A
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For the year ended 31 March 2023

HE_—_FE—_=

32. SHARE-

F=ZF=+—HIFEE

BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION

(Continued)

32. LR BERZNRRS ()

(a) 2003 Share Option Scheme (Continued) (a) —EES=FHERETE(E)

Share options granted on 29 August 2011 R-E——FNNA=-F+IARH

ZHERE
Number
of shares
Number under
of shares option
under Lapsed outstanding
option during the at 31 March
outstanding year ended 2022 and
at 1 April 31 March 31 March

Categories of participants 2021 2022 2023

7 gy S
=A=t+—H

R-ZB=-—F RBE RZ-ZT-=
mA—AH —E-= =A=+—H
RITEERE =ZA=+—H XRTEBERE

SHEEER ZBRHBHE I FE R ZBRHBEE

Other employees HibE 8 18,000,000  (18,000,000) —

Consultants (note ii) BERS (Bt ii) 5,000,000 (5,000,000) —

Total 1o 23,000,000  (23,000,000) -

Notes: Wit -

(i) The number of shares under the outstanding (i) KRITEHEREZRNDEE KT
options and the exercise price have been @E%’iaﬁ/\\fg——itﬂ?ﬂ
adjusted upon the bonus issue of shares in July BEARLEBRER —RTE
2011 on the basis of one new ordinary share for AR 2 EERX A RREIEL A
every five ordinary shares held. o

(i) The share options were granted to consultants (i) ZEEREDETER  ER
for services rendered in exploring investment HAREBBBREMS IR
opportunities for the Group. AR < Bl o

(iii) In relation to the share options granted on 6 (i) MR=_FT——FEANAEEL
April 2011, 3,740,000 share options were lapsed 2 B E + 3,740,0001%
before 1 April 2021. EREDCKR-Z-—FMA—

B ZBIRRK »
The 2003 Share Option Scheme expired on 2 T FERESEER=E

November 2013. The options could be exercised
by the participants at any time during the option
exercisable period and notwithstanding that the
2003 Share Option Scheme had expired. During
the year ended 31 March 2022, all options under
the 2003 Share Option Scheme were lapsed.

s —

—E¢+—H:E|E5ﬁ5 i

ToFEREESELER
\ﬁ/,\%m—fﬁ’\ﬁﬁﬂx%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁ
BERFTTEBEARE REBEZT
TZF=ZA=+—H1lFE "M
EERECERE_SS=FER
REET IR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023

HEr—_FE_—=

F=ZF=+—HIFEE

32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION
(Continued)

(b)

2013 Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the
annual general meeting of the Company held on
13 August 2013, a new share option scheme was
adopted with effect on 3 November 2013 (the
“2013 Share Option Scheme”) after the expiry of
the 2003 Share Option Scheme.

Under the 2013 Share Option Scheme, options
may be granted to (i) any director, employee
or consultant of the Group or a company in
which the Company holds an equity interest or
a subsidiary of such company (“Affiliate”); or
(ii) any discretionary trust whose discretionary
objects include any director, employee or
consultant of the Group or an Affiliate; or (iii) a
company beneficially owned by any director,
employee or consultant of the Group or an
Affiliate; or (iv) any customer, supplier or adviser
whose service to the Group or business with the
Group contributes or is expected to contribute
to the business or operation of the Group. The
purpose of the 2013 Share Option Scheme is to
attract and retain quality personnel and other
persons to provide incentive to them to contribute
to the business and operation of the Group. The
total number of shares available for issue under
the 2013 Share Option Scheme as at the date
of this report is 57,061,022 shares representing
about 11.7% of the issued share capital of the
Company on such date. No eligible persons shall
be granted an option in any 12-month period for
such number of shares (issued and to be issued)
which in aggregate would exceed 1% of the
share capital of the Company in issue on the last
day of such 12-month period unless approval
of the shareholders of the Company has been
obtained in accordance with the Listing Rules.
The exercisable period is determined by the
directors of the Company, which shall not be
more than ten years from the date of grant, and
may include a minimum period for which the
options must be held before it can be exercised.
The exercise price per share payable on the
exercise of an option equals to the highest of:

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited R A X {TS B B R A 7
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+=H ﬁ%ﬁZHxﬁﬁﬁkAtL

iEZElL/jQ;%z;; ‘—7 7_35
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BE—E-_=F=ZF=+—HILFE

32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION 32. URGDAERBZHARKS (&)

(Continued)
(b) 2013 Share Option Scheme (Continued) (b) —ZE—=FBRETE(E)

(a) the nominal value of one share; (a) —RIRMHEE

(b) the closing price per share as stated in the (b) BHORKEEE B EBFT
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on HRERMH 2 ERIK
the date of grant; and mE: &

(c) the average closing price per share as (c) BOHREEKREERA
quoted in the Stock Exchange’s daily B %A EMET AR
quotations sheet for the five business days BRABz2BREHKT
immediately preceding the date of grant. & o

The 2013 Share Option Scheme will remain in T -—FERETESE —ER

force until 2 November 2023. »EEE=F+—HZH

ALk o

No option was granted, exercised, lapsed or B - —=FEREEIERA

forfeited under the 2013 Share Option Scheme H-T—=F+—H=H# " #

since its effective date on 3 November 2013 and EEREERE 17 XX

there was no outstanding share option as at 31 RHORW - MR T =F=

March 2023 and 31 March 2022. A=+—BRZZT__F=H

=t+— BINERTTEBRE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BR-—F_=F=F=+—HIFE

32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION
(Continued)

(c) 2022 Share Award Scheme

On 27 June 2022 (the “Adoption Date”), the
Company adopted the employees’ share award
scheme (the “2022 Share Award Scheme”).
Pursuant to the 2022 Share Award Scheme, it
shall be valid and effective for a term of 10 years
commencing from the Adoption Date. Under
the 2022 Share Award Scheme, any employee,
executive, officer, or directors of the Company
or of any subsidiary are eligible for participation
in the scheme. The purposes and objectives of
the 2022 Share Award Scheme are to recognise
and motivate the contributions by certain eligible
persons and to provide them with incentives in
order to retain them for the continual operation
and development of the Group and to help
the Group in attracting and recruiting suitable
personnel as additional employees to further
the operation and development of the Group,
and to provide the eligible persons with a direct
economic interest in attaining the long-term
business objectives of the Group. The board of
directors shall not make any further award which
will result in: (i) the number of shares awarded
by the board under the scheme exceeding 10%
of the issued share capital of the Company as
at the Adoption Date; or (ii) the number of the
shares held by public shareholders falls below
the minimum percentage as prescribed under
the Listing Rules. The maximum number of
shares which may be awarded to each selected
person under the scheme shall not exceed 1%
of the issued share capital of the Company as at
the Adoption Date.

For further details of the principal terms of the 2022
Share Award Scheme, please refer to the Company’s
announcement on 27 June 2022. No share award was
granted under the 2022 Share Award Scheme since
the Adoption Date.
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32. LR ABER NS (&)

(c) —E=——FRMWRETE

RZB-—FNAZF+EH(EK
WA  RARIEEMEER
DB E([ B —FERMH
BhstEl]) - BE-_TE - —FER
EEE ZETEI BB R R
BN RER HR B10F -
BT - —FRMHEETE -
R B SHAERIM B R B 2 E IR
B HITAR  SRABHES
HEBERBEEZTE - T =
FROHBEFECENLRE R
EALHEETAEERATRE
ZEE  BESIRENE - AHR
BFE  BEIFASENLCE
NERANENAEB RS KA
EEEALTERFES  NE—
PHEAEEZEREE TR
ERASERREFRBEERAE
BRATREEELENZ - &
E2TBE—PIELHEE U
B ()VESSREBEZTERBZ
A& 1D 8 B BB AR AR ER AN B B
BETRAZ10% : (i) AR
BEFEZRNDEBBEN ETHE
B ECHEBDLL - BRIET
ATREBEZTE A ER 2 &= K
HEE TEBBARRFNERHE
HEZITRAZ 1% ©

B —_Z-__FR{OHEBFTIEZER
RZE—FFE - FE2EARRNRZ
T _HFRNAZTEHEZRE - B8
Pin REVE R A BRRIE—T ——
Fhtn REE B L -
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For the year ended 31 March 2023
BE-_E-_=F=ZFA=+—HILFE

32.

33.

34.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION 32. LR AERZNARKRE (&)
(Continued)
During the year ended 31 March 2023 and 2022, no BHE_ZT-_-_"FkT_F=H
share-based payment expense was recognised in =+—HIEFE - HER LR ERE
relation to share option schemes and share award B R AR D BB ET BIRER AR D BE
scheme as mentioned above. 2 AR ESE o
FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS 33. UBEREN
As at 31 March 2023, the Group and the other RZZFEZ=F=A=+—8H " &x&H
shareholders of the associates of the Company KRR Al A A 2 HoAb AR Rt B
issued financial guarantees jointly and severally ERNRERZIBITRE LR &HE 5
to certain banks in respect of banking facilities mMETRITHLHVBER - WEE
granted to associates. The aggregate amounts that KEHREZZFER AIAIEAET
could be required to be paid is NT$150,000,000 and St 2 4858 A% & ¥ 150,000,000 7T
equivalent to HK$39,060,000 (2022: NT$150,000,000 (#8512 39,060,000/& L) (Z&E ==
and equivalent to HK$41,625,000) if the guarantees F : 75 %150,000,0007T * HER
were called upon in entirety, of which full amount of 41,625,000/ 7C) * HHARITRED
the relevant banking facilities has been utilised by BZEBREARZHHA - AEER
these associates. The Group considers the fair value RENZ ATFERVZERERE -
of the contract is nil at initial recognition and the BERZZEZ=FK-_FT-__F=H
loss allowance as at 31 March 2023 and 2022 are S t—HBZEEREBRMTEE - i
insignificant. Details of the credit risk assessment of BEREHZEERBTGFBEHRRN
the financial guarantee contracts are set out in note MiFE38 ©
38.
CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 34. EXREE
2023 2022
—E-=£F -
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Capital expenditure in respect of FEETLHEANEGS
the acquisition of property, plant B # ¥ &k M B  ~ U iE
and equipment contracted for but  ¥% - R RERE
not provided in the consolidated  &EAF X%
financial statements 2,215 10,280
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Defined contribution retirement scheme

The Group principally operates defined contribution
retirement schemes for all qualifying employees,
including directors. The assets of the schemes are
held separately from those of the Group in funds
under the control of independent trustees.

The retirement scheme cost represents contributions
payable to the funds by the Group at rates specified
in the rules of the schemes.

In Hong Kong, the Group participates in defined
contribution schemes, of which one scheme is
registered under the Occupational Retirement
Schemes Ordinance (the “ORSO” Scheme) and the
other is a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF” Scheme) established under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance in December
2000. The assets of the schemes are held separately
from those of the Group, in funds under the control of
independent trustees.

The ORSO Scheme is funded by monthly
contributions from both employees and the Group
at rates ranging from 5% to 15% of the employee’s
basic salary, depending on the length of service with
the Group.

For members of the MPF Scheme, the Group
contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs to the MPF
Scheme subject to a maximum monthly contribution
amount of HK$1,500 to an individual, which
contribution is matched by the employee.

The employees of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries
are members of the state-managed retirement
benefits scheme operated by the PRC government.
The Company’s PRC subsidiaries are required to
contribute a certain percentage of their payroll to
the retirement benefits scheme to fund the benefits.
The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
retirement benefits scheme is to make the required
contributions under the scheme.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited R AF X{T& B AR A A
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For the year ended 31 March 2023
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35. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES 35. RIKEFIFHE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BR—F_=—F=F=+—HIFE

35. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES RIKERGE (&)

(Continued)

Defined contribution retirement scheme
(Continued)

The total cost charged to profit or loss of
HK$5,400,000 (2022: HK$5,059,000) represents

ERHRRAG 8 (E)

BBz R 2 #2857 5,400,000 %8 7T
(ZZE =4 : 5,059,000/ 7T) 84

contributions payable to these schemes by the Group SEMRA ST MR ERAREZ
at rates specified in the rules of the plans in respect EXRENZEFEZ2HEF - BEZ

of the current accounting period. During the year
ended 31 March 2022, there had been a reduction in
contributions to the state-managed retirement benefit
plan operated by the government of the PRC due
to the outbreak of COVID-19 while there is no such
reduction during the year ended 31 March 2023.
For the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022, there
were no forfeitures arising from employees leaving
the Group prior to completion of qualifying service
period.

At 31 March 2023 and 2022, there were no forfeited
contributions which arose upon employees leaving
the retirement plans and which are available to
reduce the contributions payable in the future years.

Defined benefit plan

Pursuant to the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance,
Chapter 57, the Group has the obligation to pay Long
Service Payment (“LSP”) to qualifying employees in
Hong Kong upon retirement, subject to a minimum of
5 years employment period, based on the following
formula: Last monthly wages (before termination
of employment) x 2/3 x Years of service. Last
monthly wages are capped at HK$22,500 while the
amount of long service payment shall not exceed
HK$390,000. This obligation is accounted for as a
post-employment defined benefit plan.

Furthermore, the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance passed in 1995 permits the Group to
utilise the Group’s mandatory MPF contributions,
plus/minus any positive/negative returns thereof
(collectively, the “Eligible Offset Amount”), for the
purpose of offsetting LSP payable to an employee (the
“Offsetting Arrangement”).

E-__F=ZA=+—HILFE " H
R2019BREEREE - APEEK
ey BRERENRKERNE 2
HRBERL BEEBEHIREEC
T =F=ZA=+—HULEFETER
Lo BET=FRFT__F=
A=T—HLFE HBEREENT
RAEBRREFHATBAAER S
W2 FRI8 -

—TE=FRFTE__F=H
+—8  BEREESRHRIKEF
%ﬁ?iTT*KEEW&%iH&
TA Z/XJW/TAIE\ °

iy

EEERNE

BIBCEBEBIEPIIESTE - A&
BEETESERBBREERNKER
HYNERERES (REREE]) -
Iﬁﬁﬁﬁ HHbASFE  sFTEARW

g —EALE (KRILERERT) X
2/3 XTEFER - HE—FALEZ
FRAE22500E T MEBERE 2
NS HBiE 390,000 7T - ZE T ALR
P BRERE R ERAETE -

AN - R—NANAEFBBEAEGIER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BE T _=F=F=+—HIFE

35.

36.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES
(Continued)

Defined benefit plan (Continued)

The Employment & Retirement Schemes Legislation
(Offsetting Arrangement) (Amendment) Ordinance
2022 was gazetted on 17 June 2022, which will
eventually abolish the Offsetting Arrangement. The
Amendment will come into effect prospectively from
a date to be determined by the Hong Kong SAR
Government, which is expected to be in 2025 (the
“Transition Date”). Under the amended Ordinance,
the Eligible Offset Amount after the Transition Date
can only be applied to offset the pre-Transition Date
LSP obligation but no longer eligible to offset the
post-Transition Date LSP obligation. Furthermore,
the LSP obligations before the Transition Date will
be grandfathered and calculated based on the Last
monthly wages immediately preceding the Transition
Date.

The Group’s LSP obligation, taking into consideration
the Offsetting Arrangement, is considered to be
insignificant and no additional provision has been
recognised as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022.

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES
ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s
liabilities arising from financing activities, including
both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising
from financing activities are those for which cash
flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in
the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as
cash flows from financing activities.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023
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36. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES 36. METHMEE BB YR
ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (#&)
(Continued)
Lease Interest Bank Dividend
liabilities payable loans payable Total
REAE FE(HE BITER EfRE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT TET TAT
At 1 April 2021 R-ZE--&
mA—A 351,362 — 17525 — 368,887
Financing cash flows (note) BERETE
(Hi) (124,421) (627) 11,183 (344,504) (458,369)
Dividends declared BEERRE — — - 357,718 357,718
Interest accrued JEzrFIe 11,406 627 = = 12,033
New leases entered or modified ~ BEUHEHZ
g 202,702 — - - 202,702
Termination of leases BERI (924) = = = (924)
Exchange adjustment B 5 A% 1,285 — = = 1,285
At 31 March 2022 S
=A=1-H 441,410 — 28,708 13,214 483,332
Financing cash flows (note) BERLRE
(i) (138,805) (102) (28,708) (363,137) (530,752)
Dividends declared BERKRE = = = 349,923 349,923
Interest accrued [E:HI S 14,510 102 = = 14,612
New leases entered or modified ~ BEuF ML
g 39,606 — - - 39,606
Termination of leases BEXL (1,639) . = = (1,639)
Exchange adjustment i 5 R (2,961) — — = (2,961)
At 31 March 2023 RZB-=%
=A=t-H 352,121 — — — 352,121
Note: The cash flows represent dividends paid, repayment Wit ReERBREReReERER2EN
of bank loans, new bank loan raised, repayments of RE - BERITER HERTE
lease liabilities and interest paid in the consolidated FoEEHEEEREMNAE -

statement of cash flows.
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&
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37. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities
in the Group will be able to continue as a going
concern while maximising the return to shareholders
through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net
debt, which includes bank loans disclosed in note
29 and lease liabilities in note 28, net of cash
and cash equivalents and equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising issued share
capital and reserves including retained profits.
The directors of the Company review the capital
structure on an annual basis. As part of this review,
the directors consider the cost of capital and the
risks associated with each class of capital. Based
on recommendations of the directors, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through payment
of dividends, new share issues as well as issue of
new debts or redemption of existing debts.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited R 5 X 1T&£ B AR 2 7

37. EXEmER

AREBEEEHEEN  ABRANEEE
TERBENFELE  RREBRN
ZEBEREE THRSMR ZOH® -
AEBZERREELFFEEFD

#=4

Mam o

AEBzEARBERBEERFEE
REREK 20T R Z RITE R R
s BECHEREMERRSE
LERRESER) RARREB AR
EHEmE (AP RREETRANERS
(BREEER)) ARAREEEF
wa BARE o ERM R TIE—&
D BEEEREARAREZHEN
HEZRR  ERESFL2EE
AEEKEBIRERE - BITHBRN
BITHEXERRBEB T EEER
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 38. €@T A

Categories of financial instruments ERMIAEER
PLIPX] 2022
—E== T
HK$°000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
Financial assets TREE
Financial assets at amortised cost 1&# K AT E 2
TREEE 1,391,366 1,554,717
Debt instruments at FVTOCI BATEAEMEER
Wam 2 BBIA — 7,158
Financial assets at FVTPL BATESTAEBREZ
TREE 29,671 20,990
Equity instruments at FVTOCI BEATFEFAEMEE
Wk 2 BRATA 13,359 13,436
Loan receivables at FVTPL MANFEEEAEZREY
JE W E K 61,402 —
Financial liabilities TRAaE
Amortised cost B 58 AN 114,323 120,295
Financial risk management objectives and policies BERAREEEEREE

The Group’s major financial instruments include debt
instruments at FVTOCI, financial assets at FVTPL,
equity instruments at FVTOCI, loan receivables at
FVTPL, trade and other receivables, refundable rental
deposits, bank balances, trade and other payables
and bank loans, and financial guarantees contracts
and lease liabilities. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The
risks associated with these financial instruments
include market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk
and other price risk), credit risk and impairment
assessment, and liquidity risk. The policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure that appropriate measures are implemented
on a timely and effective manner.

AEEZFESRIABRRERATE
AAARMEEKRRECEHIA  RA
FEFABRRZEREE  RAYE
APARMEEREZRATAR B2
FEFABRRZEBEER BEHRE
U ARR  ALREIHER S - ]RiT
REER - B 5 MEM BN BRFARIRTT
EFUNMBREREOREERE -
ZEEMTRAZHBREEEMER
BoHZEeMIARBCRREE
M E R (B E R - A= E R M E
fERRAR)  EERR LA G
AEREE KR o T X HHI
BERRCER  -EEBEEKE
R EFRR - DAL N R FA 30 5%
BUBE Z2fEht o
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk
Currency risk

Most of the Group’s transactions are denominated in
either US$, HK$, Renminbi and A$.

The Group has limited currency exposure as the
majority of the sales were denominated in functional
currencies of the relevant group entities except
exposed to foreign currency risk in relation to
US$ arising from financial assets at FVTPL, debt
instruments at FVTOCI, and loan receivables, the A$
denominated bank loans. During the year ended 31
March 2023, the A$ denominated bank loan is fully
settled.

The carrying amount of the major foreign currency

denominated monetary assets at the reporting date is
as follows:

US$ e

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited R A XTE BB R A 7

38.

SRIA(EZ)
PRARESERERBE (&)

T 5 /E R
E%mE

REBAREDIRHAETT BT A
K& FRITFHE -

HRABIEHEATREEEER 2D
REEBAEN  HAKEEmEHZER
FEBRAR  HEIZAFEFABTZ
CREE BAFEFAHMAZEEK
HZEBTEUARERER - LURTT
SEZERTERMELAEETEBZ
INERBRERIN - BIE T -_=F=A1
=t+—HILFE @ VBT EZRTIT

£ 3=
ERE2EEE -

MREHRAE  TBINEFEZEEE
EZREENT

2023 2022
—_E_= —E-=
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FET
77,637 69,093
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Currency risk (Continued)

The carrying amount of the major foreign currency
denominated monetary liabilities at the reporting date
is as follows:

A$ RIT

Under the pegged exchange rate system, the
financial impact on exchange difference between
HK$ and US$ will be immaterial as US$ denominated
monetary assets are held by group entities having
HK$ as their functional currency, and therefore no
sensitivity analysis has been prepared.

The Group currently does not have a foreign
exchange hedging policy. However, the management
conducts periodical review of exposure and
requirements of various currencies, and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposures
should the need arise. No sensitivity analysis
was prepared since the directors of the Company
consider the amount involved is not significant.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate
risk in relation to debt securities with fixed coupon
interest, loan receivables at amortised cost and lease
liabilities (details of which are set out in notes 21,
24 and 28). The management monitors interest rate
exposure when significant interest rate exposure is
anticipated.

38. @M T A (£&)

B EREEBRRBEK(F)

TEmEEE ()

B ERE (&)

REBEH  ETBIINEFEIERR
EZMREELT

2023 2022
—E-=F —E-=

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

= 28,708

RIFE XBBHE - AN EEERR
B2ETREEREENETRED
e BTARTERER MK
FEBTEX A TWERRGHE
AT

AEE B EINEHREE - A
M EREgEHRISEEE ZM
MBS AHRE B ERE BT
BERINERRR - AR ARBESZRR
AREEY K @ BWAEK - @ H#
RELGURE DT

T 7 2
AEERHAREESENSERE

5 REENAGTEZERRERKEME
EaEcAFENERR  BHEFE
FHAKE21 2428 BETEHIAE
ARMRERGE - BEESERF KR

AN
T}
AA

o
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Interest rate risk (Continued)

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to variable-rate bank loans and bank
balances (details of which are set out in notes 29
and 26, respectively). The Group currently does not
have an interest rate hedging policy. However, the
management monitors interest rate exposure and will
consider hedging significant interest rate exposure
should the need arise. The fair value interest rate risk
on bank deposits is insignificant as the fixed deposits
are short-term.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of variable
interest rate arising from the Group’s bank loan.
A fundamental reform of major interest rate
benchmarks is being undertaken globally, including
the replacement of some interbank offered rates with
alternative nearly risk-free rates. The management
considered that the interest rate benchmark reform
will not have a material impact on the Group’s
variable bank loan as the bank loan was fully repaid
during the year ended 31 March 2023.

No sensitive analysis is performed as the exposures
to fair value and cash flow interest rates risks for
these items are considered as insignificant.

Other price risk

The Group’s debt instruments at FVTOCI, financial
assets at FVTPL, equity instruments at FVTOCI,
loan receivables at FVTPL and derivative financial
instruments at FVTPL at the end of the reporting
period exposed the Group to other price risk.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited R AF X{T& B AR A A

38. @M T A (&)

B EREREBBRRBEK(E)

s mEeE (4E)
F=Em (F)

AEETEEEBEZBRITERKIE
THEBZASTEFNNERRAR - BEF
B RIERHIsE29 %26 - KEEIE
B SR R ERRER - A BIEE
CERNERAR  THEREFEERE
EEREARFERER - AR TE TR
BRBER  HETERZAFER
RELTK o

AEEZRERENKAREZEF
RFBFERE - HREAREE 2 RTT
EXMEL - 2IREAHTERXRE
BEETRANMENE  BREAETER
RERMEMABYRITRERE
HRZERTERERAE T =
FZA=ZT - HLEFERHEE - &
EEERA/NERERERNEIGHAE
BZAIBRITERBREATE -

HRZFEB Z A FERRERERN
REBREMN  RUEBETHRED
i e

A (B 157 7

AEBREBBRZ LA FEF AR
fhEEW s BEH TR  BAFER
ABSZSREE - BAFEFAR
b2 EW s 2 RATR - A FER
ABs 2 B E R MR A FEF AR
BZTESRMIAESASERE HAi
BREE
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Other price risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to price risk in relation to the
financial assets at FVTPL at the reporting date. For
sensitivity analysis purpose, the sensitivity rate of
10% is applied in current year.

If the prices of the respective securities has been
10% (2022: 10%) higher/lower:

o post-tax profit for the year would increase/
decrease by HK$2,967,000 (2022: increase/
decrease by HK$2,099,000) as a result of the
changes in fair value of financial assets at
FVTPL; and

For debt instruments at FVTOCI, loan receivables at
FVTPL and derivative financial instruments at FVTPL,
no sensitive analysis is performed as the exposure is
considered as insignificant.

In management’s opinion, the above sensitivity
analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent equity
price risk facing by the Group as the year end
exposure does not reflect the exposure during the
year.

38. @M T A (£&)

B EREEBRRBEK(F)

TEmEEE ()
A B m R (&)
BRE DT

TXERESTR2H B PR QT
Bt ARG S RVE EE R Z ERE
RETE - WBRESINME - NFE
ERSRENEF10% -

HEBEHZEBER LA/ TRE10% (=
T :10%) - 8l

o HARAFEFABRZEMEE
ZAFEEE BHFAKY
1% 4 A1 #4538 hn 3R 4> 2,967,000
BI(ZT - —F 8/ m
2,099,000/87T) : &

IR R EARMEE W 2 B
TR BAVEAABRZEBRER
MR PEFABRSZZITESRT A
mE > AREARERSTA - B E
EITBURE DT o

AEERECER  ARFREAYHZRA
BN RENFEREREZRRE - EX
ZHRES MY IR AREAEY
ZBEBRABEBRRER
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group's
counterparties default on their contractual obligations
resulting in financial losses to the Group. The Group’s
credit risk exposures are primarily attributable to
trade receivables, loan receivables, bank balances,
refundable rental and other deposits, other
receivables and debt instruments at FVTOCI, and
financial guarantee contracts. The Group does not
hold any collateral or other credit enhancements
to cover its credit risks associated with its financial
assets and financial guarantee contracts as disclosed
in note 33, except that the credit risks associated
with loan receivables is mitigated because of the
collateral provided to the Group.

Except for loan receivables at FVPTL, the Group
performed impairment assessment for financial
assets and other items under ECL model. Information
about the Group’s credit risk management, maximum
credit risk exposures and the related impairment
assessment, as applicable, are summarised as
below.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited R AF X{T& B AR A A

38. @M T A (&)

B EREREBBRRBEK(E)

1= B m i R Bl (e A1

EERBREAREZHFTERES
HWEME ERAKERIPBERZ
Rk AEBZEERRIZRNE
ZIERWIRR - RIS R ~ SRITHER
AROEE R EMIZS - ARG
BRmAHES ARG &
BTAUMPBEEREK - AEEY
ERATAEMRRSEMENEE

i WREEMEISMEEZH
TREELMMBERGHHEBZER
Rk HEEEBERERAREZEERR
BARE  AAKEEEREEA
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment
comprises the following categories:

Internal
credit rating Description

AR EFR i

Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default
and does not have any past-due
amounts

VN HFAZENRBRES Y REMEHRIE

Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due dates
but usually settles in full

BRLE EBARERFBMBRERTE  BRE
BHER

Doubtful There have been significant increases

in credit risk since initial recognition
through information developed internally
or external resources

TFiE AEIIMNBERRBAEESBREERR
B HR A REE LN

Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is
credit-impaired

B REBETNAMEECRLEEERE

Write-off There is evidence indicating that the

debtor is in severe financial difficulty
and the Group has no realistic prospect
of recovery

88 BEBBTREBARARERERNES
AEEIRRBEAIKREEERE

38. @M T A (£&)

B EREEBRRBEK(F)

=B R B E S ()

AEERNFEERBRRFNFHEEET
IIFE R -

Other financial

Trade receivables assets/other items
HitteMEE

B RWERR HiE g

Lifetime ECL — 12m ECL

not credit-impaired

FENRBEEFE — 12@AEHEEERR

FIEERE
Lifetime ECL — 12m ECL
not credit-impaired
FENEHEEERRE — 12@ARHEEER
FEERE
Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL —
not credit-impaired not credit-impaired

FENRAGEERRE — RFEURBEEEE —

FEERE FEERE
Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL —
credit-impaired credit-impaired
FEMEHEERE — GENEHEEEE —
EERE EERE
Amount is written off Amount is written off
WHEHESR WHEEHESR

FER
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
The tables below detail the credit risk exposure of

the Group’s financial assets and financial guarantee
contracts, which are subject to ECL assessment:

External credit rating

HIEETER
2022
kSt 2
Notes
i3
Debtinstrumentsat  RAPEFAEM2
FVTOCI AhszERIR
Investments in listed FiEREE 21 N/A Ba2 — Aa?
debts (Note e) (ite) TEA
Financial assets at BRERTTEL
amortised cost SHEE
Bank balances (Note o) ~ /748 (Hitd) % B2 — Aat B2 — Aat
Refundable rentaland ~ WEEREREMKE % N/A N/A
other deposits and SHREMENR FER ol
other receivables B
Trade receivables BARNE % N/A NJA
AER MR
Loan receivable at BEHUAHEL 24 N/A N/A
amortised cost FWESH TEA MER
Other item HtER
Financial quarantee BHERAD 33 N/A N/A
contracts TER MaR

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited R A XTE BB R A 7

38. £ I E(#&)
BEERTEEERKE (&)

FEm R R B E S ()

TRAVNAREZ 2 BMEERWBE
RENEHZEERR - HXRRE
HEE BB

Internal 12m or Gross carrying amount
credit rating lifetime ECL
AEEETR  12ERAFEE AkmE
RAEERS

2023 2022

—g-= —E——

—5-_= R

HK$'000 HK$'000
T FET

N/A 1om ECL - 7,158
TER 12ERES
FERBR

N/A 12m ECL 1,075,193 1,272,572
TER (not credit-
impaired)
12EAEHS
EEER
(F=ERE)

(Note a) 12m ECL 53,666 56,211
(Hia) (not credit-
impaired)
12fAR%ES
R
(FEERRA)

(Note b) Lifetime ECL 267,161 182,436
(Hiib) (not credit-
impaired)
FEEES
LB
(FEERRE)

(Note ) 1om ECL - 46,319
(Wir)  12EARH
FEER

(Note c) 12m ECL 39,060 41,625
(i) 128R%H
FEERE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BE—E-_=F=ZF=+—HILFE

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

In determining the ECL for refundable rental and other
deposits, and other receivables, the management
of the Group makes periodic individual assessment
on the recoverability of other receivables based
on the historical default experience and forward-
looking information, as appropriate. The directors of
the Company has considered the consistently low
historical default rate in connection with other general
payments, and concluded that credit risk inherent in
the Group’s remaining balance of other receivables is
insignificant.

The sales of the Group are mainly on cash-basis
and the trade receivables of the Group mainly
represents those retail sales in department stores
in which those are reputable department stores in
the PRC. The Group uses an internal credit scoring
system to assess the potential counterparty’s credit
quality and defines credit limits individually. Limits
and scoring attributed to the department stores are
reviewed twice a year. Other monitoring procedures
are in place to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In this regard, the directors of
the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 41%
(2022: 25%) and 67% (2022: 60%) of the total trade
receivables was due from the Group’s largest trade
receivable and the five largest trade receivables
respectively. In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a team
responsible for determination of credit limits and
credit approvals.

In addition, the Group performs impairment
assessment under ECL model on trade receivables
individually and based on the internal credit risk
grading assessment, those trade receivables with
past due balances are grouped under watch list. The
management is of the opinion that there has no default
occurred for trade receivables past due 90 days
or more and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable due to long term/on-going relationship
and good repayment record from these customers.

38. $MITE (&)
BERREERERBE (&)

=B R B E S (4

B -

(a)

REEANEREEEREMES AR
H U BR R 2 TREE B B 18
AEBEEEEREBEENER R
AITRE 1 B R (fin 338 8 ) 39 5L A B UK BR
SR AT a1 1 i E H 8 B R A
ARAERCERRALENKEH
ZEBEEOER  IBHERSA
SEEMEBEERGBEZEREE
Bt NEK o

AEBZHETBEUNRS SER
MARB2ESRUEREREE
PATEMEEERARIZAERT
MTEHE - AKBEERAREE
FDEBANBEEEBF T ZEE
BxlkENAREEERE -HTAH
ERAIZEE LR MRFDEFEMN
MR > BB B2 B 5312 7 7] B
PRERERERHE 1T B U (2 380 R (R 75 L
HME  ARBEERRAERLZ
EERREARERE

BHR4M%(ZFBE = —F:25%) &
67%( —_FE - —_F:60%) 2B 5
EUWERGRBESAIREAEEBZK
ZHRWEBER LA A AE 5 EWER
M B AEEmEEEERRES
ZER - BB EERBRBRERE -
AEBEEEEZR—XEH &
EETEEEEREESEL -

goh - REBRBEREEEHBERA
B8 5 RYURKER RIZAREER
ez A% Bl R EETTRVE R - M=
BE IR E 5 B W AR SR AIER A
BR2E TEERS ANEZ
EREPZRY FHEBRRERE
B BHORKUEZE
SRR BELELN - BT
AL R A A 2 8 E
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited R 757 X715

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)
(b) (Continued)

The estimated loss rates are estimated by reference to
the external credit rating and internal information, and
are adjusted for forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort. Such forward-
looking information is used by the management of
the Group to assess both the current as well as the
forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date.

The following table shows the movement in lifetime
ECL that has been recognised for trade receivables
under the simplified approach.

38. R TE (&)
BERREEEERBE(E)

FEm R R B E S ()

Bz

(b)

(%)
(%)

M BEET2EINBEEFTER

AEER LT - YRBBENHLBES
FXAN S %S 71 R4S 2 BT RE 1 B RHE
HE - NEBEEEERARMAE
AR 2B EIOR 2 8/ KT
AT TE

TRBRBEGLEHZEBRES
FEWEBRE R v FESBEHEEEE

Lifetime ECL

(not credit-

impaired)

FERBES

FEEE

(EEERE)

HK$'000

T

As at 1 April 2021 RZEZ—FMHHA—H 4,690
Changes due to financial instruments HemMTAR-_ZT-—4F
recognised as at 1 April 2021: WA—HERMES)

— Impairment losses reversed during = EI’W@E@EEEW@

the year (4,690)

New financial assets originated EEEFESRMEE 2,661

Exchange adjustment ME 5, 58 B 160

As at 31 March 2022 R-_BE__F=A=+—H 2,821
Changes due to financial instruments Iipﬁlﬂb‘/\fE::E
recognised as at 1 April 2022: M A—H#ER :

— Impairment losses reversed during = EW/JESZTEJEETE%%@

the year (2,821)

New financial assets originated EEEFEMEE 4,655

Exchange adjustment R (2)

As at 31 March 2023 R—_F-_=F=R=+—H 4,653

The Group writes off a trade receivable when there
is information indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed
under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings.

BARA

65 &R BN B A R B E M %
PR 2 B3 8 B BR[O A] R (AR A
BENBRAWERFT) - HAKH
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(c)

(d)

For financial guarantee contracts, the gross carrying
amount represents the maximum amount that
the Group has guaranteed under the respective
contracts and was approximately HK$39,060,000
(2022: HK$41,625,000) as at 31 March 2023. At
the end of the reporting period, the directors of the
Company have performed impairment assessment by
considering the financial positions and performance
of the relevant associates, and concluded that
there has been no significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition of the financial guarantee
contracts. Accordingly, the loss allowance for financial
guarantee contracts issued by the Group is measured
at an amount equal to 12m ECL. The management of
the Group considers the probability of default is low
and accordingly, loss allowance was considered as
insignificant.

The Group has concentration of credit risk on bank
balances. The credit risk on bank balances is limited
because the counterparties are banks with high
credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies.

For the purpose of ECL assessment, the Group
considered the gross principal amount and the
related contractual interests of the debt instruments.
As at 31 March 2022, the gross principal amount of
these debt instruments amounted HK$7,199,000. The
Group’s debt instruments at FVTOCI mainly comprised
instruments that have a low risk of default and the
counterparties have a strong capacity to repay (e.g.
financial instruments that are of investment grade or
issuer with good credit history and capacity to repay),
and accordingly, loss allowance was considered as
insignificant.

38. $MITE (&)
BERREERERBE (&)

=B R B E S (4

HiiE - (&)

(c)

MY BERAAME - BEAERE
AEBR-_TE-_=%F=H=+—8H
BRESEHOMERZESSEY
£39,060,000 B t( =T = —F :
41,625,000/ L) - REFRE R -
RAAREEZCEBERABEE R
Bl Z B SR R R R IR E 1T R E T
e REVKERGOZEERR
B 1) 54 FE R LA R0 £ K Ig3E hn - &
It AEEBR UM BEREDNZ
EEBEZASEN12EAEESEEE
B2 - AEEETEEBREEY
MEER Bt/ SEREERR AN
BB o

AEEBRRITEBRABIEER
BEFBR AR HHFHRE
BRESFSRBEFITAEESE
EFXRZRT ROTEBRZEER
BHER -

MEHEESETAMS A5H
EERBEHEIAZACEBENMARS
Wz N —_E-_—_F=R=4+—
B ZEBEIEZACEES
7,199,000 L - AEE 2 EZ R F
Bt AEMEAK=E EHTAER
EORBIENSZSETF HERED
B TE(FIMEBERNZE/ T
B S ERTEERLHREERE
NZHEITAN) B EEBERERE
M RE -
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited R 757 X715

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(f)  In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
reviewed the recoverable amount of the loan
receivable at amortised cost regularly to ensure
that adequate impairment is made for irrecoverable
amounts. The management assessed the ECL under
12m-ECL model as there was no significant increase
in credit risk since the initial recognition.

The management estimated the estimated loss
rates of loan receivable based on the collateral and
personal guarantee provided to the Group. Based
on assessment by the management, the loss given
default was low after considering the fair value of
the collateral provided by the counterparties. The
management considered the ECL for loan receivable
at amortised cost was insignificant. Therefore no loss
allowance was recognised during the years ended 31
March 2022.

Liquidity risk

In the management of liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management
monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings and
ensures compliance with loan covenants.

BARA

38. R TE (&)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2023
BE—E-_=F=ZF=+—HILFE

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. €T A (&)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities based on the agreed repayment terms. The
table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the
earliest date on which the Group can be required
to pay. Specifically, bank loans with a repayment on
demand clause are included in the earliest time band
regardless of the probability of the banks choosing to
exercise their rights. The maturity dates for other non-
derivative financial liabilities are based on the agreed
repayment dates. The table includes both interest
and principal cash flows. The amounts included
below for variable interest rate bank loans are subject
to change if changes in variable interest rates differ
from those estimates of interest rates determined at
the end of the reporting period.

B EREEBRRBEK(F)

MEBELEE (&)

TRADAEBTESRBERD
EEFRHZHBRTEOBR - MRIVK
RAKBAIGEANRZEF A ZR
METRMEERTARERHE - Kl
SR ERTTIE BTN 2 A B
HEE  ESREREERGERZRT
EXOARERE - HMFTES
MEBEZIHADNRBEERBE
E e TRBEMNEMAERERE -
HFE MR RN ERPRETEZ
MEEHR - AIATHES 228
MERBITERSBITGHE -
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BE—E-_=F=F=+—HILFE

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued)

Liquidity and interest risk tables

Weighted
average
effective
interest rate
MEFH
ERFI%
2023 “BCZF
Non-derivative financial 3{T£¢RER
liabilities
Trade and other payables B3R At ENER N/A
TR
Lease liabilities HEBE 3.35%
Financial guarantee BBERAH NJA
contracts TR
2022 “BCCF
Non-derivative financial #fT4£&REE
liabilities
Trade and other payables B3Rt ENERR N/A
T
Bank loans BOER 2.18%
Lease liabilities HEAR 2.73%
Financial guarantee BBEREH N/A
contracts T

.SRTIA(E)
PRARESERERBE (&)

mEBELmEE (E)

REEE RFIFEE RS Z

Over Over
1 year 2 years
On demand but not but not Total
or less than more than more than Over undiscounted Carrying
1 year 2 years 5 years 5years  cash flows amount
REXY, 180 2ENE AERRE
SRE B2ER B5ER SENE REAR e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$:000
TET FET FET AT TEx TET
114,323 — — — 114,323 114,323
134,678 121,308 120,320 — 376,306 352,121
39,060 — — — 39,060 —
91,587 — — — 91,587 91,587
28,865 — — — 28,865 28,708
120,452 — — — 120,452 120,295
124,747 114,435 220,021 4,416 463,619 441,410
41,625 — — — 41,625 —

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited R AF X{T& B AR A A
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For the year ended 31 March 2023
BE—E-_=F=ZF=+—HILFE

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. €T A (&)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)
Liquidity and interest risk tables (Continued)

The amounts included above for financial guarantee
contracts are the maximum amounts the Group could
be required to settle under the arrangement for the
full guaranteed amount if that amount is claimed
by the counterparties to the guarantee. Based on
expectations at the end of the reporting period, the
Group considers that it is more likely than not that
no amount will be payable under the arrangement.
However, this estimate is subject to change
depending on the probability of the counterparties
claiming under the guarantee which is a function of
the likelihood that the financial receivables held by
the counterparties which are guaranteed suffer credit
losses.

Interest rate benchmark reform

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured
at fair value at the end of the reporting period. The
following table gives information about how the fair
values of these financial assets are determined.

B EREEBRRBEK(F)

MEBELEE (&)
REEE RFIFRBRIZX (&)

A LM BEERE DT AZSER/R
RZBFHHERERSEFAKER
BRHABNE2BERBEZIES®
o KREBRPRZAY  NEER
BARARAXNLZH T ZERNE
B o AW AR ERERBCEE
RUBRRER 2 ZZHFHTERE
ERAMRERGTERN Z AT REMEM

FIEREYE

B F I EEUNFEFEZAEE
EMEEZNFIE

REFBYR - NEEHOBEEN

NFERE - TREHRBENMUEE
HEEREEZATEZER -
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For the year ended 31 March 2023
P FE-—=F=F=+—HIFE

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. ®MITE (&)
Financial risk management objectives and policies MERREERERBEK(Z)
(Continued)
Interest rate benchmark reform (Continued) FIFBEEHE (&)
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are R E R EUNFEGEZFES
measured at fair value on a recurring basis (Continued) THEEZ LNFEE)
Fair value
Financial assets Fair value hierarchy  Valuation techniques and key inputs
tREE NYE DNVERRE HERORIEGAME
2023 2022
—EC= —E-CF
HK$°000 HK$000
FE% TE7
(i) Equity instruments at FVTOCI 13,359 13,436 Level 2 Quoted market prices provided by brokers
— unlisted investments which are financial institutions (note)
BRFEF A2 ARG Fofh  ERER:EREBRE TERE W)
REAIA — FLTRE
(i) Debtinstruments at FVTOCI — 7,158 Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active market
— listed debt securities in
overseas \
BATES AL B2EREY £18  EETSMEZEAE
EBTA — WENETZEH
(i) Financial assets at FVTPL 14,664 5,374 Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active market

— listed investments, equity
securities listed in Hong Kong
and overseas
BAVEG ARG EREAE —
FHRE  REBREN LT

1 RETEMRIEAE

o

(iv)  Financial assets at FVTPL — 15,007 15,616 Level 2 Quoted market prices provided by brokers
unlisted investments which are financial institutions (note)
BAVEIABRSREE — FoR  ERBRERBERE L TGRE (W)
AETRE

(v)  Loans receivables at FVTPL 61,402 — Level 2 Discounted cash flow. Future cash flow is

estimated based on the contract interest
rates, discounted at a rate that reflects
the credit risk of counter party

BRAVE ARG RRE F2R UBRHAERE - KARENEDRE
MRS TRRBEFHZEERR
bR RE «

Note: Quoted market prices provided by brokers which are Bt - VERISK 2 S BIEEIRME 2 5
financial institutions represent the fair values of the BEEERZATE - HENEH
respective funds, based on the observable quoted WEEERMIST 2 A BERE -
prices of the underlying investments in an active
market.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023
BR—F_=—F=F=+—HIFE

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. €T A (&)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Interest rate benchmark reform (Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are not measured at fair
value on a recurring basis

The directors of the Company consider that the
carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate to
their fair values.

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements

The financial assets subsequently measured at fair
value on Level 3 fair value measurement represent
equity instruments at FVTOCI. During the year ended
31 March 2023, there is no purchase of equity
instruments at FVTOCI (2022: the Group has acquired
an equity instrument at FVTOCI at a consideration of
HK$7,810,000) and loss on fair value of HK$77,000
has been recognised in other comprehensive income
(2022: no gain or loss has been recognised as the
management is of the opinion that the carrying
amount of the investment as at 31 March 2022
approximates its fair value).

B EREEBRRBEK(F)

FIERBERENE (F)

WHEEEHEEUQFEFEZ
rEETHMEERTMABEZATE

RRABEERR  NEEPHRERF
WEERALRZEREEREREA
B2 REERENFERE

EIMDFEFTEYIR
HEBEAEEIRAFEFAEPRATE

HEZEREEAKRATEARM
PEREZRATRA - HE_T—_=
i A=+—HLEHFE BEEER
AFEFAEMBEEARSEZBATA
(ZE2EZ=F : AEEBRBIZRAF
Bt ARt E2Emkm 2R ATE K
/7,810,000 L) BEEREM
PERFZFPERAFEEIET77,000
BIU(ZFE_—_F: AREBEEERE
MR- —F=A=+— EZ&é%
AEEENFERE - U EERK
W EE) °
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For the year ended 31 March 2023
BE—E-_=F=F=+—HILFE

39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries, all
of which are limited liability companies, at 31 March
2023 and 2022 are as follows:

39. TEMBEAF

Place of
incorporation/
registration/ Issued and fully paid share capital/ Proportion of nominal value of issued capital/
Name of subsidiary operations registered and paid-up capital registered capital held by the Company
BV
WEAHEH BR/EEns BRARARKRA/HRREAER ANAFEERATRAEE/EREAZILH
Directly Indirectly
E# B
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
ot St 3 k- a2 put- gt 3 kS :2 fut- St 3 k- S :2
% % % %
La Suisse Watch Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares Ordinary shares 100 100 - -
HK$1,000 HK$1,000
BIRTERAR B EER1,000%7 LAR1,000%T
Oriental Watch (China) Company  Hong Kong Ordinary shares Ordinary shares - - 100 100
Limited HK$1,000 HK$1,000
RhEf(E)BRAT Bk EER1,000%7 LR 1,000%7
Oriental Watch Company Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary shares Ordinary shares 100 100 - -
HK$2,000 HK$2,000
RERTERAR B EER2,000%7% LAR2,0002T
Origntal Watch (Macau) Company ~ Macau Ordinary shares Ordinary shares 50 50 50 50
Limited MOP$25,000 MOP$25,000
RAK{T(RF) BRAF i EER250008M  EER25,0002M7
Cathay Watch Company Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary shares Ordinary shares 100 100 - —
HK$2,000 HK$2,000
ARRTERAA Bk EER2,000%7 Lik2,000 %7
Sharp Beauty Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share Ordinary share - — 100 100
HK$1 HK$1
ERERAR B LER1AT LER1ET
Unex Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares Ordinary shares - - 100 100
HKS2 HK$2
FUERERAA BE LER2ET LakoER
Fully Field Development Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary shares Ordinary shares 100 100 - -
HKS8 HK$8
MELRERAA Bk LEReET LEReET
TREHAAEBESERLE  The PRC (note) Registered and Registered and - — 100 100
(Shanghai Oriental Watch paid-up capital paid-up capital
International Trading Co., Ltd.) US$200,000 15$200,000
LERBRAARESERAR  REMR) AMREHER BallGEv
200,000%7 200,000£7
BhET(E)E5ERLA The PRC (note) Registered and Registered and - — 100 100
(Oriental Watch (China) paid-up capital paid-up capital
Trading Co., Ltd.) US$54,000,000 US$54,000,000
P& (HE)EFERA w8 (i) AMREHER AMRE&ER
54,000,000 %7 54,000,000%7
EWilisx:4id Japan Ordinary shares - 100 - - -
JPY10,000,000
A% Z1E1:10,000,00008
Note: These companies were established in the PRC in the Btat -

form of wholly foreign-owned enterprise.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited R A XTE BB R A 7

—

R-B-_=FK-_F-__F=H
=+—B ARAEXEMBERF (S
RBRATE) ZFHBOT

Principal activities

IEER

Watch trading

FREH

Watch trading and
investment holding

FREARRERR

Watch trading

Fhiy

Watch trading

FREH

Watch trading

FHEH

Investment holding

RARR

Property holding

REME

Property holding

HENE

Watch trading

FhEsH

Watch trading

FiHEY

Property investment

HES ¢

ZERANRBENIINEBELEZ
FERBKAL e
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For the year ended 31 March 2023
BE—E-_=F=ZF=+—HILFE
39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 39. TEMBATF (&)

FREJARFAEETRREBRER

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company

which, in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
principally affected the results or assets of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would,
in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities
outstanding at the end of the year, or at any time
during the year.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has
other subsidiaries that are not material to the Group.
A majority of these subsidiaries operate in Hong
Kong, the PRC and Taiwan. The principal activities of
these subsidiaries are summarised as follows:

Principal activities

FEXK FTEXKHE
Watch trading Hong Kong
FEREHH 0

Taiwan

AN

= /=
Investment holding Hong Kong
RE R 0

The PRC

e
Inactive Hong Kong
R3S 0

Principal place of business

EEREREEZARAMBLRA -
EE=R5 - MEINEMHB AR 2
B AlggyEBNITE -

5 1B 2 ) 4 4 o8, P 10 5 R
AR R BT -

REWRIR - XRARIBHAKEMS
WIEEBRZ KA EAR o KEBD %
EMBRARAINERE  FERAER
o ZENMB ARz EEXBMum
T

Number of subsidiaries

MEAREE
2023 2022
—_E2_= —E-=

1 1
1 1
2 2
6 6
1 1
7 7
8 8
17 17
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For the year ended 31 March 2023
BE—E-_=F=F=+—HILFE
40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Compensation of key management personnel

The key management personnel are the directors of
the Company. The remuneration of directors during
the year was as follows:

i ER
B4 7R F

Short-term benefits
Post-employment benefits

The remuneration of directors is determined by
the remuneration committee having regard to the
performance of individuals and market trends.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited R A XTE BB R A 7

40.

BRTEGBEREE -

FREALIRS
FTEEBEABZHE
FTEEBEBABRARAICES - F
AZESMET :
2023 2022
—_E_= —E-=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
120,403 129,296
1,145 1,069
121,548 130,365
EXHMBETFNE ZREAX
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For the year ended 31 March 2023
BE—E-_=F=ZF=+—HILFE

41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 41. ARFZHBARR R

THE COMPANY

2023 2022
—=E_= —E-F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Non-current assets IREBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - e RERE 182 227
Investments in subsidiaries REB AR ZIRE 619,279 619,279
Equity instruments at FVTOCI BATEGFAREMEE
Wzl ATR 5,548 5,625
625,009 625,131
Current assets RBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries AN NGB 926,443 297,537
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR LIRS 552 13,843
Investment in securities W& 5 7 & 2,595 —
929,590 311,380
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables H Ath FE T BR 3K 100,864 124,902
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERTHT B A Rl IE 815,073 104,021
915,937 228,923
Net current assets REBEEFHE 13,653 82,457
Net assets BESE 638,662 707,588
Capital and reserves ERR#E
Share capital &N 48,736 48,736
Reserves (note (a)) & (M5t (a)) 589,926 658,852
Total equity BB 638,662 707,588
Annual Report 2023 = = — = 4 4 #§ 225
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For the year ended 31 March 2023

EE

41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

—E—=

— =

FZHF=+—HILFE

THE COMPANY (Continued)

Note:

(a)

M. KRB ZHBERRRE ()

Movements of the Company’s reserves during the
current and the prior years are as follows:

At 1 April 2021

Profit for the year

Change in fair value of
equity instruments at
fair value through other
comprehensive income

Total comprehensive
income for the year
2021 final dividend paid
2021 special dividend paid
2022 interim dividend
declared/paid
2022 interim special
dividend declared/paid
2022 final dividend proposed
2022 special dividend proposed
Lapse of share options

At 31 March 2022

Profit for the year

Change in fair value of
equity instruments at
fair value through other
comprehensive income

Total comprehensive
income for the year
2022 final dividend paid
2022 special dividend paid
2023 interim dividend
declared/paid
2023 interim special
dividend declared/paid
2023 final dividend proposed
2023 special dividend proposed

At 31 March 2023

The contributed

RZE=-EmA-A

ERgf

RAFEFALB2ERS
LRETIEZATEES

ERZENESE

ERE-E--EXREKE
BRE-E--FRFIRE
BER/BRE-3-2%

N
BER/BRE-E--F

PEERIRE
BEY-E-CEXERE
BRE-E--ERAIRE
BREXN

R-Z--#=f=1-H
gl
RATEG AL ZERE
ZRETAZ
ATEEY

FALENEDE

BRE-Z-ERERE
BRE-E--EEBURE
BER/CRE-E-ZF
THRE
BER/BRE-5-CF
PEERIRE
BRE-Z--ERERE
BRE-E-CERAIRE

RZBZ=£=A=1-H

Bt -
(a) ARAREBENRAFERBEFEZ
HEN
Share Capital Asset
Share option  redemption  Contributed  revaluation Retained Dividend
premium reserve reserve surplus reserve profits reserve Total
RVEE BRERE SARERE  AARR SEEMBE  REEN  RERE At
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$000
& & TET &7 TET TET AT TEx
303,250 79,388 425 122,183 2,552 41,567 190,070 739,435
- - - - - 276,010 - 276,010
- - - - 1128 - - 1,128
— - — - 1,128 276,010 - 277,138
= = = = = = (58,483) (58,483)
- - - - - - (131,587)  (131,587)
- - - - - (41,913) - (41,913)
- - - - - (125,738) - (125,738)
_ _ - = - (48,736) 48,736 =
- - - - - (148,644) 148,644 -
- (79,388) - - - 79,388 - -
303,250 - 425 122,183 3,680 31,934 197,380 658,852
- - - - (79) - - (79
- - - - - 281,076 - 281,076
- - - - - - (48,736) (48,736)
= = = = = —  (148644)  (148644)
- - - - - (38,014) - (38,014)
- - - - - (114,529) - (114,529)
- - - - - (36,552) 36,552 -
= = = = — (07219 107219 =
303,250 — 425 122,183 3,601 16,696 143,771 589,926

surplus arose as a result of the
difference between the aggregate net tangible
assets of the subsidiaries by the Company and the
nominal amount of the Company’s shares which were
issued to acquire those subsidiaries under the group
reorganisation in 1993.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited R A XTE BB R A 7
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

B E
RESULTS E4
Revenue g
Profit before taxation B %t 5il i 7
Income tax expense FTEEIF &
Profit for the year F Mg A
Attributable to: AT AT :
Owners of the IN/NETE Y =N
Company
Non-controlling FEPE AR R =
interests
Profit for the year F N m A

Year ended 31 March
BE=-HA=1+—HLEE

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
—E-NFE —EBE-EF —_E-_—F —_FTE—_— —E-=
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°’000
FET FETT FET FET FET
(Note 1)
(Htet 1)

2,437,184 2,352,683 3,504,022 3,639,774 3,704,677
159,975 127,433 355,736 513,437 440,058
(21,936) (28,324)  (123,112)  (150,461)  (144,534)
138,039 99,109 232,624 362,976 295,524
138,099 100,301 233,256 362,574 295,432

(60) (1,192) (632) 402 92
138,039 99,109 232,624 362,976 295,524
Annual Report 2023 =% — = F F 3§



FINANCIAL SUMMARY

MBRE

ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES

Total assets
Total liabilities

Equity attributable
to owners of the
Company

Non-controlling
interests

Note:

(1) On 1 April 2019, the Group had applied HKFRS 16.

RRBEE A
(5 HE a8

FEPE R M 2R

At 31 March
R=RA=+—8H
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
—E-hFE —EBE-TF —E-_—F —_FTE—_— —E-=
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FETT FET FET FET
(Note 1)
(HiaE 1)
2,408,229 2,513,621 2,727,530 2,879,275 2,619,258
(194,628)  (430,335) (736,981)  (843,108) (723,327)
2,213,601 2,083,286 1,990,549 2,036,167 1,895,931
2,212,733 2,083,611 1,991,495 2,035,007 1,894,745
868 (325) (946) 1,160 1,186
2,213,601 2,083,286 1,990,549 2,036,167 1,895,931
Bz -

Accordingly, certain information for the years ended
2019 which was prepared under HKAS 17 may not be
comparable to the year ended 31 March 2020, 2021, 2022

and 20283.
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